
AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

October 4, 2016 - 7:30 p.m. 

City Council meeting packets are prepared several days prior to the meetings.  This information is reviewed 
and studied by the Councilmembers, eliminating lengthy discussions to gain basic understanding.
Timely action and short discussion on agenda items does not reflect lack of thought or analysis.
An informational packet is available for public inspection on our website at www.cityofevans.org and posted 
immediately on the bulletin board adjacent to the Council Chambers. 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE

3. ROLL CALL Mayor: John Morris 
Mayor Pro-Tem:  Brian Rudy  
Council:           Mark Clark 

           Sherri Finn 
Lance Homann 
 Jay Schaffer  

           Laura Speer 

4. RECOGNITIONS
A. Citizens Police Academy Graduation

5. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
The City Council welcomes you here and thanks you for your time and concerns. 
If you wish to address the City Council, this is the time set on the agenda for you to 
do so. When you are recognized, please step to the podium, state your name and 
address then address City Council. Your comments will be limited to two (2) 
minutes. The City Council may not respond to your comments this evening, rather 
they may take your comments and suggestions under advisement and your 
questions may be directed to the appropriate staff person for follow-up. Thank you!

6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

7. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 20, 2016
B. Resolution No. 34-2016 – Establishing the 2017 City Holidays for the City 

of Evans 

If you would like to address City Council,  
please place your name on the sign-up sheet  

located at the back of the council room.   
You will be recognized to speak during the  

"audience participation" portion of the agenda. 



It is the policy of the City of Evans that all programs and activities shall be accessible to, and usable by, 
persons with disabilities. Persons needing assistance shall contact the Safety & Risk Management Specialist 
at the City of Evans. Please provide three to five business day’s advance notice so we can adequately meet 
your needs. 

8. NEW BUSINESS
A. Public Hearing – 2017 Operating and Capital Budget

i. Resolution No. 33-2016 – Adoption of the 2017 Budget
ii. Ordinance No. 655-16 – City of Evans 2017 Budget (First Reading)

B. Ordinance No. 656-16 – Adding 4th Degree Arson (First Reading)
C. Public Hearing – Consideration of a Variance Request by the Evans Fire 

Protection District Regarding Above Ground Fuel Storage Tanks at Hillside 
Rental

D. Public Hearing – Eastwood Village Appeal: Consideration of an
Appeal by the Owner of the Eastwood Village Manufactured Home Park

E. Amendment to Development Agreement – Tuscany Subdivision Filing 1, 
Phase II

F. Approval of Contract Amendment with Colorado
Department of Local Affairs (DOLA) EIAF 7633 – Evans Staffing 
Assistance – Flood Recovery

G. Award of Bid – Fence Replacement in Riverside Park

9. REPORTS
A. City Manager
B. City Attorney

10.  AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (general comments)
Please review the Audience Participation section listed at the beginning of the 
agenda for procedures on addressing City Council.

11.  EXECUTIVE SESSION
A. To Determine Positions Relative to Matters that May Be Subject to 

Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations, and Instructing 
Negotiators, Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e)

12.  ADJOURNMENT 

CITY OF EVANS – MISSION STATEMENT 

 “To deliver sustainable, citizen-driven services for the health, safety, and welfare 
of the community.” 



COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: October 4, 2016 

AGENDA ITEM:  7.A

SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes September 20th City Council Meeting 

PRESENTED BY: City Clerk 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Approval of minutes. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

N/A

RECOMMENDATION: 

N/A

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

"I move to approve the minutes as presented." 



MINUTES 
EVANS CITY COUNCIL 

September 20, 2016 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Morris called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.  

PLEDGE 

ROLL CALL  

Present:   Mayor Morris, Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy, Council Members Clark, Finn, 
Homann, Schaffer, and Speer 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION  
There was no audience participation. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy, made the motion, seconded by Council Member Clark, to 
approve the Agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Meeting of September 6, 2016

Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Council Member Clark, to
approve the Consent Agenda.  Council Member Finn recused herself from voting on
the Consent Agenda.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof.

NEW BUSINESS 

A. Public Hearing-Ordinance No. 654-16 – Amending the Evans Municipal Code
Replacing the City’s Zoning Code (Title 18) and Subdivision Code (Title 19)
with a Combined Land Development Code (First Reading)

Mayor Morris opened the public hearing at 7:35 p.m.

Fred Starr, City Public Works Director, discussed the need for the code changes
under the Ordinance in order to combine Title 18, Zoning Code, and Title 19, Land
Development Code.  Mr. Starr explained that these code changes would be reviewed



EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 
Page 2 

by the Evans Planning Commission on September 27th, then would be finalized by 
the City Council at the October 18th meeting.  

Council Member Speer clarified that these code changes were not changing any 
zoning in the City.  

Mr. Starr, stated that these code changes were not altering any current zoning 
designations from the current zoning map.   

Mr. Krob, City Attorney, discussed a recent court opinion regarding the City’s land 
use appeal process, which also needed to be clarified in the code revision.  He spoke 
about the language in the code revision and explained that the yellow highlights were 
cross-references to other code sections, but would not be in the final draft. 

Mr. Starr clarified that these changes did not address sign code changes, which will 
be addressed separately in a future code revision.  

Mayor Morris asked for any public comments for or against the Ordinance—there 
was none.  

Mayor Morris applauded staff for the code changes and spoke about needing these 
changes since his time on the Evans Planning Commission. 

Mr. Starr discussed the drafting timeline for these code changes.  

Mayor Morris thanked everyone from staff that helped implement the revisions. 

Mayor Morris closed the public hearing at 7:44 p.m. 

Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Council Member Homann, to 
approve Ordinance No 654-16 – Amending the Evans Municipal Code Replacing the 
City’s Zoning Code (Title 18) and Subdivision Code (Title 19) with a Combined 
Land Development Code, on First Reading.   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

B. Lower Latham Ditch – Amendment to Anderson Engineering Contract

Chloe Lewis, Watershed Coordinator, Middle South Platte River Alliance, presented
an amendment with Anderson Engineering Contract for the Lower Latham Ditch
Diversion. She explained that the existing contract with Anderson Consulting
Engineers, provided funding with the intent to complete a 25 percent design, but the



EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 
Page 3 

amendment will increase the budget by $145,000 and increase the timeline by one 
and a half months.  According to Ms. Lewis, the timeline was previously set to have 
the 25 percent design completed December 15th, 2016.  With the additional funding 
and work needed to create an 80 percent design, the new timeline will extend to 
February 1st of 2017.  

Mayor Morri8is clarified that the cost increase would be encumbered by the 
Department of Local Affairs (DOLA). 

Ms. Lewis confirmed that DOLA was encumbering the costs of the project. 

Council Member Clark made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy, to 
approve the Mayor’s signature on the amended contract with Anderson Consulting 
Engineers and approve the associated budget revision. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 

C. 49th Street, Brantner Road, Industrial Parkway Bid Results

Gary Wilson, Flood Project Manager, presented the bid results for reconstruction of
flood damaged sections of 49th Street, Brantner Road and Industrial Parkway.  He
explained that five bids were received, and Naranjo Civil Constructors was the
lowest bid and the proposals with all required information. According to Mr. Wilson,
the City followed the procurement requirements of the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA).

He discussed the risk of financial exposure when dealing with FEMA, since the cost
to the City will depend on what FEMA agrees to reimburse.  The City cost could
range from $47,654, if FEMA reimburses for all of the mitigation costs at closeout,
to $267,694, if FEMA rules the mitigation cost is not “cost effective” and the City
must pay for all of the mitigation cost.

Mayor Morris asked Mr. Wilson about his experience working with reimbursements
from FEMA.

Mr. Wilson discussed his experience working with representatives from FEMA.

The City Council Members discussed the need to begin work on this project.

Ms. Gonifas, Interim City Manager, and Mr. Wilson clarified which portions of 49th

Street, Brantner Road and Industrial Parkway would be reconstructed.



EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 

 

Council Member Homann made the motion, seconded by Council Member Clark, to 
approve the contract for the 49th Street, Brantner Road and Industrial Parkway 
Project with Naranjo Civil Constructors.   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

 
REPORTS 

A. City Manager 
 

Ms. Gonifas summarized the recent on-goings at the City that were listed in the 
September 20th City Manager’s Monitoring Report.    

    
 

B. City Attorney 
  

Mr. Krob reserved his comments for the executive session.  
 
 

AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
   There was no audience participation.  

 
 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
A. To Determine Positions Relative to Matters that May Be Subject to 

Negotiations, Developing Strategy for Negotiations, and Instructing Negotiators, 
Pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e) 

 
Council Member Schaffer made the motion, seconded by Mayor Pro-Tem Rudy, to 
adjourn into executive session to determine positions relative to matters that may be 
subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing 
negotiators, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).   
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
The City Council adjourned into session at 8:02 p.m.  
 
The executive session concluded 8:46 p.m. 
 
Scott Krob, City Attorney, entered into the record that the matters discussed in 
executive session were subject to attorney-client privilege and within the scope of the 
referenced state statutes. 
 
 
 



EVANS CITY COUNCIL 
September 20, 2016 
Page 5 

ADJOURNMENT 

The City Council adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 



COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM:  

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTED BY: 

October 4, 2016 

7.B

Resolution No. 34-2016- 2017 Holiday Schedule  

Julie Roeder, Human Resources & Risk Management Director 

________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

This Resolution establishes City holidays for 2017. 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

N/A 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends the adoption of the resolution. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

  “I move to adopt Resolution No. 34-2016.” 

   OR 

 “I move to deny the adoption of Resolution No. 34-2016.” 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO.  34-2016  

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO ESTABLISHING 
CITY HOLIDAYS FOR THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO FOR 2017 

WHEREAS, the City established that there are eleven (11) days during 2017 that will be 
classified as holidays; and 

WHEREAS, the City employees shall be granted these holidays off with pay, provided 
that an employee may be required to work on a holiday, if necessary, to maintain essential 
services to the public; and 

WHEREAS, the City offices shall be closed on such holidays. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS, that the following days shall be observed as holidays for 2017: 

1. Monday, January 2, 2017 (Day after New Year's Day)

2. Monday, February 20, 2017 (Presidents’ Day)

3. Monday, May 29, 2017 (Memorial Day)

4. Tuesday, July 4, 2017 (Independence Day)

5. Monday, September 4, 2017 (Labor Day)

6. Friday, November 10, 2017 (Veterans Day)

7. Thursday, November 23, 2017 (Thanksgiving Day)

8. Friday, November 24, 2017 (Day after Thanksgiving Day)

9. Monday, December 25, 2017 (Christmas Day)

10. Tuesday, December 26, 2017 (Day after Christmas Day)

11. Floating Holiday - allow the employees to take a day off of their choice within the
calendar year, with supervisory approval.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the 
City of Evans on this 4th day of October, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

By 
 Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



1 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: October 4, 2016

AGENDA ITEM: 8.A

SUBJECT:  2017 Operating and Capital Budget 
Resolution No. 33-2016 – Adopting 2017 Budget 
Ordinance No. 655-16 – 2017 Budget Appropriations 

PRESENTED BY: Jacque Troudt, CPA, City Finance Manager 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

The City Council, by resolution, shall adopt an annual budget and shall make annual 
appropriations pursuant to procedures outlined by State law and as required by the City of Evans Home 
Rule Charter (Section 8.5).  The revenues, expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) and transfers 
have been previously reviewed by the City Council.  

Resolution No. 33-2016 adopts the annual budget. 

Ordinance No. 655-16 appropriates the expenditures, expenses and transfers.  

________________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 

It is my pleasure to present you with the 2017 City of Evans Operating and Capital budget and five year 
projections.  This budget is the result of many years of significant work on the part of the City Council 
and staff.  While the economic conditions have remained improved since the Great Recession, we 
continue to focus on our commitment to conservative revenue estimates while staying focused on 
economic development opportunities working towards a sustainable community. Staying the course 
with the City Council budget philosophy, the 2017 budget is built conservatively with careful analysis 
based on the results of 2016 and projections for 2017.   

The process to build sustainability into the financial future of the community began in 2010 with the 
reduction in force, continued into 2012 with the creation of the Evans Fire Protection District and 
focused on departmental assessments for several key service areas in 2013 and 2014. 2015 was focused 
on updating our strategic operating planning process to gain focus and commitment, accountability, 
transparency, and to accomplish measurable outcomes. 2016 has seen the fruits of our labor and 
resulted in accomplishment of several outcomes identified through that strategic planning process. The 
process continues to evolve, but the goal of making our own future remains.    

Although this budget does not include any changes in levels of service, the commitment to match 



2 

service level needs with available revenue remains strong. This process will continue into the future 
with a focus on building a sustainable and resilient community based on resident driven levels of 
service.  

From a process perspective, we continue to focus on including staff in the budget process (and 
associated Long Range Plans), creating a higher level of awareness, knowledge, and accountability.  
Process teams were developed for revenue, payroll, supplies and services, asset management, and 
capital programs. These teams worked with the departments to review and prepare the budgets, 
providing for an independent review.  The goal for each of these teams is to train the team for next year 
and each year increase the level of analysis that goes along with developing the financial plans.  An 
additional benefit is the increased number of city employees who have a significantly greater 
understanding of the City finances and operations.  The increased awareness usually leads to more 
accurate information in the community.  

The Finance Committee provides oversight and recommendations to the budget process.  Ultimately, it 
is the City Council that approves the annual budget based on the recommendations of the City Manager 
and input from residents.   

The 2017 General Fund budgeting started five years ago, a benefit to our long term perspective on 
managing the finances of the City. Although the City made significant reductions to long term operating 
expenses in 2010 in response to the Great Recession and structural gap, the City and the City’s 
management team has been able to maintain a balanced operating budget. As we moved into the official 
2017 budgeting season, the 2016 sales tax revenues are showing slight declines over prior years, due 
primarily to the slowdown in oil and gas drilling activity in the area.  The historical challenge of 
budgeting in the General Fund remains projecting this revenue source as it accounts for the major 
source of revenue in the fund and is influenced by numerous factors out of our control. The City has 
identified areas of our sales tax collections which are more volatile and we consider those as one-time 
revenue sources. In order to mitigate the risk of funding long term fixed costs based on these one-time 
increases in revenue, we have taken an approach in the last several years’ budgets that programs in a 
portion of the revenue related only to one-time expenditures. This method allows us to remain ultra-
conservative in increasing our long term fixed costs. 

The 2009 restructuring of the financial management of the Water Fund has proven to be an effective 
tool for managing enterprise funds. The attached budget includes higher revenues based on increasing 
the base rate from $18.00 per month to $18.50 per month in the Water Fund with the goal of funding 
major maintenance at the level of annual depreciation of the system. In 2013, we started the process of 
reevaluating the results of the increases and assessing the future needs of the water enterprise. This 
work resulted in a recommendation to update the 2005 water master plan. This project is on target to be 
completed in 2016. Long term, the funding of a major water storage project, NISP-Glade Reservoir, and 
the potential of additional options for water treatment face the City as we move into the future.  

The restructuring of the Waste Water Fund took place in late 2011 and was implemented in 2012. 
Similar to the issues identified in the Water Fund, the Waste Water Fund was not recovering its costs on 
the operational side and did not have a mechanism in place to fund system maintenance. The waste 
water master plan update was completed in 2013 and implementation began in 2014 with the City 
Council’s decision to consolidate waste water treatment facilities into one location. 2015 was focused 



3 

on the design of the new facilities and construction began in 2016 and is expected to continue until 
2019.   

The final City enterprise fund, Storm Drainage, also requires an in-depth analysis to assure that these 
operations are self-sustaining as required by law. A master plan update on this utility was started in 
2015 and was completed in 2016.  

The attached budget book includes information intended to answer the most frequently asked questions. 
 To accomplish the purpose of being useful on an everyday basis, the budget book does not attempt to 
answer every conceivable question (ultimately leading to a document that is too cumbersome).   

Although the economic future is uncertain, the City has the systems and resources in place to manage 
these challenges.  This is an accomplishment that puts Evans in an elite group of cities and towns.  We 
are definitely among the municipal leaders in Colorado with regard to how we financially plan and 
manage our budgets.  

In summary, the budget is a flexible and living document with constant monitoring and management.  
With adoption of the 2017 budget, the staff will move to close out 2016 and identify fund balances 
that can be used to fund one-time projects in 2017.  By constantly updating and discussing the budget, 
we have eliminated the antiquated once a year budget model and moved to a more fluid financial 
management system.  Thank you for your continued leadership, trust and support. 

Details of all financial items are available for Council or Citizens upon request from the 
Finance Department by contacting Jacque Troudt at 970-475-1127 or jtroudt@evanscolorado.gov. 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 

Staff recommends adoption of the resolution and approval of the ordinance. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

Or  

Or  

“I move to adopt Resolution No. 33-2016 and approve Ordinance No. 655-16 on first reading.” 

“I move to deny adoption of Resolution No. 33-2016 and approve Ordinance No. 655-16 on 
first reading.” 

“I move to adopt Resolution No.33-2016 and approve Ordinance No. 655-16 on first reading 
as amended.” 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO.  33-2016 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES 
FOR EACH FUND, AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 

EVANS, COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING THE 
1ST DAY OF JANUARY, 2017 AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF 

DECEMBER, 2017 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, has appointed the City 
Manager to prepare and submit a proposed 2017 budget to said governing body at the proper time; 
and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted a proposed 2017 budget to the governing 
body at October 4, 2016 for its consideration; and  

WHEREAS, upon due notice, published in accordance with the law, said proposed budget 
was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a public hearing was held on October 
4, 2016 and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register objections to said 
proposed budget; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  That estimated revenues and transfers in for 2017 for each fund are as follows: 

General Fund $12,716,170 
Cemetery Perpetual Care 2,700 
Fire Impact  3,186 
Street Impact 6,759 
Parks Impact     15,143 
Conservation Trust   192,082 
Refuse Collection               664,944 
Capital Projects-Streets   1,285,313 
Capital Projects-Parks 8,801,351 
Waterworks 4,991,084 
Waste Water 3,508,654 
Storm Drainage 507,421 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 

Section 2.   That estimated expenditures and transfers out for 2017 for each fund are as 
follows: 



General Fund $13,195,749 
Conservation Trust 90,000 
Refuse Collection               668,441 
Capital Projects-Streets                1,032,500 
Capital Projects-Parks             9,522,258 
Waterworks  5,722,991 
Waste Water  2,590,416 
Storm Drainage  553,649 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 

Section 3.  That the 2017 Budget as submitted, amended, hereinabove summarized by fund, 
and summarized in Exhibit “A” be and the same is approved and adopted as the budget of the City 
of Evans, Colorado, for the year stated above. 

Section 4.  That the 2017 Budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the 
Mayor of the City of Evans, Colorado, and made a part of the public records of the City of Evans, 
Colorado. 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Evans on this 4th day of October, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

By:
Mayor 

ATTEST:    
City Clerk 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

ORDINANCE NO. 655-16 

AN ORDINANCE APPROPRIATING MONEY TO DEFRAY EXPENSES AS 
PROVIDED IN THE 2017 BUDGET 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to appropriate sums from the revenues and fund balances 
provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, so as not to impair the operations of 
the City. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
EVANS, COLORADO: 

Section 1. That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenues and fund 
balances of each fund for the purposes stated: 

General Fund    $13,195,749 
Emergency Contingency - 
Cemetery Perpetual Care - 
Fire Impact  - 
Street Impact             - 
Parks Impact -      
Conservation Trust   90,000 
Refuse Collection               668,441 
Capital Projects-Streets   1,032,500 
Capital Projects-Parks 9,522,258 
Waterworks 5,722,991 
Waste Water 2,590,416 
Storm Drainage 553,649 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 

PASSED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on 
this 4th day of October, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

By: 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 

City Clerk 



2 

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED ON SECOND READING this 18th  day of 
October, 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

By: 
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
             City Clerk 



Opportunity for Growth… 

2017 Budget 

Riverside Park, photo by Chad Reischl 



1 

Table of Contents 
Transmittal Letter........................................................................................................................................................................................ 3 

2017 Budget Overview ................................................................................................................................................................... 6 

General Fund ............................................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
General Government ....................................................................................................................................................................... 9 
Community Development ............................................................................................................................................................. 12 
Public Safety ................................................................................................................................................................................. 13 
Public Works ................................................................................................................................................................................. 14 
Culture, Parks, and Recreation ...................................................................................................................................................... 15 
General Fund Long Range Financial Plan .................................................................................................................................... 16 
General Fund Revenue Summary – Fiscal Year 2017 .................................................................................................................. 18 
General Fund Expenditure Summary – Fiscal Year 2017 ............................................................................................................ 19 

Enterprise Funds ....................................................................................................................................................................................... 20 
Water Fund.................................................................................................................................................................................... 20 
Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan ....................................................................................................................................... 22 
Waste Water Fund......................................................................................................................................................................... 25 
Waste Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan ............................................................................................................................ 26 
Storm Drainage Fund .................................................................................................................................................................... 28 
Storm Drainage Fund Long Range Financial Plan ....................................................................................................................... 29 

Special Revenue Funds ............................................................................................................................................................................. 31 
Emergency Contingency Fund ...................................................................................................................................................... 31 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund ..................................................................................................................................................... 32 
Fire Impact Fund ........................................................................................................................................................................... 33 
Street Impact Fund ........................................................................................................................................................................ 34 
Park Impact Fund .......................................................................................................................................................................... 36 
Police Impact Fund………………………………………………………………………………………………………………37 
Conservation Trust Fund............................................................................................................................................................... 38 
Refuse Collection Fund................................................................................................................................................................. 39 

Capital Project and Trust Funds ................................................................................................................................................................ 40 
Capital Projects – Streets Fund ..................................................................................................................................................... 40 



2 

Capital Projects – Parks Fund ....................................................................................................................................................... 42 
Cemetery Endowment Fund – Trust Fund .................................................................................................................................... 43 

Attachments .............................................................................................................................................................................................. 44 
Attachment A 2017 Budget Summary .......................................................................................................................................... 44 
Attachment B Revenue and Expense Trends ................................................................................................................................ 45 
Attachment C Summary of Personnel Positions ........................................................................................................................... 46 
Attachment D Summary of Personnel Expenditures .................................................................................................................... 50 
Attachment E Summary of Supplies and Services by Program .................................................................................................... 51 
Attachment F Summary of Supplies and Services by Fund ......................................................................................................... 54 
Attachment G Summary of Debt .................................................................................................................................................. 55 
Attachment H Asset Management Plan ........................................................................................................................................ 56 
Attachment I Summary of Capital Expenditures .......................................................................................................................... 57 
Attachment J Intra Fund Transfers and Methods .......................................................................................................................... 58 
Attachment K 2017 Budget Resolution ........................................................................................................................................ 59 
Attachment L Financial Policies..……………………………………………………………………………………………..…61 



3 
 

Transmittal Letter 
 
October 4, 2016 

Honorable Mayor, City Council, and Residents; 

It is my pleasure to present you with the 2017 City of Evans Operating and Capital budget and five year projections.  This budget is the 
result of many years of significant work on the part of the City Council and staff.  While the economic conditions have remained 
improved since the Great Recession, we continue to focus on our commitment to conservative revenue estimates while staying focused 
on economic development opportunities working towards a sustainable community. Staying the course with the City Council budget 
philosophy, the 2017 budget is built conservatively with careful analysis based on the results of 2016 and projections for 2017.   

The process to build sustainability into the financial future of the community began in 2010 with the reduction in force, continued into 
2012 with the creation of the Evans Fire Protection District and focused on departmental assessments for several key service areas in 
2013 and 2014. 2015 was focused on updating our strategic operating planning process to gain focus and commitment, accountability, 
transparency, and to accomplish measurable outcomes. 2016 has seen the fruits of our labor and resulted in accomplishment of several 
outcomes identified through that strategic planning process. The process continues to evolve, but the goal of making our own future 
remains.    

Although this budget does not include any changes in levels of service, the commitment to match service level needs with available 
revenue remains strong. This process will continue into the future with a focus on building a sustainable and resilient community based 
on resident driven levels of service.  

From a process perspective, we continue to focus on including staff in the budget process (and associated Long Range Plans), creating 
a higher level of awareness, knowledge, and accountability.  Process teams were developed for revenue, payroll, supplies and services, 
asset management, and capital programs. These teams worked with the departments to review and prepare the budgets, providing for 
an independent review.  The goal for each of these teams is to train the team for next year and each year increase the level of analysis 
that goes along with developing the financial plans.  An additional benefit is the increased number of city employees who have a 



4 
 

significantly greater understanding of the City finances and operations.  The increased awareness usually leads to more accurate 
information in the community.  

The Finance Committee provides oversight and recommendations to the budget process.  Ultimately, it is the City Council that approves 
the annual budget based on the recommendations of the City Manager and input from residents.   

The 2017 General Fund budgeting started five years ago, a benefit to our long term perspective on managing the finances of the City. 
Although the City made significant reductions to long term operating expenses in 2010 in response to the Great Recession and 
structural gap, the City and the City’s management team has been able to maintain a balanced operating budget. As we moved into 
the official 2017 budgeting season, the 2016 sales tax revenues are showing slight declines over prior years, due primarily to the 
slowdown in oil and gas drilling activity in the area.  The historical challenge of budgeting in the General Fund remains projecting this 
revenue source as it accounts for the major source of revenue in the fund and is influenced by numerous factors out of our control. 
The City has identified areas of our sales tax collections which are more volatile and we consider those as one-time revenue sources. In 
order to mitigate the risk of funding long term fixed costs based on these one-time increases in revenue, we have taken an approach in 
the last several years’ budgets that programs in a portion of the revenue related only to one-time expenditures. This method allows us 
to remain ultra-conservative in increasing our long term fixed costs. 

The 2009 restructuring of the financial management of the Water Fund has proven to be an effective tool for managing enterprise 
funds. The attached budget includes higher revenues based on increasing the base rate from $18.00 per month to $18.50 per month in 
the Water Fund with the goal of funding major maintenance at the level of annual depreciation of the system. In 2013, we started the 
process of reevaluating the results of the increases and assessing the future needs of the water enterprise. This work resulted in a 
recommendation to update the 2005 water master plan. This project is on target to be completed in 2016. Long term, the funding of a 
major water storage project, NISP-Glade Reservoir, and the potential of additional options for water treatment face the City as we 
move into the future.  

The restructuring of the Waste Water Fund took place in late 2011 and was implemented in 2012. Similar to the issues identified in the 
Water Fund, the Waste Water Fund was not recovering its costs on the operational side and did not have a mechanism in place to fund 
system maintenance. The waste water master plan update was completed in 2013 and implementation began in 2014 with the City 
Council’s decision to consolidate waste water treatment facilities into one location. 2015 was focused on the design of the new facilities 
and construction began in 2016 and is expected to continue until 2019.   

The final City enterprise fund, Storm Drainage, also requires an in-depth analysis to assure that these operations are self-sustaining as 
required by law. A master plan update on this utility was started in 2015 and was completed in 2016.  



5 
 

The attached budget book includes information intended to answer the most frequently asked questions.  To accomplish the purpose of 
being useful on an everyday basis, the budget book does not attempt to answer every conceivable question (ultimately leading to a 
document that is too cumbersome).   

Although the economic future is uncertain, the City has the systems and resources in place to manage these challenges.  This is an 
accomplishment that puts Evans in an elite group of cities and towns.  We are definitely among the municipal leaders in Colorado with 
regard to how we financially plan and manage our budgets.  

In summary, the budget is a flexible and living document with 
constant monitoring and management.  With adoption of the 2017 
budget, the staff will move to close out 2016 and identify fund 
balances that can be used to fund one-time projects in 2017.  By 
constantly updating and discussing the budget, we have eliminated 
the antiquated once a year budget model and moved to a more 
fluid financial management system.  Thank you for your continued 
leadership, trust and support. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Photo credit: Alma Aquino Aguilar 



 

6 
 

2017 Budget Overview 

The 2017 budget document has been prepared as a useful tool for City Council, residents, and staff. This document is 
designed to answer the majority of the questions related to the budget from a policy maker and resident perspective. 
Budget direction is provided from the Home Rule Charter, City Council, and the Financial Policies. 

Budget development in the City of Evans is an ongoing and vibrant team process involving the City Council, Department 
Directors, and many members of staff. Updating the long range plans and preparing the annual budget begins with a 
comprehensive review of rates and revenues. Taxes are approved by residents and rates for services are set by the City 
Council. Other rates are reviewed each year to ensure the rate increases align with inflation and the subsequent cost of 
providing these services. The 2017 budget includes $30,608,429 of total revenues and $31,289,628 of total expenses as 
outlined by fund in Attachment A, 2017 Budget Summary. Attachment B, Revenue and Expense Trends shows the 

past and projected trends, including revenues that will impact the City.  

Sales tax revenues amount to 55% of total General Fund revenue. Consequently, it is important to accurately project these revenues. The City 
closely monitors these revenues on a monthly basis and the transition in 2011 to self-collection has allowed for more timely and accurate 
projections. For 2017, sales and use taxes are projected to decrease 7% from 2016.  

In prior years, property tax was the second largest contributor to General Fund revenue. Due to the voter approved transfer of 10 of the City’s total 
13.536 mills in 2013 to the Evans Fire Protection District, this revenue source now represents 3.6% of the General Fund revenue. 

User fees are charged for specific services and in 2017 are projected based on a rate increased by inflation and anticipated activity.   

For 2017, the personnel budget includes funding for employee merit, funding the results of the compensation and classification study, and an 
increase to benefit packages for the same number of benefited full time positions as in 2016.  Attachment C, the Summary of Personnel 
Positions identifies the 95 positions approved by department, with no new positions identified for 2017. Attachment D, the Summary of 
Personnel Expenditures identifies costs for funded full time positions, part time employees and overtime for a total in 2017 of $9,020,476.  

This Supplies and Services budget includes any increases which were mandated by contractual agreements, a minimal amount of increases 
necessary to provide services to the residents in the most efficient and effective way possible, and reductions in several programs due to business 
model changes and operational improvements. Despite the significant changes in revenue and levels of service over the past several years, 
departments continue to look for ways to eliminate outdated or lower priority activities. Each department has, and will continue to evaluate each 
activity or expense to identify savings. Attachment E, the Summary of Supplies and Services by Program shows an increase of 1.3% in the  

 



 

7 
 

 

General Fund 2017 budgeted supplies and services. The major contributor to this increase are the contractual agreement increases, as mentioned 
above. 

Attachment F, the Summary of Supplies and Services by Fund shows the City wide budget for supplies and services of $8,140,942, an 
increase of $136,741 or 1.7% from 2016.  This increase is due to inflationary cost of supplies and services and contractual increases. The majority 
of the supplies and services budget in the Refuse Collection and Water Funds is a contract to provide services by an outside agency. 

Please note that 2018 through 2021 projected amounts are based on current service levels and may change as residents request and the Council 
approves changes. The acquisition and maintenance of facilities and equipment required to deliver services to the residents is included in these 
categories. These expenses are identified on the Long Range Plans based on the funding sources. As an example, the use of Impact Fees is 
restricted to equipment and capital purchases (indicating they should not be used for operations) and separate funds exist to account for these 
revenues and expenditures. 

Attachment G, Summary of Debt includes the annual obligations along with the total obligations. The City’s debt at the end of 2017 will total 
$40,903,994 and includes Water and Waste Water related debt obligations, while no debt is currently budgeted for in the General Fund.  The 
majority of this debt is attributed to the construction of the consolidated Wastewater treatment facility.  

The City staff has developed an Asset Management Plan, Attachment H, with the strategy of anticipating and funding the replacement of 
equipment with an approximate replacement cost between $5,000 and $100,000. Delaying the replacement of equipment can be extremely 
expensive in terms of lost productivity and high cost of emergency repairs. In 2017, the Asset Management Plan is funded adequately based on our 
current model.  

Attachment I, the Summary of Capital Expenditures identifies capital projects by fund for 2014 to 2021. The long term goal is to refine and 
implement the Capital Improvement Plan for all capital funds. Capital purchases are budgeted in the Conservation Trust, Capital Projects, and 
Enterprise Funds. Funding in the Capital Projects and Enterprise Funds is based on the projected 2016 ending fund balance. Because Impact Fees 
are less predictable, the available funding is based on 90% of the projected 2016 ending fund balance. 

Attachment J, Intra Fund Transfers, identifies transfers made to reimburse funds for expenditures (or expenses in enterprise funds) recognized 
in separate funds.  Transfers are identified by the fund paying the other fund. 

The 2017 budget challenges encompassed a few key funds: General, Water and Storm. Both the Water and Storm enterprises anticipate large 
capital improvement projects in the near future which need to be balanced with operating and maintenance needs.  The General fund faced a 
budgeted revenue decrease for the first time in six years due primarily to the slowdown in oil and gas activity in the area in 2016. Although we 
expect the industry to start to recover in late 2016, our budgeting philosophy calls for conservative revenue projects based on current tax collects.  



8 

This philosophy for the past several years has allowed us to move into 2017 with projected revenue declines and still deliver the same level of 
service. The long term focus in the General fund remains on the service level delivery and long-term sustainability.   

In addition to the economic factors that impact all funds, the General and Enterprise Funds are impacted by the overhead allocation from the 
Enterprise Funds to the General Fund for administrative support. The methods used to estimate these costs is evaluated on an annual basis and 
refined as necessary in order to capture the most accurate picture possible.  

After the significant work done to the Water Fund in 2009 and programmed base rate increases, the fund is moving towards a sustainable level of 
funding for operations and the focus has been on obtaining funding for large water projects such as Northern Integrated Supply Project (NISP). 
Also a major project in 2015 and 2016 is the update to the 2005 Master Plan. The master plan update will address several key issues, two of which 
include a rate review of the multi-family, commercial and industrial rates and future plans for obtaining water treatment.   

The Waste Water fund continued to be a focus for 2016 and will be in 2017 as the construction of the new consolidated treatment facility continues 
into 2019.  

Each operating fund has a long range plan which identifies revenues and expenditures. Prior year actuals are identified to help understand trends 
and the increased costs of providing services. Future years are included to identify the costs of providing services which may be added during the 
year or as a result of capital projects. The main goal is to identify the highest priority services each year, eliminate lower priority expenditures and 
ultimately operate more efficiently and effectively. 

The City of Evans budget is a year round planning and management tool. 2017 
was the eighth year where the budget focused on increased staff involvement 
and City Council direction as policy makers. The Budget Resolution, 
Attachment K is submitted to the City Council before October 15th as required by 
the City Home Rule Charter.  



 

9 
 

General Fund 

General Government includes services required for the operation of a City government including the City Council, City Manager, City Clerk, 
Customer Service Unit, Human Resources and Risk Management, Information Technology, Finance and Facilities. 

City Council – includes the community’s legislative body which has the authority for enacting City ordinances and resolutions as needed to 
conduct the business of the City and to provide policy direction to City staff. 

• Successfully recruit for the new City Manager 
• Maintain excellent communication on fiscal status. 
• Continue to implement operational and strategic 

decisions based on Council’s vision priorities. These 
priorities include: 

o Diverse Economy  

o Clean  

o Infrastructure  

o Family Friendly, Home Town  

o Safe    

o Self-Sustaining  



 

10 
 

City Departments 
 

City Manager – includes operating with a Council-Manager form of government with the City Manager being the chief administrative officer and is 
responsible for the overall management of City operations.  

• Orient new City Manager to City operations, goals and long term projects. 
• Administer and manage City operations with focus on Council priorities. 
• Assess department operations with the goals of increasing efficiency and effectiveness of delivery of resident 

services. 
 

City Clerk – includes general and specialized administrative responsibilities in many areas, including: 
• Primary staff for City Council, the Evans Redevelopment Agency, and the City Management Team: minutes, agenda, and meeting 

preparation; 
• City Records Custodian: coordinates open records requests and maintains revisions to the Municipal Code and Home Rule Charter; 
• Designated City Election Official: oversees City Council elections, Special Elections, Coordinated Elections, and onsite County ballot drop-off 

locations; 
• Oversees Council appointments to City Boards and Commissions; 
• Liquor licensing; 
• Pet licensing; and 
• Cemetery administration for the Evans Cemetery. 

 
 

Customer Service Unit – provides customer services externally to residents and support services internally to staff through effective listening and 
undivided attention. Identifies and anticipates needs of our residents and staff. 
 

• Implement new Utility Billing software. 
• Automate court hearing process. 
• Administer a Customer Satisfaction Survey. 

 

Human Resources & Risk Management – provides services to recruit, select, classify, compensate and develop a talented and diverse 
workforce, while fostering a safe, positive work environment that optimizes productivity, efficiency and effectiveness.  



 

11 
 

 
City Departments 

 
• Design and implement electronic records management system for personnel records.  
• Evaluate and modify applicant selection processes.  
• Enhance the employee onboarding process to provide new employees the information, resources and tools needed to be successful and 

productive at the City of Evans. 
• Develop, implement and evaluate City-wide training based on information received through surveys, focus groups and loss trend analysis.  
• Evaluate the performance management module available through our current provider to determine the benefits of its use as part of the 

City’s overall performance management system. 
• Develop and implement a risk management framework and a process for managing risk that can help the City increase the likelihood of 

achieving objectives, improve the identification of opportunities and threats and effectively allocate and use resources for risk management.  
• Continue to increase efficiency and use of electronic systems to improve workflow and enhance self-service and data sharing capabilities.  
• Continue to evaluate and enhance safety program, including policies, accident investigations, claims management, inspections, audits and 

training.   
• Continue to evaluate, plan and modify the City’s integrated health risk management strategy and plan, including enhancing the City’s 

comprehensive wellness program to improve employee health, well-being and safety as well as reduce insurance costs.   
• Continue to develop and strengthen regional partnerships, including identifying opportunities for greater cost efficiency while maximizing the 

City’s resources.   
 
 

Information Technology – includes management of the City’s information services serving both the residents and staff.  

• Promote the effective use of technology throughout the City. 
• Increase City efficiency in use of electronic systems by designing, connecting and integrating data systems. 

 

Financial Services – includes the financial planning, budgeting, accounting and reporting functions to accurately identify the activities and 
financial condition of the City. 

• Continue to increase efficiency and transparency by reducing the use of paper and manual processes. 
• Improve financial reporting and accessibility of information for department use.  
• Continue to improve procedures for grant accounting, tracking and reporting. 

 



 

12 
 

Community Development 

Community Development is a division of the Evans Public Works Department and includes: Planning and Zoning, Building Permitting and 
Inspection, and Neighborhood Services and Code Enforcement. 

Planning and Zoning – Planning and zoning focuses on short term development planning and process review. Focused on short-term growth and 
the sustainability of Evans’ built environment, Planning and Zoning reviews development plans as guided by the Evans subdivision and zoning 
codes. In addition, Planning and Zoning assists the public in addressing immediate questions and concern on development of property. 

 

  
 

 
Building Permitting and Inspection – Building Permitting and Inspection ensures that all construction activities in Evans conforms to adopted 
building codes as well as applicable laws of the State of Colorado. Inspection services are conducted through an inter-governmental contract with 
the City of Greeley.  
 
Neighborhood Services/Code Enforcement – Neighborhood Services serves the City by ensuring properties throughout Evans conform to 
adopted city ordinances and application laws of the State of Colorado. This division primarily enforces nuisance code violations. Abatement of 
violations is conducted through a contract with an outside contractor.  
 
Goals include creating partnerships with the community in developing for the future. The main areas of concentration for 2017 include: 

• Mutually beneficial development that sustains the community economically and aesthetically.  
• Promote a collaborative atmosphere within the internal Development Review Team.   
• Amend the development code to promote clarity, efficiency and transparency. 



 

13 
 

Public Safety 

The Police Department has an authorized strength of 36 sworn officers, a full time Animal Control/Community Services Technician, and two full 
time and one-part time civilian support staff. The department is committed to providing outstanding, compassionate, and professional public safety 
services to our residents. 

 

Patrol –the most visible part of the Department is under the direction of Commander Chad Harding. Four sergeants supervise 24/7/365 Patrol 
operations. There are also five Master Police Officers who assist in providing supervision to patrol and investigative personnel. Officers handle an 
array of issues in Evans from traffic safety initiatives to responding to a multitude of calls for service. Evans police officers focus on problem 
identification and solutions in their districts rather than simply taking reports  

Traffic Safety Unit – the Evans Police Department is dedicated to traffic safety. Keeping our streets safe for 
the motoring public, as well as citizens traveling on foot or bicycle, is a priority. All officers are responsible for 
keeping high visibility and enforcing traffic violations. One full time officer is assigned to our Traffic Safety Unit 
and is tasked with identifying and positively impacting high traffic incident locations and directing efforts to 
reduce traffic collisions. 
 
Animal Control/Community Services Technician (CST) – a full time, non-sworn technician handles all 
animal related calls during the assigned shift. The CST also handles designated calls such as thefts without 
suspects, private property motor vehicle collisions, and other low-priority calls to aid in keeping sworn officers 
on the street. 
 
Investigations/Administrative Services – under the direction of Commander Jason Phipps, the unit is 
responsible for all investigative follow up, crime analysis, sex offender tracking, property and evidence 
handling, records, IT, and Internal Affairs investigations. A sergeant supervises three detectives who 
investigate all serious crimes in Evans. 

Community Oriented Policing and Problem Solving (COPPS) –through programs such as Neighborhood Watch, the School Resource Officer 
and COPPS initiatives, officers work with our residents in partnerships to solve crime and improve quality of life issues to continue to make Evans a 
safe, desirable community 

 



 

14 
 

Public Works 
 

Public Works - our mission is to manage Public Services and Infrastructure to support the City Wide Mission.  Our Vision is to be a respected, 
innovative team delivering financially responsible services required for the operation and maintenance of public rights-of-way, fleet services, and 
engineering including the areas within Public Works of Maintenance of Condition, Fleet Services, and Engineering. 

Infrastructure Maintenance – includes the maintenance, construction, and public safety on public streets, alleys, and rights-of-way within the 
City. This includes, but is not limited to, street sweeping, snow removal, alley grading, maintenance of signs and other traffic control devices, 
pavement marking, and asphalt pavement maintenance. 

Goals for 2017 include: 

• Create a value based culture that drives daily operations and long range 
planning.   

• Bring current staff into cultural alignment with vision, mission and values. 
• Improve positive resident satisfaction. 

 

Fleet Services – maintains the City’s fleet of vehicles and equipment at the safest, 
most efficient and dependable condition possible, at the lowest cost per mile or hour 
of operation.  

 

Capital Construction – the Engineering Division has the responsibility for providing 
engineering support in the planning and design of the City’s Capital Improvement 

Projects, performs subdivision plan review and construction inspections, approving construction in public rights-of-way, and to provide engineering 
support to other City departments as needed. 

Transit – includes the administration of the City’s transit services agreement with the City of Greeley. This function serves to ensure adequate 
levels of public transportation service to the City of Evans. 



 

15 
 

Culture, Parks, and Recreation 

The Parks and Recreation area of the budget includes services required for the general operations of public facilities, recreation services, 
aquatics operations, parks and cemetery maintenance, forestry, and senior services.  

Public Facilities – includes maintenance and operational expense of the Evans Community Complex.  

Recreation – includes administration of all recreation services and programs, the recreation center and front desk operations, and administrative 
needs of the Parks & Recreation Department. 

Parks – includes all of the operational expenses of the City’s parks and trail system (9 neighborhood parks, 1 off-leash dog park, 1 Community 
Park, 6 undeveloped park sites, 4 miles of trails, and oversight of the City’s open space areas). 

 

 

Cemetery – operational maintenance of the City’s only cemetery (including opening/closing 
of graves). 

Forestry Care – includes care of trees and horticultural care on public property and 
landscape plan review. 

Senior Services – administration of the City’s Senior Services and the Evans Senior Center.  

Goals for 2017 Include: 

• Continue to participate in the Tree City USA and Playful City USA programs.  
• Assist flood recovery team with the redevelopment of Riverside Park. 
• Collaborate with High Plains Library District to provide cultural programs and special 

events for the community. 
• Implement a Senior Advisory Board to brainstorm new ideas for trips and programs. 
• Implement two new recreation programs for children aged 3-5. 

 



 

16 
 

General Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 8,831,630         8,268,626         10,229,726       10,229,726       6,371,301         5,891,721         4,854,962         3,804,920         (2,330,979)        

Revenues:
Sales Tax 9,633,263         8,583,726         7,514,993         7,514,993         6,991,245         7,131,070         7,305,985         7,486,148         7,671,716         
Property Tax 388,013            373,971            432,336            432,336            460,251            464,854            469,502            474,197            478,939            
Other Taxes 1,478,037         1,565,219         779,666            876,694            704,519            717,823            733,911            751,158            769,376            
License & Permits 1,037,884         973,894            955,767            909,710            885,708            898,693            923,738            949,694            976,601            
Intergovernmental 2,397,488         2,171,729         1,815,123         1,459,820         1,281,931         1,265,609         1,303,578         1,342,685         1,382,966         
Charges for Services 399,017            430,983            373,853            418,402            364,333            364,333            364,463            364,596            364,730            
Fines & Forfeitures 399,763            429,752            362,370            453,213            385,300            385,300            390,370            390,946            391,527            
Assessments 46,968              99,813              -                    31,816              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Misc 195,744            478,002            115,636            257,176            150,505            156,154            156,154            156,154            156,154            
   Total revenues 15,976,178       15,107,088       12,349,744       12,354,161       11,223,792       11,383,836       11,647,701       11,915,578       12,192,009       
   CT 15,976,178                      15,107,088                      12,349,744                      12,354,160                      11,223,792                      11,383,836                      11,647,701                      11,915,578                      12,192,009                      

    Transfers In 1,173,367         1,300,292         1,403,196         1,403,196         1,492,379         1,516,359         1,538,585         1,561,143         1,584,030         

Total Available Funds 17,149,545       16,407,380       13,752,940       13,757,357       12,716,170       12,900,194       13,186,286       13,476,721       13,776,039       
      Total Annual Increase 4.31% -5.56% -16.18% -16.15% -7.57% 1.45% 2.22% 2.20% 2.22%
Expenditures:
GG Personnel 1,366,897         1,785,834         2,022,963         2,022,963         2,129,340         2,197,905         2,268,677         2,341,729         2,417,132         
GG Operations 1,685,271         1,572,013         1,768,166         1,768,166         1,752,942         1,789,942         1,797,684         1,866,893         1,875,787         
General Government 3,052,168         3,357,847         3,791,129         3,791,129         3,882,281         3,987,846         4,066,362         4,208,621         4,292,919         

10.55% 8.99% 12.90% 12.90% 2.40% 2.72% 1.97% 3.50% 2.00%
CD Personnel 324,666            410,597            617,589            617,589            530,834            547,927            565,570            583,781            602,579            
CD Operations 322,194            535,259            347,354            347,354            176,153            176,153            180,557            185,071            189,697            
Community Development 646,860            945,856            964,943            964,943            706,987            724,080            746,127            768,852            792,276            

35.35% 31.00% 2.02% 2.02% -26.73% 2.42% 3.04% 3.05% 3.05%

City of Evans General Fund Long Range Financial Plan

 

 



 

17 
 

General Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

 
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
PS Personnel 3,113,887         3,186,942         3,560,956         3,560,956         4,071,988         4,203,106         4,338,446         4,478,143         4,622,340         
PS Operations 330,304            374,916            281,635            281,635            286,295            286,295            293,452            300,788            308,308            
Public Safety 3,444,191         3,561,858         3,842,591         3,842,591         4,358,282         4,489,400         4,631,898         4,778,932         4,930,648         

5.76% 2.99% 7.88% 7.88% 13.42% 3.01% 3.17% 3.17% 3.17%
PW Personnel 689,503            804,221            808,787            808,787            851,537            878,957            907,259            936,473            966,627            
PW Operations 665,436            714,151            603,685            603,685            629,738            629,738            645,481            661,619            678,159            
Public Works 1,354,939         1,518,372         1,412,472         1,412,472         1,481,275         1,508,695         1,552,740         1,598,091         1,644,786         

-11.40% 10.37% -6.97% -6.97% 4.87% 1.85% 2.92% 2.92% 2.92%
CPR Personnel 628,565            680,582            800,955            800,955            795,303            820,912            847,346            874,630            902,793            
CPR Operations 288,369            452,982            590,228            590,228            528,784            528,784            540,551            552,594            564,921            
Culture, Parks & Rec 916,934            1,133,564         1,391,183         1,391,183         1,324,087         1,349,696         1,387,897         1,427,224         1,467,714         

2.61% 13.20% 22.73% 22.73% -4.82% 1.93% 2.83% 2.83% 2.84%
IGA - Fire Services 448,918            471,358            474,137            474,137            479,713            491,706            503,998            516,598            529,513            
Asset Management 239,217            396,344            738,445            738,445            337,124            535,532            747,306            494,301            496,071            
Debt 289,483            289,169            293,741            2,100,000         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Total operating expenditures 10,392,708       11,674,369       12,908,641       14,714,900       12,569,749       13,086,954       13,636,327       13,792,620       14,153,928       
      Total Annual Increase 6.06% 10.06% 10.57% 26.04% -14.58% 4.11% 4.20% 1.15% 2.62%

Disaster Response & Recovery 705,389            361,560            277,690            277,690            26,000              -                    -                    -                    -                    
Capital Improvements 4,537,878         1,205,104         1,673,186         1,267,400         -                    250,000            -                    5,220,000         -                    
Transfers Out (To Fire Protection Dist) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Transfers Out (To other City Funds) 2,076,574         1,205,248         1,355,792         1,355,792         600,000            600,000            600,000            600,000            600,000            
Transfers In (From EC Fund) -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures (563,004)           1,961,100         (2,462,369)        (3,858,425)        (479,579)           (1,036,760)        (1,050,041)        (6,135,899)        (977,888)           

Ending Fund Balance 8,268,626         10,229,726       7,767,357         6,371,301         5,891,721         4,854,962         3,804,920         (2,330,979)        (3,308,867)        
   CT 8,268,626                        10,229,726                      

Minimum Target Reserve 1,598,177         1,918,592         2,227,160         2,678,725         2,142,437         2,271,739         2,409,082         2,448,155         2,538,482         

Available Funds 6,670,449         8,311,134         5,540,197         3,692,576         3,749,284         2,583,223         1,395,839         (4,779,134)        (5,847,349)        

        



 

18 
 

General Fund Revenue Summary – Fiscal Year 2017 

The following graph illustrates the breakdown of revenue used to fund general City operations. 

Source Revenue Percentage 
Sales Tax $       6,991,245 55.0% 
Property Tax $          460,251 3.6% 
Other Taxes $          704,519 5.5% 
License & Permits $          885,708 7.0% 
Intergovernmental $       1,281,931 10.1% 
Charges for Services $          364,333 2.9% 
Fines & Forfeitures $          385,300 3.0% 
Misc. $          150,505 1.2% 
Transfer from Other Funds $       1,492,378 11.7% 
Total Revenue $     12,716,170 100% 



 

19 
 

General Fund Expenditure Summary – Fiscal Year 2017 

 

Expenditures by Category 

 

 
 

               

Expenditures by Type 

 

 



 

20 
 

Enterprise Funds 
Water Fund 

The Water Fund is a municipal utility enterprise fund established to account for the operational and infrastructure costs, and related revenues, 
necessary for providing the distribution of treated water and untreated irrigation water (non-potable) to Evans’ residential and commercial 
customers. This fund includes all services required for the operation and maintenance of the water distribution facilities, the non-potable irrigation 
delivery systems, and the Evans Ditch.  

Administration – includes the expenses necessary for the administration of the Water Fund including water resource management, water 
treatment costs, legal issues, and engineering services.  

 
Goals for 2017 include: 

• Participate in the ongoing efforts to develop 
additional water supplies. 

• Continue aggressive water conservation 
program designed to reduce the City’s water 
consumption over time by approximately 13%. 

• Actively manage water usage to monitor 
system development charges with the City of 
Greeley related to the volume of water treated. 

 

Distribution – includes expenses necessary for the 
operation and maintenance of the City’s treated water 
delivery system including all water mains, fire 
hydrants, valves, meters, and other appurtenances. 

 

 

 



 

21 
 

Water Fund 

Non-potable Irrigation – includes expenses necessary for the operation and maintenance of the City’s non-potable irrigation system including all 
pump stations, water mains, valves, meters, and other appurtenances.  

Goals for 2017 include: 
• Create a standardized approach to pump station maintenance to ensure a long and useful life for the City’s non-potable irrigation pump 

stations. 
• Ensure the City’s non-potable infrastructure is accounted for within our Asset Management Plan and future replacement costs are 

appropriately allocated through the five-year Capital Improvement Plan. 
• Investigate options to expand the City’s non-potable irrigation system and further reduce the City’s demand for treated water. 

Evans Ditch – includes expenses necessary for the operation and maintenance of the historic Evans Ditch delivery system including the delivery 
ditch, all head gates, check structures, dump structures, conduits, and other appurtenances. 

Goals for 2017 include: 
• Ensure the Evans Ditch infrastructure is accounted for within our Asset Management Plan and future replacement costs are appropriately 

allocated through the five-year Capital Improvement Plan. 
• Develop a plan for major maintenance of the Evans Ditch facilities and integrate into future plans. 
• Investigate options to expand the utilization of the Evans Town Ditch and further reduce the City’s demand for treated water. 



 

22 
 

Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan 
 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating Revenues
Base Rate (base, np, penalty, misc) 1,801,044           2,754,578           1,942,259           1,942,259           1,902,630           1,950,305           1,998,101           2,000,441           2,002,781           
Loan Proceeds 578,642              -                      126,384              126,384              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Variable Rate 2,643,229           2,882,866           2,747,717           2,747,717           2,780,030           2,835,631           2,892,343           2,950,190           3,009,194           
Interest Income 4,615                  3,630                  8,222                  14,000                7,924                  8,116                  8,198                  8,280                  8,362                  

Total Operating Revenues 5,027,530           5,641,073           4,824,582           4,830,361           4,690,584           4,794,052           4,898,642           4,958,910           5,020,337           

Operating Expenses
Fixed costs 1,823,520           1,960,965           1,734,541           1,734,541           1,671,169           1,722,958           1,755,621           1,789,026           1,823,189           
Variable costs 2,408,988           2,537,764           2,600,973           2,600,973           2,782,662           2,838,695           2,895,612           2,947,236           3,012,345           
Total Operating Expenses 4,232,508           4,498,728           4,335,514           4,335,514           4,453,831           4,561,653           4,651,233           4,736,261           4,835,535           
Net Revenues over (under) expenses 795,022              1,142,345           489,068              494,847              236,753              232,399              247,409              222,649              184,802              
Transfer for Major Maint (w AMP) 556,167              793,613              322,800              322,800              231,461              227,348              242,479              211,415              179,591              
Transfer for Water Conservation 234,241              345,102              146,745              146,745              (2,632)                 (3,065)                 (3,268)                 2,955                  (3,151)                 

Net Operations after Transfers 4,615                  3,630                  19,523                25,302                7,924                  8,116                  8,198                  8,280                  8,362                  

Running Cash Balance 780,573              784,202              803,725              817,725              811,650              819,766              827,964              836,243              844,606              

Target Operating Reserve - 3 months                739,887                840,003                966,492                966,492             1,056,251             1,084,342             1,103,005             1,130,473             1,164,774 

Available Funds 40,686                (55,801)               (162,767)             (148,767)             (244,601)             (264,576)             (275,042)             (294,230)             (320,168)             

Water Rights Revenues
Payment in Lieu & Water Rights Lease 18,745                20,196                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                

Water Rights Expenses
Water Right Acquisition -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Annual Net 18,745                20,196                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                20,000                
Running Balance (147,863)             (127,667)             (107,667)             (107,667)             (87,667)               (67,667)               (47,667)               (27,667)               (7,667)                 

City of Evans Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

23 
 

Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan 
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
System Maintenance & Expansion Revenue
Tap Fee Revenue 263,759              407,863              250,000              423,513              260,000              270,000              280,000              290,000              300,000              
Water Meter Sales 22,532                29,081                20,000                37,800                20,500                21,000                21,500                22,000                22,500                
Interest Income/ Other Revenue 837                     8,502                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Transfer for Major Maint (w AMP) 556,167              793,613              322,800              322,800              231,461              227,348              242,479              211,415              179,591              
Transfer for Water Conservation 234,241              345,102              146,745              146,745              (2,632)                 (3,065)                 (3,268)                 2,955                  (3,151)                 

Total System Expansion Revenue 1,077,535           1,584,161           739,545              930,858              509,329              515,283              540,711              526,370              498,940              

System Maintenance & Expansion Expenses
Capital Outlay 344,542              368,142              155,944              155,944              989,500              9,723,000           6,635,000           5,370,000           1,800,000           
Major Maintenance & AMP 49,926                142,300              322,800              322,800              231,461              227,348              242,479              211,415              179,591              
Water Conservation Projects -                      -                      146,745              146,745              (2,632)                 (3,065)                 (3,268)                 2,955                  (3,151)                 
Misc Expenses 56,452                44,458                143,781              143,781              50,831                51,852                52,898                53,971                55,070                

Total Expenses 450,920              554,899              769,270              769,270              1,269,160           9,999,135           6,927,109           5,638,340           2,031,510           

Annual Net 626,615              1,029,262           (29,725)               161,588              (759,831)             (9,483,852)          (6,386,398)          (5,111,971)          (1,532,570)          
Running Balance 732,602              1,761,865           1,732,140           1,923,452           1,086,203           (8,397,649)          (14,784,047)        (19,896,018)        (21,428,588)        

Total Water Fund Revenue 5,333,403           6,106,716           5,114,582           5,311,673           4,991,084           5,105,052           5,220,142           5,290,910           5,362,837           

Total Water Fund Expenses 4,683,428           5,053,628           5,104,784           5,104,784           5,722,991           14,560,788         11,578,342         10,374,601         6,867,044           
CT -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     -                                     

Changes in Working Capital (62,837)               92,017                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total Water Fund Cash Balance 1,277,526           2,422,631           2,432,430           2,629,521           1,897,614           (7,558,121)          (13,916,322)        (19,000,013)        (20,504,220)        
1,277,526                          2,422,631                          

Water Fund
Expense Summary 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating Revenues
Base Rate (base, np, penalty, misc) $1,801,044 $2,754,578 $1,942,259 $1,942,259 $1,902,630 $1,950,305 $1,998,101 $2,000,441 $2,002,781

$17.00 $17.50 $18.00 $18.00 $18.50 $19.00 $19.50 $19.50 $19.50
Base Major Maintenance Calculator
Administrative GF OH 616,285              689,664              733,952              733,952              766,659              778,159              789,832              801,679              813,704              
Water Fund Payroll, Supplies & Services 1,116,446           1,114,722           844,010              844,010              747,931              788,219              809,210              830,768              852,906              
AMP -                      5,500                  133,000              133,000              -                      149,350              151,709              78,786                -                      
Debt - CWPA 2013 Radio Loan 90,789                156,579              156,579              156,579              156,579              156,579              156,579              156,579              156,579              
Major Maintenance Projection 556,167              788,113              74,718                74,718                231,461              77,998                90,770                132,629              179,591              

Total Base Rate 2,379,686           2,754,578           1,942,259           1,942,259           $1,902,630 $1,950,305 $1,998,101 $2,000,441 $2,002,781

Major Maintenance and AMP in Fixed Costs

Asset Management Plan -                      5,500                  144,000              144,000              -                      149,350              151,709              78,786                -                      
Major Maintenance Projects: 506,241              651,314              63,918                63,918                181,461              27,998                40,770                82,629                129,591              

Equipment -                      11,628                61,882                61,882                -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Line Work 49,926                125,171              53,000                53,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                50,000                

Total In Fixed Costs 556,167              793,613              322,800              322,800              231,461              227,348              242,479              211,415              179,591              

        

 



 

24 
 

Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Capital Expenditures - System Expansion Tap Fee Revenue

Windy Gap Storage Project 284,542              264,142              -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
NISP Storage Project 60,000                104,000              140,000              140,000              342,000              4,300,000           5,800,000           4,700,000           1,800,000           
System Expansion Fee to City of Greeley -                          -                          -                          -                          300,000              -                          300,000              -                          -                          
Whitney Way - Crossing 37th St -                          . -                          -                          -                          20,000                -                          -                          -                          
West Service Rd. - 31st St. to 35th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          272,000              -                          -                          -                          
Brantner Rd & Ind Pkwy 43rd to 44th St -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          450,000              -                          -                          -                          
Tuscany Non-Potable Ponds -                          -                          15,944                15,944                -                          1,300,000           -                          -                          -                          
Tuscany Pumphouse -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          300,000              -                          -                          -                          
23rd Ave - 37th to 42nd St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          390,000              -                          -                          -                          
35th St - Empire to Trinidad -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          200,000              -                          -                          -                          
34th St. - 23rd Ave. to 17th Ave -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          340,000              -                          -                          
36th St. - 11th Ave. to Idaho -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          100,000              -                          -                          -                          
37th St. - 17th Ave. to Latham -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          45,000                -                          -                          -                          
37th St. - 23rd Ave. to 17th Ave. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          580,000              -                          -                          -                          
Boulder St - 36th St. to 37th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          65,000                -                          -                          -                          
Denver St. - 36th St. to State St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          120,000              -                          -                          
Denver St. - 39th St. to 40th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          65,000                -                          -                          -                          
Empire St. - 33rd St to 35th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          117,000              -                          -                          -                          
Larson Ave. - 41st. St. to 42nd St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          90,000                -                          -                          -                          
Montrose St. - 34th St. to 37th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          170,000              -                          -                          -                          
Pleasant Acres Dr. - 32nd St. to 11th Ave. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          260,000              -                          -                          -                          
Southgate Dr. - Denver to 31st St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          230,000              -                          -                          -                          
State St. - 33rd St. to 35th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          80,000                -                          -                          -                          
North-South Split Adjustment Structure -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          75,000                -                          -                          -                          
31st St. & Empire Measurement Facility -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          30,000                -                          -                          -                          
42nd St. & Golden Measurement Facility -                          -                          -                          -                          45,000                -                          -                          -                          -                          
17th Ave. Sediment Removal Basin -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          10,000                -                          -                          -                          
37th St Sediment Removal Basin -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          10,000                -                          -                          -                          
Central Ave. Pipe - 40th St to 39th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          20,000                -                          -                          -                          
Idaho St. Pipe - 42nd St. to 40th St. -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          25,000                -                          -                          -                          
Golden St. Pipe - 40th St. to 37th St -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          25,000                -                          -                          -                          
37th St. to 11th Ave. Lining -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          75,000                -                          -                          -                          
11th Ave. to 36th St. Lining -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          75,000                -                          -                          
17th Ave. to 42nd St. Lining -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          75,000                -                          -                          -                          
Evans WWTF Lining -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          125,000              -                          -                          -                          
SCADA- Various locations -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          219,000              
Dos Rios & Chappelow Schools -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          150,000              -                          
State Farm Rd & Glendale Dr -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          200,000              -                          
Sunset Dr- 30th St to 31st St -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          290,000              -                          
35th St Pipe- Empire to Trinidad -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          30,000                -                          
Evans Ditch Condition Survey & Video -                          -                          -                          -                          250,000              -                          -                          -                          -                          
Engineering Specifications Update -                          -                          -                          -                          52,500                -                          -                          -                          -                          
Total in CIP from Tap Fee revenue 344,542              368,142              155,944              155,944              989,500              9,723,000           6,635,000           5,370,000           1,800,000           

Total Capital in Attachment I (includes water rights) 394,468              504,942              334,744              334,744              1,220,961           9,800,998           6,725,770           5,502,629           1,979,591           

        

 



 

25 
 

Waste Water Fund 

The Waste Water Fund includes services required for the operation and maintenance of the City’s two waste water collection and treatment 
systems (original Evans system and the Hill n’ Park System).  

 

Waste Water Treatment – includes the expenses necessary to provide waste water treatment services to the community that meet applicable 
Federal and State regulations related to the environmental water quality parameters. This includes all treatment plant operational expenses and 
laboratory compliance testing services.  

• Maintain our current level of treatment operations and infrastructure maintenance for both systems. 
• Limit treatment compliance violations at both plants.  

 

Waste Water Collection – includes the operations, maintenance and replacement of the City’s waste water collection system.  

• Prolong the life of the collection system through a maintenance program that prevents any disruptions in service to the public and flow to 
the treatment facility. 

• The maintenance program entails the hydro cleaning of the entire system over a 3-year period. 
• With available funding, begin an annual collection system repair and replacement program. 



 

26 
 

Waste Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Operating Revenues
Sewer Sales 1,462,108         1,224,772         1,593,210         1,593,210         1,426,550         3,624,743         4,395,328         4,408,421         4,531,514         
Other 19,179              1,271                13,367              13,367              26,114              7,242                27,260              53,686              80,196              
   Total Operating Revenues 1,481,287         1,226,042         1,606,577         1,606,577         1,452,664         3,631,985         4,422,588         4,462,107         4,611,710         
   CT 1,481,287                        1,226,042                        1,606,577                        1,606,577                        1,452,664                        3,631,985                        4,422,588                        4,462,107                        4,611,710                        

Operating Expenses
Personnel 307,149            355,072            423,222            423,222            463,292            478,210            493,608            509,502            525,908            
Operations 395,265            315,308            434,227            434,227            434,227            537,694            759,825            782,620            782,620            
Debt 108,626            107,048            110,762            110,762            107,110            110,535            15,199              -                    -                    
Transfer for Overhead to General Fund 398,040            441,930            475,542            475,542            496,324            503,768            511,325            518,995            526,780            
Total Operating Expenses 1,209,080         1,219,358         1,443,753         1,443,753         1,500,953         1,630,207         1,779,957         1,811,117         1,835,308         
Net Revenues over (under) expenses 272,207            6,684                162,824            162,824            (48,289)             2,001,778         2,642,631         2,650,990         2,776,402         

Running Cash Balance 602,996            609,680            772,504            772,504            724,216            2,725,994         5,368,625         8,019,615         10,796,017       

Target Operating Reserve - 3 months 302,270            304,840            360,938            360,938            375,238            407,552            444,989            452,779            458,827            

Available Funds 300,726            304,840            411,566            411,566            348,977            2,318,442         4,923,636         7,566,836         10,337,191       

Major Maintenance Revenues
Revenue -                    1,034,913         874,333            874,333            1,988,000         602,000            20,000              120,000            110,000            
Loan Proceeds 42,560,289       42,560,289       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Grant - Disaster Related (102,378)           1,174,315         508,873            508,873            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
   Total System Maintenance Revenues (102,378)           2,209,228         43,943,495       43,943,495       1,988,000         602,000            20,000              120,000            110,000            

Major Maintenance Expenses
Asset Management 88,865              52,072              118,500            118,500            39,000              25,750              68,959              16,391              35,454              
Disaster Recovery 353,839            1,646,835         3,880                3,880                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Capital Outlay - Regulatory Compliance -                    -                    41,429,000       41,429,000       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Capital Outlay - Major Maintenance 15,169              -                    350,000            350,000            322,500            300,000            300,000            300,000            300,000            
Debt -                    -                    123,413            123,413            727,964            727,764            2,418,088         2,416,619         2,417,506         
   Total System Maintenance Expenses 457,873            2,116,907         42,024,793       42,024,793       1,089,464         1,053,514         2,787,047         2,733,010         2,752,960         

Annual Net (560,251)           92,322              1,918,702         1,918,702         898,537            (451,514)           (2,767,047)        (2,613,010)        (2,642,960)        
Running Cash Balance (151,311)           (58,989)             1,859,713         1,859,713         2,758,249         2,306,736         (460,311)           (3,073,320)        (5,716,280)        

City of Evans Waste Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan

 



 

27 
 

Waste Water Fund Long Range Financial Plan 
 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

System Expansion Revenues
Grant Revenue -                    373,206            1,650,272         1,650,272         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
System Development Fees 125,078            281,907            50,000              50,000              50,000              50,000              50,000              50,000              50,000              
Interest -                    3,130                6,682                6,682                17,990              18,670              19,357              20,050              20,751              
Bond Proceeds -                    -                    
   Total System Expansion Revenues 125,078            658,242            1,706,954         1,706,954         67,990              68,670              69,357              70,050              70,751              

System Expansion Expenses
Capital Outlay -                    1,182,570         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
   Total System Maintenance Expenses -                    1,182,570         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Annual Net 125,078            (524,328)           1,706,954         1,706,954         67,990              68,670              69,357              70,050              70,751              
Running Cash Balance 616,367            92,039              1,798,993         1,798,993         1,866,983         1,935,653         2,005,009         2,075,060         2,145,810         

Total Waste Water Fund Revenue 1,503,987         4,093,513         47,257,026       47,257,026       3,508,654         4,302,655         4,511,944         4,652,157         4,792,461         

Total Waste Water Fund Expenses 1,666,953         4,518,835         43,468,546       43,468,546       2,590,416         2,683,720         4,567,003         4,544,126         4,588,267         

Changes in Working Capital 232,915            801,540            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    

Ending Cash 959,487            1,335,706         5,124,186         5,124,186         6,042,423         7,661,358         7,606,299         7,714,330         7,918,523         
   CT 959,487                  1,335,706               

Restricted Cash 275,726            285,439            

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Combined Plant Planning/Design 15,169 1,178,749         42,560,289       42,560,289       -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Utility Billing Software -                    3,821                20,333              20,333              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Vac Truck -                    -                    350,000 350,000 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Sliplining -                    -                    -                    -                    300,000            300,000            300,000            300,000            300,000            
Enginnering Specifications Update -                    -                    -                    -                    22,500              -                    -                    -                    -                    
Waste Water Fund Total 15,169 1,182,570 42,930,622 42,930,622 322,500            300,000            300,000            300,000            300,000            

         



 

28 
 

Storm Drainage Fund 

The Storm Drainage Fund provides the operations and maintenance of the City’s storm drainage system including the curb and gutters, storm 
inlets, and storm sewers throughout the community. 

Storm Drainage – includes the expenses necessary for the operations and maintenance of the City’s storm drainage system including the curb 
and gutters, storm inlets, and storm sewers throughout the community. The storm drainage fund provides for the replacement of existing assets as 
well as the construction of new systems as recommended by the storm drainage master plan. The storm drainage fund also serves to manage the 
City’s water quality efforts as it relates to storm drainage. 



 

29 
 

Storm Drainage Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Cash 958,656            1,293,597         645,256            645,256            661,937            615,709            122,672            65,449              54,166              

Operating Revenues
Storm Drainage Sales 481,223            549,146            656,563            656,563            481,635            491,267            501,093            511,115            521,337            
Other 5,787                3,359                5,787                5,787                5,787                5,787                5,787                5,787                5,787                
   Total Operating Revenues 487,010            552,505            662,350            662,350            487,421            497,054            506,879            516,901            527,124            
   CT 487,010                           552,505                           662,350                           662,350                           487,421                           497,054                           506,879                           516,901                           527,124                          

Operating Expenses
Storm Operations 20,669              99,457              208,937            208,937            40,000              41,000              42,025              43,076              44,153              
Disaster Recovery -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
Total Operating Expenses 20,669              99,457              208,937            208,937            40,000              41,000              42,025              43,076              44,153              

Transfer Out - Overhead to GF (126,287)           (135,757)           (160,620)           (160,620)           (196,149)           (199,091)           (202,077)           (205,108)           (208,185)          

Operating Income (Loss) after transfers 340,054            317,291            292,793            292,793            251,273            256,963            262,777            268,717            274,786            

Other Income (Expense)
Plant Inv Fees/Cash in Lieu of Fees 32,430              38,386              20,000              38,097              20,000              20,000              20,000              20,000              20,000              
Capital Outlay (5,049)               (1,019,400)        (296,112)           (296,112)           (317,500)           (770,000)           (340,000)           (300,000)           (650,000)          
Changes in Working Capital (32,494)             15,382              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   

Increase (Decrease) in Cash 334,941            (648,341)           16,681              34,778              (46,227)             (493,037)           (57,223)             (11,283)             (355,214)          

Ending Cash 1,293,597         645,256            661,937            680,034            615,709            122,672            65,449              54,166              (301,048)          
   CT 1,293,597                        645,256                           

Target Reserve - 3 months                  5,167                24,864                52,234                52,234                10,000                10,250                10,506                10,769               11,038 

City of Evans Storm Drainage Fund Long Range Financial Plan

 
 
 



 

30 
 

Storm Drainage Fund Long Range Financial Plan 
 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
23rd Ave Outfall Design-49th to S Platte River -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    300,000            300,000            -                   
Tuscany Storm Drainage Improvements -                    -                    23,915              23,915              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
Hwy 85/37th St Drainage 804                   996                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
15th Ave. Storm Sewer - 37th to 36th -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    200,000            -                    -                    -                   
US 34 By-pass Storm Sewer Improvements -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    300,000            -                    -                    -                   
37th St. Storm Sewer - Trinidad to Boulder -                    572,000            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
41st St. Storm Sewer - Boulder St. to Golden St. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000              -                    -                    -                   
41st St. Storm Sewer - Central to Boulder -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000              -                    -                    -                   
Boulder St. Storm Sewer - 40th St. to 41st St. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000              -                    -                    -                   
Boulder St. Storm Sewer - 41st St. to 42nd St. -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    40,000              -                    -                   
Central St./State St. Storm Sewer Rehab. -                    8,992                -                    -                    -                    150,000            -                    -                    -                   
37th St. Storm Sewer - Boulder to US 85 4,245                218,921            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
Belmont Outfall -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    650,000            
43rd and Central Storm Sewer (Easment, design & Const.) -                    -                    141,009            141,009            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
29th and Anchor Inlet additions -                    -                    75,000              75,000              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
Utility Billing Software -                    1,163                6,188                6,188                -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
36th Street Storm Sewer -                    217,328            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
Street Sweeper -                    -                    50,000              50,000              -                    -                    -                    -                    -                   
Bore across Highway 85 -                    -                    -                    -                    160,000            -                    -                    -                    -                   
36th St Storm Drain- finish 37th St Phase II -                    -                    -                    -                    120,000            -                    -                    -                    -                   
Engineering Specifications Update -                    -                    -                    -                    37,500              -                    -                    -                    -                   
Storm Drainage Total 5,049                1,019,400         296,112            296,112            317,500            770,000            340,000            300,000            650,000            

* Capital is budgeted at 90% of projected ending fund 1,168,782         1,498,190         862,244            878,531            839,888            803,405            364,904            318,750            314,057            
    balance after operations.

         

 
 
 
 



 

31 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
Emergency Contingency Fund 

The Emergency Contingency Fund was established in the City Home Rule Charter. The fund is required to have a balance equal to 25% of actual 
General Fund expenditures of the preceding year. At any time the fund is less than this amount, the City Council shall budget and appropriate 
funds, not exceeding 5% of estimated General Fund revenues, until the fund is again equal to 25% of actual General Fund expenditures of the 
preceding year. In 2012, the voters passed a charter change that capped the balance in the fund at $1,000,000.  The City Council must approve 
any expenditure by an ordinance declaring an emergency. The ordinance must be passed by five affirmative votes of the Council. 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       

Revenues
Interest Earnings -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
   Total Revenues -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
   CT

    Transfers In -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total Available Funds -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Transfers Out -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Ending Fund Balance 1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       1,000,000       
   CT

* November 2012 Charter change to cap at $1,000,000

City of Evans Emergency Contingency Fund Long Range Financial Plan

 



 

32 
 

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 

The Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund is administered for the care and maintenance of the cemetery grounds; for the capital improvements necessary 
for upkeep of the cemetery; and for equipment necessary for maintenance of the Evans City Cemetery.  

 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 85,632                88,235                92,753                92,753                20,453                23,153                (49,147)               (46,447)               (43,747)               

Revenues
Charges for Services 2,220                  4,185                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  
Interest Earnings 383                     333                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
   Total Revenues 2,603                  4,518                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  
   CT 2,603                           -                               2,700                           2,700                           2,700                           2,700                           2,700                           2,700                           2,700                           

    Transfers In -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Available Funds 2,603                  4,518                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  

Expenditures
Capital -                     -                     75,000                75,000                -                     75,000                -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures -                     -                     75,000                75,000                -                     75,000                -                     -                     -                     

Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 2,603                  4,518                  (72,300)               (72,300)               2,700                  (72,300)               2,700                  2,700                  2,700                  

Ending Fund Balance 88,235                92,753                20,453                20,453                23,153                (49,147)               (46,447)               (43,747)               (41,047)               
   CT 88,235                         92,753                         

*Capital is budgeted not to exceed 100% of prior year ending unrestricted fund balance

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
CIP Projects 2014-2021 Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
Pave Interior Roads -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     75,000                -                     -                     -                     
Maintenance Building -                     -                     75,000                75,000                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Cemetary Perp Care Fund Total -                      -                      75,000                75,000                -                      75,000                -                      -                      -                      

City of Evans Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund Long Range Financial Plan 



 

33 
 

Fire Impact Fund 

The Fire Impact Fund was established to provide or to assist in providing the financing to acquire, develop, and maintain fire stations and 
apparatus. The fire/rescue impact fees are established annually by the City Council by ordinance and are paid by property owners desiring to 
develop property with improvements. The current fee is in Section 3.20.040 of the City Municipal Code.  

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 236,356               271,678             315,885             315,885             399                    3,586                 3,621                 3,658                 3,694                 

Revenues
Assessments 34,199                 43,172               -                     57,514               -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest Earnings 1,123                   1,035                 2,740                 2,000                 3,186                 36                      36                      37                      37                      
   Total Revenues 35,322                 44,207               2,740                 59,514               3,186                 36                      36                      37                      37                      
   CT 35,322                                44,207                              2,740                                59,514                              3,186                                36                                     36                                     37                                     37                                     

Total Available Funds 35,322                 44,207               2,740                 59,514               3,186                 36                      36                      37                      37                      

Expenditures
Capital -                      -                     -                     375,000             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures -                      -                     -                     375,000             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 35,322                 44,207               2,740                 (315,486)            3,186                 36                      36                      37                      37                      

Ending Fund Balance 271,678               315,885             318,626             399                    3,586                 3,621                 3,658                 3,694                 3,731                 
   CT 271,678                              315,886                            

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Transfer to District -                      -                     -                     375,000             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Capital Total -                      -                     -                     375,000             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

* Capital is budgeted at 90% of projected ending 213,731               245,442             286,763             286,097             3,227                 3,259                 3,292                 3,325                 3,358                 
fund balance after operations

City of Evans Fire Impact Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

 



 

34 
 

Street Impact Fund 

The Street Impact Fund manages the design and construction of the City’s major roadway improvement projects as identified by the City of Evans 
Transportation Plan. Financing priorities are established in the City’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan which is approved on an annual basis by 
the City Council. The current fee is in Section 3.20.040 of the City Municipal Code.  

 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Unrestricted Fund Balance 952,494               1,071,272          1,150,899          1,150,899          340,203             346,962             (3,543,985)         (13,790,515)       (28,340,515)       

Revenues
Assessments 114,072               97,798               -                     229,703             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest Earnings 4,706                   4,205                 4,389                 6,480                 6,759                 9,053                 3,470                 -                     -                     
Grant Revenue -                     462,599             462,599             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
   Total Revenues 118,778               102,004             466,988             698,782             6,759                 9,053                 3,470                 -                     -                     
   CT -                                       -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    -                                    

Total Available Funds 118,778               102,004             466,988             698,782             6,759                 9,053                 3,470                 -                     -                     

Expenditures
Capital -                       22,376               1,509,478          1,509,478          -                     3,900,000          10,250,000        14,550,000        3,800,000          
Total Expenditures -                       22,376               1,509,478          1,509,478          -                     3,900,000          10,250,000        14,550,000        3,800,000          

Transfers Out -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 118,778               79,627               (1,042,490)         (810,696)            6,759                 (3,890,947)         (10,246,530)       (14,550,000)       (3,800,000)         

Unreserved Ending Fund Balance 1,071,272            1,150,899          108,409             340,203             346,962             (3,543,985)         (13,790,515)       (28,340,515)       (32,140,515)       
   CT 1,071,272                            1,150,899                         

Reserved Cash 40,796                 40,796               40,796               40,796               40,796               40,796               40,796               40,796               40,796               

City of Evans Street Impact Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

35 
 

Street Impact Fund 
 
2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

35th Ave - WCR 394 to Hwy 85 -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     7,000,000          -                     -                     
35th Avenue widening Prairie View to 49th -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Traffic Signals -                       -                     250,000             250,000             -                     250,000             -                     250,000             -                     
23rd Ave. - 42nd St. to 49th St. -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     400,000             -                     -                     -                     
St. Vrain Street - 36th Street Improvements -                       -                     172,000             172,000             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
35th Ave. Widening - 37th St. to Prairie View (4 lanes) -                       -                     707,000             707,000             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
35th Ave Bridge - 49th St. to WCR 394 -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     12,000,000        -                     
47th Ave. Widening - 32nd St. to 37th St. (4 lanes) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     750,000             750,000             -                     -                     
49th St. Widening - 47th Ave. to 54th St. Rd. (4 lanes) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     2,300,000          -                     
49th St. Widening - 54th St. Rd. to 35th Ave. (4 lanes) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     600,000             -                     -                     
49th St. Widening - 47th Ave. to 65th Ave. (4 lanes) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     3,800,000          
65th Ave Widening - Design & ROW -                       22,376               380,478             380,478             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
65th Ave Widening - 37th St to 49th St. (4 lanes) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     2,500,000          -                     -                     -                     
65th Ave. Widening - 49th St. to 54 th St. Rd (4lanes) -                       -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     1,900,000          -                     -                     
Street Impact Fund Total -                       22,376               1,509,478          1,509,478          -                     3,900,000          10,250,000        14,550,000        3,800,000          

*Capital is budgeted at 90% of prior year ending unrestricted 
fund balance 857,244               964,145             1,035,809          814,759             97,568               312,266             (3,189,586)         (12,411,464)       (25,506,464)        
 

               



 

36 
 

Park Impact Fund 
 
The Park Impact Fund is administered for the acquisition, development, and improvements to the City’s park system, trail system, and 
miscellaneous park amenities utilizing impact fees collected from building permits for new construction of residential dwellings. The current fee is in 
Section 3.20.040 of the City Municipal Code. 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 1,209,992         1,367,199           1,612,231           1,612,232           1,774,129           1,789,272           1,805,516           1,823,408           1,841,464           

Revenues
Assessments 151,140            239,408              -                     262,634              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest Earnings 6,067                5,624                  12,118                9,263                  15,143                16,243                17,893                18,055                18,234                
Miscellaneous -                   -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
   Total Revenues 157,207            245,032              12,118                271,897              15,143                16,243                17,893                18,055                18,234                
   CT -                            -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Transfers In -                   -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Available Funds 157,207            245,032              12,118                271,897              15,143                16,243                17,893                18,055                18,234                

Expenditures
Capital -                   -                     110,000              110,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures -                   -                     110,000              110,000              -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 157,207            245,032              (97,882)               161,897              15,143                16,243                17,893                18,055                18,234                

Ending Fund Balance 1,367,199         1,612,231           1,514,349           1,774,129           1,789,272           1,805,516           1,823,408           1,841,464           1,859,698           
   CT 1,367,199                 1,612,231                    

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Dante Park - park signage -                   -                     5,000                  5,000                  -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Renissance Park - lighting and signage -                   -                     105,000              105,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      
Park Impact Fund Total -                   -                      110,000              110,000              -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

*Capital is budgeted at 90% of prior year ending 
fund balance 1,088,993         1,230,479           1,451,008           1,451,008           1,461,914           1,610,345           1,624,964           1,641,068           1,657,317           

City of Evans Park Impact Fund Long Range Financial Plan



 

37 
 

Police Impact Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

The Police Protection Services Impact Fund was established to provide the financing required to develop, maintain, and provide Capital 
Facilities for police protection services. The police protection services fees are established annually by the City Council by ordinance and 
are paid by property owners desiring to develop property with improvements. The current fee is in Section 3.20.040 of the City 
Municipal Code.    
 

2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Budget Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance -                     -                     11,517                11,517                11,517                11,517                11,517                

Revenues
Assessments -                     11,517                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Interest Earnings -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Miscellaneous -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
   Total Revenues -                     11,517                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
   CT -                               11,517                         -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Transfers In -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Available Funds -                     11,517                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Expenditures
Capital -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Total Expenditures -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures -                     11,517                -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Ending Fund Balance -                     11,517                11,517                11,517                11,517                11,517                11,517                
   CT

City of Evans Police Impact Fund Long Range Financial Plan

 



 

38 
 

Conservation Trust Fund 

The Conservation Trust Fund is comprised of funds distributed quarterly from the Colorado State Lottery. Funds are utilized for the development 
and maintenance of new conservation sites, or capital improvement, or maintenance for recreational purposes on public sites in accordance with 
Colorado Revised Statutes.  

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 321,517            513,606            465,515            465,515            464,015            566,097            760,644            958,067            1,158,378         

Revenues
Intergovernmental 187,298            187,687            188,000            188,000            190,000            192,000            194,000            196,000            198,000            
Interest Earnings/Misc Revenue 4,791                2,095                1,203                2,500                2,082                2,547                3,423                4,311                5,213                
   Total Revenues 192,089            189,782            189,203            190,500            192,082            194,547            197,423            200,311            203,213            
   CT 192,089                    189,782                    189,203                    190,500                    192,082                    194,547                    197,423                    200,311                    203,213                    

    Transfers In -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Available Funds 192,089            189,782            189,203            190,500            192,082            194,547            197,423            200,311            203,213            

Expenditures
Supplies & Services -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Asset Management -                   87,491              177,000            177,000            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital -                   150,383            15,000              15,000              90,000              -                   -                   -                   -                   
Total Expenditures -                   237,873            192,000            192,000            90,000              -                   -                   -                   -                   

Transfers Out -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 192,089            (48,091)            (2,797)              (1,500)              102,082            194,547            197,423            200,311            203,213            

Ending Fund Balance 513,606            465,515            462,718            464,015            566,097            760,644            958,067            1,158,378         1,361,591         
   CT 513,606                    465,515                    

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
Irrigation Controllers - update to web based  -                   150,383            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Riverside Park Land -                   -                   15,000              15,000              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Village Park Tennis Court Resurface -                   -                   -                   -                   90,000              
Conservation Trust Fund Total -                   150,383            15,000              15,000              90,000              -                   -                   -                   -                   

* Capital is budgeted at 90% of projected 
ending fund balance after operations 462,245            554,307            429,946            431,113            590,487            684,580            862,260            1,042,541         1,225,432         

City of Evans Conservation Trust Fund Long Range Financial Plan 



 

39 
 

Refuse Collection Fund 

The Refuse Collection Fund is a special revenue fund established to account for expenses and revenues related to the provision of trash collection 
and recycling services to the residents of Evans. The refuse collection program also includes cleanup programs conducted in the spring and fall of 
each year.  

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 342,126       369,571       419,475       419,475       426,433       422,936       444,318       465,904       487,533       

Revenues
License & Permits 800              1,200           800              800              800              800              800              800              800              
Charges for Services 652,945       661,282       657,060       657,060       659,880       702,180       702,180       702,180       702,180       
Grants 18,297         6,144           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Misc 1,755           1,575           -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Interest Earnings 1,438           1,551           3,752           3,752           4,264           4,229           4,443           4,659           4,875           
   Total Revenues 675,235       671,752       661,612       661,612       664,944       707,209       707,423       707,639       707,855       
   CT 675,235              671,752              661,612              661,612              664,944              707,209              707,423              707,639              707,855              

Total Available Funds 675,235       671,752       661,612       661,612       664,944       707,209       707,423       707,639       707,855       

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 604,409       588,907       621,573       621,573       635,194       650,467       650,467       650,628       -              
Disaster Response 10,626         -              -              -              -              -              -              -              -              
Total Expenditures 615,035       588,907       621,573       621,573       635,194       650,467       650,467       650,628       -              

Transfers Out 32,755         32,941         33,081         33,081         33,247         35,360         35,371         35,382         35,393         

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 27,445         49,904         6,958           6,958           (3,497)          21,382         21,585         21,629         672,463       

Ending Fund Balance 369,571       419,475       426,433       426,433       422,936       444,318       465,904       487,533       1,159,995    
   CT 369,571              419,475              

Target Reserve - 3 months        153,759        147,227        155,393        155,393        158,799        162,617        162,617        162,657                  -   

Available Funds 215,812       272,248       271,040       271,040       264,137       281,701       303,287       324,876       1,159,995    
                                                                                        

City of Evans Refuse Collection Fund Long Range Financial Plan 

 



 

40 
 

Capital Project and Trust Funds  

Capital Projects - Street Fund 

The Capital Projects – Streets Fund manages the City’s major assets such as roadways, alleys, and public rights-of-way through the on-going 
maintenance and repair of existing assets and the construction of new assets. Priorities are established in the City’s five-year Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) which is approved on an annual basis by the City Council.  

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 540,342            1,534,688         2,480,535         2,480,535         169,169            421,983            (2,899,176)       (2,673,554)       (2,446,933)       

Revenues
Intergovernmental 747,775            835,004            4,062,327         4,062,327         685,313            688,841            685,622            686,622            687,622            
Grant Revenue - FEMA 81,432              33,276              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
   Total Revenues 829,207            868,280            4,062,327         4,062,327         685,313            688,841            685,622            686,622            687,622            
   CT 829,207                    868,280                    4,062,327                 4,062,327                 685,313                    688,841                    685,622                    686,622                    687,622                    

    Transfers In 757,100            1,200,929         600,000            600,000            600,000            600,000            600,000            600,000            600,000            

Total Available Funds 1,586,307         2,069,209         4,662,327         4,662,327         1,285,313         1,288,841         1,285,622         1,286,622         1,287,622         

Expenditures
Supplies & Services 203,638            294,298            191,754            191,754            190,000            190,000            190,000            190,000            -                   
Disaster Response (9,087)              139,927            360,073            360,073            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital Improvement 397,410            689,137            6,421,866         6,421,866         842,500            4,420,000         870,000            870,000            870,000            
Total Expenditures 591,961            1,123,362         6,973,693         6,973,693         1,032,500         4,610,000         1,060,000         1,060,000         870,000            

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 994,346            945,847            (2,311,366)       (2,311,366)       252,813            (3,321,159)       225,622            226,622            417,622            

Ending Fund Balance 1,534,688         2,480,535         169,169            169,169            421,983            (2,899,176)       (2,673,554)       (2,446,933)       (2,029,311)       
   CT 1,534,688                 2,480,535                 

City of Evans Capital Projects - Streets Long Range Financial Plan 

 



 

41 
 

Capital Projects – Streets Fund Long Range Financial Plan  

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
  Actual Actual Budget V3 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
11th Ave. & US 34 Improvements -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   150,000            -                   -                   -                   
37th St. Widening  - 47th to 65th (4 lanes) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   3,200,000         -                   -                   -                   
Bridge Rehabilitation Funds -                   -                   59,000              59,000              35,000              35,000              35,000              35,000              35,000              
Concrete Replacement 74,548              500                   75,000              75,000              75,000              75,000              75,000              75,000              75,000              
Evans Ditch Bikepath - Grant Funded -                   -                   118,888            118,888            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Misc. Street Resurfacing (Per PMS) 289,206            360,576            600,000            600,000            680,000            680,000            680,000            680,000            680,000            
35th Ave. Widening - 37th St. to Prairie View (4 lanes) 1,052                61,419              1,732,490         1,732,490         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Traffic Signal - 37th St. & 47th Ave. (Replace Temp.) -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   200,000            -                   -                   -                   
Roadway Landscaping -                   -                   30,000              30,000              -                   30,000              30,000              30,000              30,000              
Street Lighting -                   -                   100,000            100,000            -                   50,000              50,000              50,000              50,000              
65th Avenue Widening -                   -                   1,800,000         1,800,000         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
US 85 Improvements -                   7,350                13,650              13,650              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
US 85 Landscaping 29,369              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
US 85 Access Control @ 31st St. - Grant Funded -                   -                   972,300            972,300            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
US 85 Access Control @ 37th St. - Grant Funded 3,235                -                   820,538            820,538            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
36th Street  Storm Sewer Road Repairs -                   259,292            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Street Sweeper -                   -                   100,000            100,000            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Engineering Specifications Update -                   -                   -                   -                   52,500              -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital Projects - Streets Total 397,410            689,137            6,421,866         6,421,866         842,500            4,420,000         870,000            870,000            870,000            

* Capital is budgeted at 90% of projected ending 1,665,599         2,822,756         5,931,932         5,931,932         1,138,034         1,368,742         (1,623,199)       (1,419,239)       (1,214,380)       
fund balance after operations, excluding grant funding  



 

42 
 

 
Capital Projects – Parks Fund 
 

The Capital Projects – Parks Fund manages the City’s major assets such as parks and major parks infrastructure through the ongoing maintenance 
and repair of existing assets and the construction of new assets. Priorities are established in the City’s five-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
which is approved on an annual basis by the City Council. 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance -                   1,148,006         1,116,484         1,116,484         723,417            2,510                2,510                2,510                2,510                

Revenues
Grant Revenune - FEMA 52,273              176,812            1,655,148         1,655,148         8,801,351         -                   -                   -                   -                   
   Total Revenues 52,273              176,812            1,655,148         1,655,148         8,801,351         -                   -                   -                   -                   
   CT 52,273                      176,812                    1,655,148                 1,655,148                 8,801,351                 -                            -                            -                            -                            

    Transfers In 1,250,000         -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Total Available Funds 1,302,273         176,812            1,655,148         1,655,148         8,801,351         -                   -                   -                   -                   

Expenditures
Disaster Recovery 154,267            17,612              -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Professional Services 32,947              35,000              35,000              35,000              -                   -                   -                   -                   
Capital Improvement -                   157,775            2,013,215         2,013,215         9,487,258         -                   -                   -                   -                   
Total Expenditures 154,267            208,334            2,048,215         2,048,215         9,522,258         -                   -                   -                   -                   

Excess Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 1,148,006         (31,522)            (393,067)          (393,067)          (720,907)          -                   -                   -                   -                   

Ending Fund Balance 1,148,006         1,116,484         723,417            723,417            2,510                2,510                2,510                2,510                2,510                
   CT 1,148,006                 1,116,484                 

2014-2021 Capital Improvement Plan 2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget V2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Preliminary Design 20% 142,916            
Design Refinement (50%) 14,859              359,142            359,142            
Final Design 100% 654,073            654,073            
Park Construction 1,000,000         1,000,000         8,837,258         
Trail Construction 650,000            
Capital Projects - Parks Total 157,775            2,013,215         2,013,215         9,487,258         -                   -                   -                   -                   

City of Evans Capital Projects - Parks Long Range Financial Plan 



 

43 
 

Cemetery Endowment Fund – Trust Fund 

The Cemetery Endowment Fund is a trust fund established to earn interest on a restricted corpus. The interest earned is utilized for the general 
care and maintenance, capital improvements, and equipment acquisition for the maintenance of the Cemetery.  

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Beginning Fund Balance 45,519                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                

Revenues
Investment Income 3,948                  1,471                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  
   Total Revenues 3,948                  1,471                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  
   CT -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               -                               

    Transfers In -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Total Available Funds 3,948                  1,471                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  

Expenditures
Culture, Parks & Recreation -                     1,471                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  
Total Expenditures -                     1,471                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  6,000                  

Transfers Out -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Excess Revenue Over (Under) 
Expenditures 3,948                  -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Ending Fund Balance 49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                49,467                
   CT 49,467                         47,467                         

**$48,000 restricted corpus

City of Evans Cemetery Endowment Fund Long Range Financial Plan 



 

44 
 

Attachments 
Attachment A 2017 Budget Summary 

Fund/Department  Revenue Wages
Supplies & 
Services

Asset 
Management Transfers Debt Capital Miscellaneous1    Net Impact

General Fund
General Government 11,223,792     2,129,340       1,752,942       37,500            892,379          -                 -                 26,000                  
Community Development -                 530,834          176,153          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       
Public Safety -                 4,071,988       286,295          119,689          -                 -                 -                 479,713                
Public Works -                 851,537          629,738          135,435          -                 -                 -                 -                       
Culture, Parks & Recreation -                 795,303          528,784          44,500            -                 -                 -                 -                       

Total General Fund 11,223,792     8,379,002       3,373,912       337,124          892,379          -                 -                 505,713                (479,580)         
Emergency Contingency -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       -                 
Cemetery Perpetual Care 2,700              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       2,700              
Fire Impact 3,186              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       3,186              
Street Impact 6,759              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       6,759              
Parks Impact 15,143            -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       15,143            
Police Impact -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       -                 
Conservation Trust 192,082          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 90,000            -                       102,082          
Refuse Collection 664,944          -                 635,194          -                 (33,247)           -                 -                 -                       (3,497)            
Capital Projects  - Streets 685,313          -                 190,000          -                 600,000          -                 842,500          -                       252,813          
Capital Projects  - Parks 8,801,351       -                 35,000            -                 -                 -                 9,487,258       -                       (720,907)         
Water 4,991,084       178,182          3,400,610       -                 (766,659)         156,579          1,220,961       -                       (731,907)         
Waste Water 3,508,654       463,292          434,227          39,000            (496,324)         835,074          322,500          -                       918,237          
Storm Drainage 507,421          -                 40,000            -                 (196,149)         -                 317,500          -                       (46,228)           
Cemetery Trust 6,000              -                 6,000              -                 -                 -                 -                 -                       -                 
TOTAL CITY 30,608,429     9,020,476       8,114,943       376,124          -                 991,653          12,280,719     505,713                (681,199)         

1) $26,000 flood & recovery expenditures, $479,713 transfer out to the Evans Fire Protection District per IGA  

 

 



 

45 
 

Attachment B Revenue and Expense Trends 

Year -  Revenue  Personnel  Supplies & Services  Asset Management  Debt  Capital  Miscellaneous Net Impact *
2014 25,855,217       6,964,871           9,375,188                 328,082                  570,946            5,282,048         3,588,335           (254,253)        
2015 27,425,656       8,308,162           7,731,291                 796,568                  569,055            4,794,887         6,999,445           (1,773,752)     
2016 23,905,356       8,514,411           8,004,200                 982,220                  561,082            5,703,491         748,929              (608,977)        
2017 30,608,429       9,020,476           8,114,943                 376,124                  991,653            12,280,719       505,713              (681,199)        
2018 22,933,490       9,370,789           8,322,195                 710,632                  994,878            19,438,000       491,706              (16,394,710)   
2019 23,527,773       9,682,762           8,664,776                 967,974                  2,589,866         18,395,000       503,998              (17,276,603)   
2020 24,017,737       10,087,229         8,878,599                 529,267                  2,573,198         26,610,000       516,598              (25,177,154)   
2021 24,521,218       10,319,860         8,999,399                 610,311                  2,574,085         7,420,000         529,513              (5,931,950)     

Does not include intrafund transfers

* A negative net impact indicates spending will occur from reserves and savings accumulated in prior years rather than current year revenue.

Revenue in 2017 was noticably higher due to an increase in revenue received from oil & gas related sales tax, as well as remittances from the State Severance Tax and Federal Mineral Lease Income.

 16,250,000

 18,250,000

 20,250,000

 22,250,000

 24,250,000

 26,250,000

 28,250,000

 30,250,000

 32,250,000

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Revenue Trends

29%

26%

1%3%

39%

2%

2017 City Expenditures

Personnel

Supplies & Services

Asset Management

Debt

Capital

Miscellaneous

 



 

46 
 

Attachment C Summary of Personnel Positions 

The following summary is to provide information regarding the number of employees by department. This summary reflects the number of 
benefited employees in the City. Part time, non-benefited employees are not included here, but are included in the totals on Attachment D, which 
accurately reflects the total personnel expense for the City. 

 

 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
City Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Deputy City Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Communications Manager - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
IT Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
IT Support Analyst 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
GIS Analyst 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
City Clerk 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Customer Service Unit 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 
HR/Risk Management Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Administrative Specialist 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
HR Analyst 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Safety & Risk Mgmt. Specialist - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Finance Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Accountant 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Sales Tax Administrator 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Assistant City Attorney - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 17 19 20 20 20 20 20 20 

  
Personnel Highlights 

• 2014 reflects the reclassification of 1 Assistant to the City Manager to an Administrative Specialist 
• 2014 reflects the reclassification of 1 Accounting Tech to 1 Sales Tax Administrator 
• 2014 reflects the reclassification of 2 part-time Customer Service Administrators to 1 full-time Customer Service Administrator 
• 2015 reflects the addition of a Communications Manager and a Safety & Risk Specialist 
• 2016 reflects the addition of an Assistant City Attorney 

 

General Government Personnel 



 

47 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Building & Development Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Building Inspector - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
City Planner - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Community Development Tech 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Code Enforcement Officer 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Economic Development Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

 
 
Personnel Highlights 

• 2015 reflects the addition of a Building Inspector and a City Planner 
 

 
 
 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Police Chief 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Police Officers 32 35 35 35 35 35 35 35 
Police Admin 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Municipal Court Clerk 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Community Service Tech - - 1 1 1 1 1 1 
 36 39 40 40 40 40 40 40 

 
Personnel Highlights 

• 2014 reflects the addition of 2 sworn Police Officers       
• 2015 reflects the addition of 3 sworn Police Officers 
• 2016 reflects the addition of 1 Community Service Tech 

 
 

Public Safety Personnel 

Community Development Personnel 
 
 



 

48 
 

 
 
 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Public Works and 
Community Development 
Director 

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Engineers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
Manager 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
Construction Inspector/ 
Utility Locator - 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 
 
Personnel Highlights 

• 2015 reflects the addition of a Construction Inspector/ Utility Locator 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Personnel Highlights 

• 2014 reflects the addition of 1 Facility Maintenance position  
• 2015 reflects the addition of 1 Technician 
• 2016 reflects the addition of 1 Technician 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Recreation Director 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 1 2 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Facility Maintenance Tech 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Recreation Coordinator 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 

 8 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Public Works Personnel 

Parks & Recreation Personnel 



 

49 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
General Government 17 19 20 20 20 20 20 20 
Community Development 4 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 
Public Safety 36 39 40 40 40 40 40 40 
Public Works 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 
Culture, Parks, Rec 8 9 10 10 10 10 10 10 
 74 83 86 86 86 86 86 86 

 
 

 
 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 
 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

 
 
 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
Superintendent 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Foreman 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Technician 3 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 
 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

 
 
 
 

 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 
General Fund 74 83 86 86 86 86 86 86 
Water Works Fund 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
Waste Water Fund 5 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 
 82 92 95 95 95 95 95 95 

General Fund Personnel by Department 
 

Water Fund Personnel 
 
 
 
 

Waste Water Fund Personnel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total City of Evans Personnel 
 



 

50 
 

Attachment D Summary of Personnel Expenditures  

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

General Government
Regular 1,306,219           1,757,073           1,921,520           2,023,424           2,087,318           2,153,213           2,221,173           2,291,260           
Over Time 1,159                 433                    -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Part Time 59,519               28,328               101,443             105,916             110,587             115,464             120,556             125,873              

Community Development
Regular 308,412             377,670             486,048             514,481             530,853             547,743             565,168             583,145              
Part Time 16,254               32,927               15,662               16,353               17,074               17,827               18,613               19,434               

Public Safety
Police & Muni Court

Regular 3,021,327           2,964,958           3,435,466           3,956,625           4,082,656           4,212,684           4,346,836           4,485,241           
Over Time 72,748               144,405             83,343               87,019               90,856               94,863               99,046               103,414              
Part Time 19,812               77,579               27,147               28,344               29,594               30,899               32,261               33,684               

Public Works
Regular 689,503             804,221             808,787             851,537             878,957             907,259             936,473             966,627              
Over Time -                     9,187                 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     
Part Time -                     9,646                 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

Culture, Parks & Rec
Regular 603,938             642,180             496,686             491,035             516,643             543,077             570,361             598,524              
Over Time 2,477                 3,584                 4,700                 4,700                 4,700                 4,700                 4,700                 4,700                 
Part Time 22,150               34,818               299,569             299,569             299,569             299,569             299,569             299,569              

Disaster Response
Regular 359,071             293,824             232,940             -                     -                     -                     -                     -                     

General Fund Total 6,482,589           7,180,833           7,913,311           8,379,002           8,648,806           8,927,297           9,214,756           9,511,471           

Regular 171,285             166,749             172,461             172,765             183,675             189,552             195,618             201,878              
Over Time 3,847                 6,745                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 

Water Fund Total 175,132             173,494             177,878             178,182             189,092             194,969             201,035             207,295              

Regular 296,928             343,426             417,805             457,875             472,793             488,191             504,085             520,491              
Over Time 10,221               11,646               5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 5,417                 

Waste Water Fund Total 307,149             355,072             423,222             463,292             478,210             493,608             509,502             525,908              

TOTAL WAGES 6,964,871           7,709,400           8,514,411           9,020,476           9,316,107           9,615,875           9,925,293           10,244,674         
9% 11% 10% 6% 3% 3% 3% 3%

** All positions are budgeted in the category they spend the majority of their time.  



 

51 
 

Attachment E Summary of Supplies and Services by Program 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

GENERAL FUND
GENERAL GOVERNMENT
City Council 227,597          204,989          112,943          112,943          97,943            97,943            100,392          102,902          105,474          

City Council Projects -                 21,124            21,124            21,124            21,124            21,652            22,193            22,748            
ESTIP 209,958          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 

City Manager 81,923            97,388            113,147          113,147          98,147            98,147            100,600          103,115          105,693          
City Clerk 20,201            36,002            29,398            29,398            24,398            24,398            25,008            25,633            26,274            
HR / Risk Mgr 423,206          491,158          508,846          508,846          516,596          530,096          543,349          556,932          570,856          
IT 335,352          360,633          211,199          211,199          323,225          316,725          324,643          332,759          341,078          
Customer Service Unit 35,047            23,629            40,415            40,415            40,415            40,415            41,425            42,461            43,522            
Elections 17,506            30,000            30,000            -                 30,000            -                 30,600            -                 
Finance 142,083          125,686          570,451          570,451          500,451          500,451          506,706          513,040          519,453          
Public Facilities 192,398          232,528          130,644          130,644          130,644          130,644          133,910          137,258          140,689          
Flood Disaster Recovery 67,736            44,750            44,750            26,000            -                 -                 -                 -                 
GG TOTAL S&S 1,895,229       1,639,749       1,812,916       1,812,916       1,778,942       1,789,942       1,797,684       1,866,893       1,875,787       

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Community Development 14,296            11,450            20,116            20,116            20,116            20,116            20,618            21,134            21,662            
Economic Development 241,967          410,698          240,556          240,556          69,355            69,355            71,089            72,866            74,688            
Building Inspection 52,151            30,218            9,011             9,011             9,011             9,011             9,236             9,467             9,704             
Neighborhood Services 13,780            82,893            77,671            77,671            77,671            77,671            79,613            81,603            83,643            
CD TOTAL S&S 322,194          535,259          347,354          347,354          176,153          176,153          180,557          185,071          189,697          

PUBLIC SAFETY
Municipal Court 63,498            52,941            40,498            40,498            40,498            40,498            41,510            42,548            43,611            
Police 266,806          321,975          241,138          241,138          245,797          245,797          251,942          258,241          264,697          
PS TOTAL S&S 330,304          374,916          281,635          281,635          286,295          286,295          293,452          300,788          308,308           

 
 

 



 

52 
 

 
 
 

2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

PUBLIC WORKS
Maint of Condition 434,456          484,225          263,476          263,476          290,181          290,181          297,436          304,872          312,493          
Engineering 11,702            13,671            16,826            16,826            19,926            19,926            20,425            20,935            21,459            
Fleet 194,336          175,308          241,647          241,647          261,647          261,647          268,188          274,893          281,765          
PW Administration 24,941            40,947            81,736            81,736            57,984            57,984            59,433            60,919            62,442            
PW TOTAL S&S 665,436          714,151          603,685          603,685          629,738          629,738          645,481          661,619          678,159          

CULTURE, PARKS & REC
Rec Administration 1,342             11,256            11,354            11,354            11,354            11,354            11,638            11,929            12,227            
Recreation 80,883            84,495            105,328          105,328          105,328          105,328          107,962          110,661          113,427          
Senior Citizens 51,168            66,821            84,494            84,494            84,494            84,494            86,607            88,772            90,991            
Museum 6,794             -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Aquatics 20,610            18,989            26,079            26,079            15,000            15,000            15,375            15,760            16,154            
Parks 86,519            131,519          116,174          116,174          116,174          116,174          117,626          119,096          120,585          
Cemetery 1,885             3,695             3,400             3,400             3,324             3,324             3,407             3,492             3,579             
Forestry 13,753            26,454            22,941            22,941            22,652            22,652            23,219            23,799            24,394            
Library 25,415            109,753          220,457          220,457          170,457          170,457          174,718          179,086          183,564          
CPR TOTAL S&S 288,369          452,982          590,228          590,228          528,784          528,784          540,551          552,594          564,921          

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 3,501,531       3,717,058       3,635,817       3,635,817       3,399,911       3,410,911       3,457,726       3,566,965       3,616,872       
CT to LRP 3,501,531                3,717,058                3,635,817                3,635,817                3,399,911                3,410,911                3,457,726                3,566,965                3,616,872                

1) Supplies and services do not include asset management, capital or debt payments.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

53 
 

 
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

WATER FUND 
FIXED / BASE RATE FUNDED
Base / Service Available 234,101          167,890          290,626          290,626          320,626          343,642          352,233          361,039          370,065          
Radio & Meter Replacement (debt funded) 482,554          679,137          126,384          126,384          -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Non Potable 17,621            -                 198,561          198,561          198,561          203,525          208,614          213,829          219,175          
Irrigation 47,204            34,954            55,977            55,977            55,977            57,377            58,811            60,282            61,789            
Assessments 163,681          65,992            -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
FIXED / BASE TOTAL S&S 945,161          947,973          671,549          671,549          575,165          604,544          619,658          635,149          651,028          

VARIABLE RATE FUNDED
Consumption 2,352,078       2,531,019       2,595,556       2,595,556       2,777,245       2,832,790       2,889,446       2,947,235       3,006,180       
Disaster Recovery 53,063            -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 
Conservation -                 -                 146,745          146,745          (2,632)            (3,065)            (3,268)            2,955             (3,151)            
VARIABLE TOTAL S&S 2,405,141       2,531,019       2,742,301       2,742,301       2,774,613       2,829,726       2,886,178       2,950,190       3,003,028       

CIP / TAP FEE FUNDED
Water Meters / Misc 10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            10,000            
Professional Services 56,452            44,458            133,781          133,781          40,831            41,852            42,898            43,971            45,070            
CIP /TAP FEE TOTAL S&S 56,452            44,458            143,781          143,781          50,831            51,852            52,898            53,971            55,070            

TOTAL Water Fund 3,406,754       3,523,449       3,557,631       3,557,631       3,400,610       3,486,122       3,558,734       3,639,310       3,709,126       

WASTE WATER FUND

Operations 395,265          315,308          434,227          434,227          434,227          537,694          759,825          782,620          782,620          

STORM DRAINAGE FUND

Operations 20,669            99,457            208,937          208,937          40,000            41,000            42,025            43,076            44,153             
 



 

54 
 

 

Attachment F Summary of Supplies and Services by Fund 

 
2014 2015 2016 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Actual Budget Rev #2 Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

General Fund 3,501,531   3,717,058   3,635,817   3,635,817   3,399,911   3,410,911   3,457,726   3,566,965   3,616,872   
Refuse Collection 604,409      588,907      621,573      621,573      635,194      650,467      650,467      650,628      650,628      
CIP -  Streets 203,638      294,298      191,754      191,754      190,000      190,000      190,000      190,000      190,000      
CIP -  Parks -             32,947        35,000        35,000        35,000        -             -             -             -             
Water 3,406,754   3,523,449   3,557,631   3,557,631   3,400,610   3,486,122   3,558,734   3,639,310   3,709,126   
Waste Water 395,265      315,308      434,227      434,227      434,227      537,694      759,825      782,620      782,620      
Storm Drainage 20,669        99,457        208,937      208,937      40,000        41,000        42,025        43,076        44,153        
Cemetery Trust Fund -             -             6,000          6,000          6,000          6,000          6,000          6,000          6,000          
TOTAL CITY S&S 8,132,265   8,571,423   8,690,940   8,690,940   8,140,942   8,322,193   8,664,776   8,878,598   8,999,399    

 



 

55 
 

Attachment G Summary of Debt 
 

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Actual Projected Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected

Riverside Cultural Center Lease 289,482       289,170        2,100,000  -            -            -            -            -            
General Fund - Total 289,482       289,170        2,100,000  -            -            -            -            -            
Water Fund 90,789         156,579        156,579     156,579     156,579     156,579     156,579     156,579     
Waste Water Fund 108,626       107,048        234,175     835,074     838,299     2,433,287  2,416,619  2,417,506  
Total Annual Obligation 488,897       552,797        2,490,754  991,653     994,878     2,589,866  2,573,198  2,574,085  

Additions Retirements

Wastewater CWRPDA Notes 217,206     -            96,874       120,332     
Wastewater 2016 CWRPDA 39,854,188 -            10,000       39,844,188 
Water CWRPDA Note 1,096,053  -            156,579     939,474     
Total Obligation 41,167,447 -            263,453     40,903,994 

Description of Debt

Water CWRPDA Note: The May 2013 Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority  “CWRPDA”) loan is for $1,500,000. The loan 
does not accrue interest and is payable in semiannual installments beginning May 1, 2014 with a maturity date of November 1, 2023. 

Waste Water CWRPDA Note: The 2016 Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority  “CWRPDA”) loan is for $39,864,188. The 
note is due in semiannual installments beginning August 1, 2016 through August 1, 2038, with a stated interest rate of 1.701%.

Riverside Cultural Center Lease: During 2013, the City entered into a capital lease for the construction of the Riverside Cultural Center. The loan 
principal is $2,575,000. Semiannual interest payments began December 1, 2013, and annual principle payments began December 1, 2014, and will 

run through December 1, 2023. The interest rate on the debt is 2.31%. This debt instrument is scheduled to be paid in full during 2016.                                                                        

Waste Water CWRPDA Notes: The April 1998 Colorado Water Resources & Power Development Authority  “CWRPDA”) loan is for $1,141,617. 
The note is due in semiannual installments beginning February 1, 1999, through August 1, 2018. Interest rates range from 3.7% to 5.375%. The 

November 1998 CWRPDA loan is for $400,000. The note is due in semiannual installments of $15,352 beginning August 1, 1999, through February 
1, 2019. Interest rate on this note is 4.5%.

Summary of Annual Obligations

Balance 
12/31/16

Balance 
12/31/17

Summary of Total Obligations



 

56 
 

Attachment H Asset Management Plan 

 
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Actual Actual Projected Budget Projected Projected Projected Projected
General Fund - Administration 36,998         16,571         221,510       37,500         40,045         108,916       45,299         29,547         
General Fund - Public Works -               136,684       167,000       42,435         196,730       295,486       196,691       337,653       
General Fund - Police 175,690       183,999       244,710       119,689       140,197       224,932       211,333       22,510         
General Fund - Community Dev -               -               -               -               36,050         -               -               -               
General Fund - Facilities 93,000         71,010         95,481         31,689         -               
General Fund - Recreation 26,529         59,090         53,000         44,500         51,500         22,491         9,288           106,361       
General Fund - Total 239,217       396,344       686,220       337,124       535,532       747,306       494,300       496,071       
Conservation Trust -               -               95,000         -               -               -               -               -               
Water Fund -               5,500           133,000       -               149,350       151,709       18,576         78,786         
Waste Water Fund 88,865         52,072         68,000         39,000         25,750         68,959         16,391         35,454         
Total 328,082       453,915       982,220       376,124       710,632       967,974       529,267       610,311       

The City of Evans asset management philosophy can be described as managing assets to minimize the total life cycle cost of owning and operating 
our assets worth $5,000 or more, have a life greater than one year, and have maintenance needs for the next five years, while delivering good quality 
service citizens expect and desire. The goal of our asset management plan is to ensure that the best decisions are being made throughout an asset’s 
useful life to optimize performance, reduce risk of failure, and minimize the cost of operation and maintenance.

In alignment with the City’s asset management philosophy our financial policies state under VI. Capital Planning & Budgeting Policies, Policies, 8. 
Asset Management Plan (AMP)  – The city will develop an AMP that protects investment and minimizes future maintenance and replacement 
costs.  The City will maintain accurate information on the condition, life-span, use and replacement cost of their capital assets to assist in long term 
planning.  The AMP will also indicate future major repairs and their costs, utility costs and other operating costs. a.) Equipment replacement – The 
City will estimate its equipment replacement (items over $1,000 with a life greater than one year) and maintenance needs for the next five years 
and will update this projection each year.  From this projection, a maintenance and replacement schedule will be developed and followed. b.)  Cash 
for equipment – Equipment replacement should be financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.  Equipment should be replaced on a useful life basis 
considering optimum trade-in value and maintenance costs.



 

57 
 

Attachment I Summary of Capital Expenditures 

2014           
Actual

2015            
Actual

2016             
Budget

2016             
Projected

2017        
Budget

2018  
Projected

2019  
Projected

2020  
Projected

2021  
Projected

General Fund 4,537,878     1,205,104     1,267,400     1,267,400     -               250,000        -               5,220,000     516,598        
Parks Impact -               -               110,000        110,000        -               -               -               -               -               
Conservation Trust -               150,383        15,000          15,000          90,000          -               -               -               -               
Cemetery Perpetual Care -               -               75,000          75,000          -               75,000          -               -               -               
Street Impact -               22,376          1,509,478     1,509,478     -               3,900,000     10,250,000    14,550,000    3,800,000     
Fire Impact -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               -               
Capital Projects - Streets 379,410        689,137        6,421,866     6,421,866     842,500        4,420,000     870,000        870,000        870,000        
Capital Projects - Parks -               157,775        2,013,215     2,013,215     9,487,258     -               -               -               -               
Water Works 344,542        368,142        155,944        155,944        1,220,961     9,723,000     6,635,000     5,370,000     1,800,000     
Waste Water 15,169          1,182,570     42,930,622    42,930,622    322,500        300,000        300,000        300,000        300,000        
Storm Drainage 5,049            1,019,400     296,112        296,112        317,500        770,000        340,000        300,000        650,000        
Total 5,282,048     4,794,887     54,794,637    54,794,637    12,280,719    19,438,000    18,395,000    26,610,000    7,936,598      

 

 
 



 

58 
 

Attachment J Intra Fund Transfers and Methods 

The City of Evans maintains several funds based on the use of revenues in each fund. Intra fund transfers are made to reimburse funds for expenses (or 
expenditures in enterprise funds) recognized in separate funds.  Transfers are identified by the fund paying the other fund. 
 

Transfer from General Fund to Emergency Contingency Fund 
2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Budget 

$0 $0 $0 $0 
   
The transfer is required by Section 8.7-1 of the Evans’ Home Rule Charter. Since 2013, the Emergency Contingency Fund is over funded and the General Fund 
will recognize a transfer in from the Emergency Contingency Fund. 
 

Transfer from Refuse Fund to General Fund 
2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Budget 

$32,941 $33,081 $33,081 $33,247 
 

The transfer reimburses the General Fund for the administrative expenditures related to managing the refuse services for residents. The transfer is calculated at 
5% of revenue, or the amount necessary to sustain fund reserve requirements, whichever is less.   
 

  Transfer from Water Fund to General Fund 
2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Budget 

$616,285 $723,106 $733,952 $766,659 
 
The transfer reimburses the General Fund for wages, supplies, and services expended to benefit the Water Fund. This transfer includes a reimbursement based 
on the actual cost of employee’s time working on Water Fund activity.  The following Waste Water and Storm Drainage fund transfers are based on the same 
methods.  

Transfer from Waste Water Fund to General Fund 
2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Budget 

$398,040 $468,515 $475,542 $496,324 
 
 

Transfer from Storm Drainage Fund to General Fund 
2014 Actual 2015 Actual 2016 Budget 2017 Budget 

$126,287 $158,247 $160,620 $196,149 
 



59 

Attachment K 2017 Budget Resolution 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

RESOLUTION NO. 33-2016 

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH FUND, AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE CITY 
OF EVANS, COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING THE 1ST DAY OF JANUARY, 2017 AND ENDING ON THE LAST 
DAY OF DECEMBER, 2017 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, has appointed the City Manager to prepare and submit a proposed 2017 budget to said 
governing body at the proper time; and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager has submitted a proposed 2017 budget to the governing body at October 4, 2016 for its consideration; and 

WHEREAS, upon due notice, published in accordance with the law, said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a 
public hearing was held on October 4, 2016 and interested taxpayers were given the opportunity to file or register objections to said proposed budget; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  That estimated revenues and transfers in for 2017 for each fund are as follows: 
General Fund $12,716,170 
Cemetery Perpetual Care 2,700 
Fire Impact  3,186 
Street Impact         6,759 
Parks Impact     15,143 
Conservation Trust   192,082 
Refuse Collection    664,944 
Capital Projects-Streets   1,285,313 
Capital Projects-Parks 8,801,351 
Waterworks 4,991,084 
Waste Water 3,508,654 
Storm Drainage 507,421 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 



60 

Section 2.   That estimated expenditures and transfers out for 2017 for each fund are as follows: 

General Fund $13,195,749 
Conservation Trust 90,000 
Refuse Collection                668,441 
Capital Projects-Streets       1,032,500 
Capital Projects-Parks         9,522,258 
Waterworks  5,722,991 
Waste Water  2,590,416 
Storm Drainage  553,649 
Cemetery Endowment 6,000 

Section 3.  That the 2017 Budget as submitted, amended, hereinabove summarized by fund, and summarized in Exhibit “A” be and the same is approved 
and adopted as the budget of the City of Evans, Colorado, for the year stated above. 

Section 4.  That the 2017 Budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the Mayor of the City of Evans, Colorado, and made a part of the public 
records of the City of Evans, Colorado. 

PASSED, SIGNED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Evans on this 4th day of     October    , 2016. 

CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 

By:
Mayor 

ATTEST: 
City Clerk 



 

61 
 

Attachment L Financial Policies 

I. Financial Planning Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
A long range plan that estimates revenue and expenditure activity in the City as impacted by regional and national economies is necessary to support the Council and 
community in decisions they make regarding City services.  This planning must recognize the effects of economic cycles on the demand for services and the City's revenues.  
Financial planning should be designed to ensure the delivery of needed services as defined by policy and the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
POLICIES 
The financial planning and subsequent budgeting for all funds shall be based on the following policies: 
 
1.  Five-year plans - The City will prepare annually a five (5) year financial long range plan (LRP) for each fund.  Each plan will include revenues, expenditures and other 
sources and uses with sufficient detail to identify trends and items with major impact. 
 
2. Conservative revenue estimates - Revenue estimates should be prepared on a conservative basis to minimize the possibility that economic fluctuations could imperil 
ongoing service programs during the budget year. 
 
3.  Include contingencies - Expenditure estimates should anticipate contingencies that are foreseeable. 
 
4.  Include asset management plan (AMP) on LRPs -  The five-year AMP plans will include equipment, major maintenance and associated expenses less than $100,000.  
Major renovation or maintenance projects will be identified on long range plans. 
 
5.  Use proven methods - The City will constantly test both its planning methodology and use of planning tools in order to provide information that is timely, accurate and 
widely disseminated to residents and staff.  
 
6. Economy - The City recognizes it is in a complex regional economic system.  The City should have the capacity to evaluate and anticipate changes in both regional and 
national economic systems in order to engage in strategic financial and management planning.  The purpose of these plans will be to allow the Council and residents to 
evaluate the impact of the financial needs of these programs on the regional economy and to coordinate funding needs with all funds. 
 
7. Department responsibilities - Department Directors and the Finance Department will share responsibility for the preparation of financial plans for operations and asset 
management needs.  The City Manager requires a minimum of two reviewers of detailed work sheets used to generate the long range plans.  The Finance Department will 
assist in developing appropriate systems to monitor and update the long range plans. Each department will meet with the Council to approve strategic policy, identify goals, 
and performance measures, at intervals determined by the City Manager.   



 

63 
 

8.  Regular status reports - The Staff will continually update the long range plans when any significant change is anticipated.  The Staff may distribute the long range plans 
to the Council at any time to inform the Council.  The long range plans will be submitted to the Council for approval at least twice a year.  The first update will follow the 
closing of the year and will include a final comparison of actual to budget for the completed year.  The second report will be presented before the presentation of the 
annual budget and will include an update on the current budget and estimates. 
 
9.  Rate structure - The plans must disclose revenue assumptions including rate structures and consumption.  The long range plans will include annual rate increases based 
on inflation unless the Council overrides this direction. 
 
10.  Staffing - The plans will identify staffing levels including justification for any changes. 
 
11. Expenditures - The plans will include expenditures based on the service levels / policies and work load indicators (population, strategy, etc.) approved by the Council. 
 
12.  Reserves - The plans will include reserves for operations, capital and debt service coverage as established in the Financial Policies and / or as required to issue bonds. 
 
II. Budget Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Staff is responsible for preparing, managing and reporting on the City's annual budget.  This function is in compliance with the Home Rule Charter and direction of 
the Council. 
 
A. GENERAL BUDGET POLICIES 
The annual budget will be administered based on the following policies: 
 
1.  The Fiscal Year - The fiscal year of the City is the calendar year, January 1st through December 31st.  The City may adopt budgets for a term of one or more fiscal years. 
The City Manager shall prepare and submit to the City Council on or before the 15th of October of each year a recommended budget covering, at a minimum, the next 
fiscal year. The purpose of the long range plans is to provide the City Council with a continuous budget update.  
 
2.  Present a balanced budget to the Council - The City will pay for all current expenditures with current revenues.  The City will avoid budgetary procedures that balance 
current expenditures at the expense of meeting future years' expenses, such as postponing maintenance and other expenditures, accruing future years' revenues, or rolling 
over short term debt.  The exceptions to this policy would be planned equipment purchases, operating maintenance and capital projects based on accumulated funding 
over the years. 
 
3.  Increase efficiency in all City operations - The City staff will identify programs to increase efficiency in order to provide for "long-term cost savings" to the City.  This may 
include the use of technology, revised organizational structures or other tools which may be identified. Eliminating outdated practices is encouraged.   
 
4.  Promote investment in our future - The City staff, wherever possible, will take a long term view of investments (people and resources) and emphasize quality operations 
which encourage productivity for today and the future. 



 

64 
 

5.  Share resources / services throughout the City -The City staff will explore ways to share staff, training resources and equipment / supplies in order to more effectively 
utilize resources.   
 
6.  Identify funding for new services or service levels - Proposals to add new services or increase existing services will be presented with revenue alternatives to fund or 
subsidize the new service levels.  This includes initial costs and ongoing operations. 
 
7.  Asset Management Plan - The budget will provide adequate maintenance of capital plant and equipment and for their orderly replacement.  
 
8. Employee programs -  The City recognizes that employees are the most valuable asset of the organization and commits to fund this resource appropriately including 
adequate funding for all retirement systems, benefit packages and employee incentive programs including training. 
 
9. Overhead allocations - The budget will include transfers or overhead allocations for expenditures / services in the General Fund that benefit other City funds.  The 
formula for calculating this transfer or overhead allocation may include revenues, staff and or supplies and services.  The formula shall be reviewed annually.   
 
10. Fund Reserves - Cash reserve policies directly relate to fund accounting.  Fund accounting is used as a control device to segregate financial resources and ensure that the 
segregated resources are used for their intended purposes.  Cash reserves provide stability for operations and can cushion the impact to City programs during times of 
economic downturns.  Target reserves are established based on the type of Fund. 
 
a. Operating funds will accumulate and maintain 3 months of operating reserves based on estimated personnel, supplies and services and AMP expenditures.  
Operating reserves allow for the efficient management of cash flow and the opportunity to expand services or fund one time opportunities during the year. The Emergency 
Contingency Fund is required by the City Charter and includes the Colorado Tax Payer Bill of Rights (TABOR) reserves. The General Fund budget must also provide for a 
minimum of one month’s operating reserves. 
 
b. Reserves for capital funds, including impact fee funds, are established based on the budgeting methodology. Capital fund budgets are based on the estimated 
current year ending cash balance for the next year.  Subsequently the reserves are funded by the revenues restricted to capital funds.  Capital projects may include a 
contingency for unexpected expenditures. 
 
c. Debt service fund reserves are based on required debt reserves established when debt is issued. 
 
d. Fund reserves - The first priority of the City will be to maintain target reserves by individual funds based on the above target.  The City Council may identify 
specific reserves on an individual basis.  When a cash reserve deficit exists the City Council will identify the specific fund to offset the deficit and a plan to increase the 
reserve in the fund.  
 
11. Comprehensive Plan - The Financial Plan (Budget) and the Comprehensive Plan are considered the two key tools to provide a vision of the future and a method of 
accomplishing those goals.  Based on the value of these two documents, the City will develop a methodology to cross reference both tools in order to accomplish the goals 
of the community as expressed through the City Council.  The Municipal code should concur with Long Range Financial Plans and the Comprehensive Plan. 
 



65 

12. Grants to non-profit or community organizations -  – The City of Evans may provide grants to qualified non-profit or community organizations that provide services
within the City. A grant may not exceed $10,000 per organization per year. Any funding provided to non-profit or community organizations beyond $10,000 will not be
considered a grant and must follow all other City purchasing policies.

B. BUDGET PREPARATION
Each year the Staff will prepare the annual budget following these policies: 

1. Council direction as goals - It is the responsibility of the Staff to prepare an annual budget to implement policy and accomplish the goals identified.  Staff will identify
the impact to the budget, including alternatives when new service levels are approved by the Council.

2. Budget schedule - The staff will present the Financial Policies by June, Revenue projections in July, Operations in August and Capital in September.  The goal is approval
of the Budget Ordinance and Revenue Rate Resolution at the first regular Council meeting in October which meets the requirements of the City Charter.

3. Revenue policies - The annual budget process is based on the initial revenue projections. Revenue projections will include rate review, annual inflation increases and
frequency estimates. Existing revenue estimates start with a minimum of 75% of the projected trends based on the past year and year-to-date projections.  Volatile and/or
new revenue sources are estimated at a maximum of 50% of the prior year or industry projections.

4. Expenditure policies - Expenditure budget preparation begins with existing staff including any appropriate adjustments for merit and increased cost of benefits. Salary
ranges and benefit packages should be periodically reviewed with comparable communities based on population, general fund tax revenues and comparable market.

Supplies and services should be constantly reviewed for efficiency and effectiveness, eliminating outdated programs and identifying appropriate resident service levels. The 
operating budget should include the Asset Management Plan (AMP) to provide for the most effective delivery of services. 

Debt is funded per required schedules including reserves. 

Capital is budgeted based on priorities, available funding and estimated fund balances. 

5. City Manager budget review - The City Manager will review the details of each proposed budget for efficiency and compliance with Council direction.  Department
Directors may include supplemental budget requests in the annual budget request to the City Manager and ultimately the Council.

6. Budget presentation - The annual budget document will be prepared based on guidelines identified by the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA).
Traditionally, this begins with an introduction to the budget followed by more detailed information presented by fund and department.  The budget introduction includes
a budget message and a highlights section identifying the major issues addressed by the City and how the budget is adopted to address those issues.  Expenditures shall be
presented by categories.

7. Resident participation - The budget process will provide for the full participation of the public and ensure opportunities for public hearings and resident participation.



 

66 
 

8.  Public hearings - Open public hearings at regularly scheduled City Council meetings and work sessions as required by the Home Rule Charter to provide residents 
additional opportunities for input regarding the proposed budget will be held. 
 
9.  State, Charter and other requirements - The City will adopt the budget in accordance to State, Home Rule Charter and other requirements and certify the mill levy to 
the County by the required date. 
 
10. Grants - Groups requesting grants from the City of Evans shall provide a description of services provided within the City; current year organizational budget summary 
identifying revenues and expenditures; financial statement for most recently completed fiscal year; list of Board of Directors and key officers, or active volunteers; and 
demonstration of non-profit status. 
 
11.  Funding subsidy - Funds that receive a subsidy from another fund, in addition to fees and charges or dedicated revenues will include a rationale for the subsidy; and a 
means for determining the annual level of that subsidy or conditions under which the subsidy should be eliminated. 
 
C. BUDGET MANAGEMENT 
Council approval establishes the annual budget limits.  Authority for Departments to work within the limits approved by the Council is essential for efficient management 
of the City.  Departments will not exceed the approved budget without the prior approval of the City Council.  The budget will be managed based on the following policies: 
 
1.  Purchasing and accounting system - The City will maintain a system for monitoring the budget during the fiscal year.  Adequate tools must be available to assist staff in 
managing the budget.  The budget system will provide for budget approval before any expenditure is committed by City staff.  This system shall also provide reports and 
query systems which will be used by the staff to prepare Council reports.   
 
2. Council reports - Staff will prepare monthly reports for Council review. Additional reports will be presented in coordination with the annual budget process and 
financial audit.  The Council report will include information on revenues and expenditures, comparing actual to budget, and performance measures related to service 
levels.  The report shall follow the same format as the budget approval.   
 
3.  Level of approval - The Council will approve specific grants for qualified non-profit or community organizations.   
 
In relationship to Department Budgets the Council will approve: 
 

a. The number of full time positions and dollar amount for total regular staff, temporary staff and overtime by fund and category as defined by the LRPs. 
 

b. The dollar amount for supplies and services for each fund and category as defined by the LRPs.   
 

c. Each specific Capital request including start-up cost and ongoing maintenance. 
 

d. The total of expenditures from each fund including transfers in and out.   
 



 

67 
 

4.  Amending the approved budget - The staff may submit requests to amend the approved budget during the year.  Additional requests will be made only after the staff has 
determined that no savings exists that can be transferred.  Departments will provide information to the City Council during regular Council meetings.  (Departments may 
not expend funds until after the City Council has approved the additional expenditure).  The Finance Department will prepare appropriation ordinances officially 
amending the budget.  Departments may expend funds after City Council approval and before adoption of the appropriation ordinance.  
 

a. Transfers of existing budget - The City Manager or Deputy City Manager may approve transfer of budget between Categories and Departments within a fund. The 
City Council must approve budget transfers between funds in the form of an ordinance. 

 
b. Transfers between categories and programs - Department Directors may request City Manager or Deputy City Manager approval to transfer budget between 

categories (payroll, supplies & services, and capital) within a Department.  The Manager will review requests to ensure compliance with the goals and objectives of 
the annual budget as approved by the City Council.  
 

c. Supplemental appropriation requests - Staff will prepare a prioritized list of one–time supplemental budget requests which will be reviewed by the Finance 
Committee, then presented to the City Council for final approval. 

 
5.  Budget savings - During the budget year, some expenditure savings can be realized by Departments. The City Manager or Deputy City Manager may allow transfers of 
savings to fund other identified needs within the department.    
 
6. Encumbrance of Fixed Expenses - Predictable fixed expenditures will be encumbered on purchase orders in the first month of each year. 
On November 3, 1992, the Citizens of the State of Colorado approved Amendment 1, aka The Tax Payers Bill of Rights (TABOR).  Amendment 1 specifically and 
significantly addresses the following issues: 1) spending limitations (revenues), 2) operating reserves, 3) emergency reserves and 4) debt service.  
 
D. INTERGOVERNMENTAL BUDGETS 
Some costs of the City could be influenced by other governments, either because of duplication of services or mandates imposed by State and Federal governments.   
 
1. Payment for services - The City will budget expenditures for grant-funded programs only after grant award or letter of commitment and only for the amount of grant 
award.  City overhead or "indirect" costs for grant-funded programs will be included in all grant proposals, where permitted.  All grants will be reviewed for long term 
impacts to the City. 
 
2.  Outside involvement - The City will aggressively oppose State or Federal actions that mandate expenditures that the Council considers unnecessary.  The City will 
pursue intergovernmental funding to support the incremental cost of those mandates. 
 
3.  Intergovernmental agreements - The City will work with other governments to identify the jurisdiction most capable and appropriate to provide specific public services. 
When the City cannot transfer responsibility for service delivery, it will consider intergovernmental agreements and contracts for service delivery. 
 
 
 



 

68 
 

 
E. STATE OF COLORADO AMENDMENT 1 
 
On November 3, 1992, the Citizens of the State of Colorado approved Amendment 1, aka The Tax Payers Bill of Rights (TABOR).  Amendment 1 specifically and 
significantly addresses the following On April 5, 1994, the Citizens of Evans approved the following revenue change in compliance with Amendment 1: issues: 1) spending 
limitations (revenues), 2) operating reserves, 3) emergency reserves and 4) debt service. 
 
On April 5, 1994, the Citizens of Evans approved the following revenue change in compliance with Amendment 1: 
 

City of Evans, Colorado 
Amendment One Election Question 

QUESTION #1 - SHALL THE CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO, WITHOUT INCREASING OR ADDING ANY TAXES OF ANY KIND, BE PERMITTED TO COLLECT, RETAIN, AND EXPEND 
THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE CITY’S SALES AND USE TAX, ACCOMMODATIONS TAX, NON-FEDERAL GRANTS, FEES ON FISCAL YEAR SPENDING, INCLUDING WITHOUT 
LIMITATION THE RESTRICTIONS ARTICLE X, SECTION 20 OF THE COLORADO CONSTITUTION, FROM THE DATE OF JANUARY 1, 1993 AND THEREAFTER? 
 
The City will be in compliance with the remaining requirements of Amendment 1 specifically including election, debt and reserve requirements.  Considering the reasons 
behind the original approval of the Tabor Amendment (lack of trust in government), the City shall take an active role in resident participation, communication and 
relationship building with our residents in order to maintain and increase our level of trust and accountability.  The City shall participate in regional and state-wide 
organizations because the actions of other municipalities or levels of government shall influence state-wide legislation which may impact Evans. 
 
III. Accounting, Auditing, & Financial Reporting Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The City will maintain a system of financial management, control and reporting for all operations, departments and funds. This will ensure that overall City goals and 
objectives will be met and will instill confidence in residents that the City is well managed and fiscally sound. 
 
POLICIES 
The Accounting, Auditing and Financial Reporting systems for the City will be based on the following polices: 
 
1. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) - The City will maintain its accounting records and report on its financial condition and results of operations in 

accordance with State and Federal law and regulations, and GAAP. 
 
2. The City will classify governmental fund balances as follows: 

 
Non-spendable - amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in non-spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact.  

 



 

69 
 

Restricted - amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional provisions, charter requirements or enabling legislation or because of 
constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Committed - amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action of the City Council. The City Council is the highest level of decision 
making authority for the City. Commitments may be established, modified, or rescinded only through ordinances or resolutions approved by City Council. 
 
Assigned - amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. Under the City’s 
adopted policy, the City Manager or Deputy City Manager may assign amounts for specific purposes. 
Unassigned - all other spendable amounts. 

 
3. Independent audit - An independent firm of certified public accountants will annually perform a financial and compliance audit of the City's financial statements as 
required by state statute.  Their opinions may be contained in the City's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR), and the Report on Compliance with the Single 
Audit Act of 1984 (if required based on federal funding levels). 
 
4.  Internal auditing - To complete a full range of audit services, the City's Finance Department will supervise performance audits which review cash management, revenues, 
expenditures, purchasing and other areas that impact the City budget. 
 
5. Accounting internal controls - The City will maintain an internal control structure consisting of three elements: 
 

a. Control environment - Consisting of an "overall attitude and awareness of actions" as they influence the City.  The management and staff shall consider all the 
financial implications of decisions, both current and long term. 

 
b. Accounting system - An effective accounting system will result in the 1) identification and recording of all valid transactions, 2) description on a timely basis of the 

type of transaction in sufficient detail to permit proper classification of the transaction for reporting purposes, 3) recording of the transaction in the correct time 
period, and 4) proper presentation of all transactions and related disclosures in the financial statements. 

 
c. Control procedures - Consists of 1) proper authorization of transactions and activities, 2) adequate segregation of duties, 3) adequate documents and records, 4) 

adequate safeguards regarding access and use of assets and records, and 5) independent checks on performance. 
 
A. ACCOUNTING STRUCTURE 
All City funds and operations must work to achieve the City's mission and goals. 
 
1.  Number of funds - The City will minimize the number of funds, Departments, programs and account codes.  The funds will be categorized by standard GAAP 
functional classifications and the creation of new funds will be approved by the City Council. The development of new funds, Departments, programs, and accounts will be 
recommended by the Finance Department and approved by the City Manager or Deputy City Manager. 
 
2.  Statement of purpose - Each fund in the City will have a Statement of Purpose which consists of:   



 

70 
 

 
a. Intent - Purpose(s) of the fund. 

 
b. Revenue restrictions - Source(s) of revenues to the fund and descriptions of restriction. 

 
c. Contingency - Size and use of contingency, if any.  Contingency levels shall be based on the uncertainties associated with the purposes of the fund or project. 

 
d. Reserves - Size and purpose of required reserves.  Required reserves will be based on operating needs or debt needs and prudent management requirements.  

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTING 
Financial reports will provide direction and guidance in several areas; 
 
1. Budgetary comparisons - Comparing actual financial results with the legally adopted budget. 
 
2.  Financial condition and results of operations - Assessing the changes in fund balances as a result of operations. 
 
3. Compliance - Assisting in determining compliance with finance-related laws, rules and regulations. 
 
4. Efficiency and effectiveness - Assisting in evaluating management and staff in efficiency and effectiveness. 
 
5.  Manager reports - The Finance Department will prepare reports at the end of April and each month thereafter identifying the difference between actual and budget for 
revenues and expenditures by fund.  This requirement is also included in the Budget Policies.  Reports will identify the current and projected variance in budget as well as 
progress on performance measures.  These reports will be presented to the City Manager and may be included in Council updates. 
 
C. CHECK CONTROLS 
The City will follow these policies related to check controls and the signing of checks: 
 
1. Payment discounts - The City will take advantage of payment discounts to reduce expenditures when the rate offered is deemed favorable compared to the rate of 
investment income the City is earning on cash. 
 
2. Invoice control - All invoices shall be mailed directly to the Finance Department and the vendor will reference an approved purchase order number. 
 
3. Check preparation - No check will be prepared for approval without an authorized purchase order, compliance with the procurement procedure and adequate budget 
unless specifically identified in these policies. 
 
4.  Check requirements - In most cases the staff will be required to complete the following steps to obtain a check: 
 



 

71 
 

a. Budget - Adequate budget must exist before staff considers a purchase. 
 

b. Requisition - Staff will complete a "requisition" which identifies the vendor, amount, description of purchase, use of items as it relates to the budget (account 
coding), and budget available.  In accordance with established limits, authorized staff, Department Directors, Deputy City Manager, and/or City Manager approve 
requisitions based on efficiency, appropriateness and general financial and management practices. 

 
c. Purchase order - Approved requisitions become purchase orders and only at this time can an order be placed with an "approved vendor".  Vendors must be 

established as legitimate businesses meeting administrative and IRS requirements.   
 

d. Invoices - Invoices are directed first to the Finance Department for entry into the accounting system for cash flow and cash discount reviews. 
 

e. Department approval – After Finance Department entry, invoices are approved by Departments that the items or services received were acceptable.  
 

f. Contracts - Major purchases may require following the procurement procedure (V.14.) which may include Council approval of the contract before a requisition 
can be completed. 

 
5. Check register - The City Manager or Deputy City Manager reviews and approves the check register. 
 
6. Distribute checks - Checks will be mailed following approval.  Staff will copy and distribute to the Council the check register on a monthly basis. 
 
IV. Revenue Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The City must consider its discretionary revenues as a group rather than in isolation.  Both individual revenues and the total package must be viewed in the context of 
broader City goals.  The City must be sensitive to the balance between the need for services and the City's ability to raise fees, charges and taxes to support City services.  As 
much as is possible and feasible, City services that benefit specific users should be paid for by fees and charges to provide maximum flexibility in use of general taxes to meet 
the cost of broader public services. 
 
POLICIES 
Revenues and rates in the LRP and annual budget will be based on the following policies: 
 
1.  Specific use of services - Charges for services that benefit specific users should recover full costs, including all direct costs, indirect costs, depreciation on capital plant and 
equipment, and General Fund overhead.  Departments that impose fees or service charges should prepare and periodically update cost-of-service studies for each such 
service.  Competing City policies may dictate a subsidy of a portion of the costs of such services.  
 
2.  Diversify revenue - The City should strive to diversify its revenues in order to maintain needed services during periods of declining economic activity.  
 



 

72 
 

3.  Recapture investment - The revenue structure should be designed to "recapture" for the City some of the financial benefits resulting from City sponsored programs or 
community investments. 
 
4.  Additional resources - The City will observe the following priorities in obtaining additional resources: 
 

a. Use existing resources efficiently - The City will use as efficiently as possible all existing resources. 
 

b. Collect existing revenues - The City will collect as efficiently as possible the resources to which it is already entitled. The city will minimize receivables and follow an 
aggressive policy of collecting receivables. 

 
c. Revenues are consistent with City goals - The City will seek new resources, consistent with the policies in this document and other City goals. 

 
5.  Consider total revenue mix - The City will review revenue raising proposals in light of its total revenue mix in order to encourage economic sustainability and keep the 
City competitive. 
 

a. City revenues impact - As part of the annual financial forecast or budget process, major revenue generating proposals will contain an evaluation of the impact on 
the community. 
 

b. Total community in review - The evaluation should be based on prior year circumstances and includes all local taxation and fees. 
 

c. Review each five years - At a minimum, such an evaluation shall be made at least once each five years. 
 
6.  Department responsibility - Department Directors will inform the Deputy City Manager or the City Manager of any revenue that varies from budget by 10% in any 
quarter.  Department Directors will provide notice immediately and in the identified reports to the City Manager. 
 
7.  Use proven methods - The City will estimate its annual revenues by an objective, analytical process. 
 
8.  Use five year plans - The City will annually project revenues for the next five years.   
 
9.  Enterprise funds recover costs - The City will set fees, user charges and other revenues for each enterprise fund (Water, Sewer and Storm Drainage) at a level that 
supports the total direct and indirect cost of the activity including operating costs, system expansion, and major maintenance.  Indirect costs include the cost of annual 
replacement needs due to depreciation of capital assets.  Cost related to growth will be paid for by the growth. 
 

a. Water Fund rates consist of base, variable, payment in lieu (PIL), and tap fee revenues. The base rate is established each year based on the annual fixed costs to 
maintain the system. The variable rate is established each year based on the costs to operate the system, i.e. the expenses vary with the level of water treated. PIL 
revenue is reserved for water right acquisition. Tap fee revenue is reserved for system expansion. Interest income is allocated to the category based on cash balance. 
Please note that special attention must be given to funding required reserves as they increase. 



 

73 
 

i. The water variable rate and tiers are established to encourage water conservation and the City Council will receive annual reporting on the specific number of 
customers who exceed tier 1 and tier 2. 

ii. Additionally, the gallons consumed in tiers 2 and 3 should be identified and the corresponding revenue generated from this consumption will be considered 
“water conservation revenue”. 

 
b. The preceding year’s revenue from both water conservation and major maintenance will be appropriated for expenditure once the amount is realized by the City 

Council. The City Manager or Deputy City Manager will report to the City Council projects identified for use of these funds. 
 
10.  Legal requirements - The City will maintain compliance with legal revenue restrictions as identified by voters, for special revenue funds and other restricted revenues. 
 
V.  Operating Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
When the other Financial Policies fail to address a specific issue, general operating policies will be reviewed for direction.  In some cases these policies repeat what has 
already been stated in other areas, but that is only to emphasize the importance and value of that policy.  The City must contain its expenditures to current revenues, 
establish and adequately fund reserves; regularly monitor and report on budget performance, evaluate the fiscal impact of new proposals, operate as efficiently as possible, 
and constantly review City services for appropriateness and effectiveness.  
 
POLICIES 
The City shall follow these operating policies: 
1.  Current operating revenues to pay for current operating expenditures - Current operating revenues will exceed current operating expenditures.  Each City fund budget 
must identify ongoing resources that at least match expected ongoing annual requirements.  One-time cash transfers and ending balances in excess of reserves may be 
applied to reserves or to fund one-time expenditures; they will not be used to fund on-going programs.   
 
2.  Do not restrict revenues - The City will not normally earmark discretionary revenues for specific purposes. This will preserve the ability of the Council to determine the 
best use of available revenues to meet changing service requirements. 
 
3.  Reserves - The City will establish reserves for emergencies, unforeseen needs of a non-recurring nature, operating maintenance, equipment replacement and capital 
projects.  The nature of reserves for specific funds will be spelled out in the Statement of Purpose for each fund.  
 
4.  Financial controls - The Staff will maintain a system of financial monitoring and control.  The major components of this system include: 
 

a. Fiscal Impact Analysis: The Staff will perform a fiscal impact analysis of each significant administrative or legislative action of the City or affiliated agencies.  Where 
appropriate, the analysis will include the impact on the current budget and the LRP. 

 
 b. Financial Accounting System and Periodic Status Reports:  The Staff will prepare financial status reports on the revenues and expenditures to date and estimated 

year-end balance as described in the Budget Policies. 



 

74 
 

 
 c. Budget Controls:  The Finance Department will maintain a system of budgetary controls.  These controls will assist Department directors in identifying actual to 

budget variances.  
 
5.  Review for efficiency and effectiveness - The City will continually review the efficiency and effectiveness of its services to reduce costs and improve service quality.  This 
will include a review of all existing administrative procedures and software to eliminate exception based procedures, policies implemented to avoid compliance, special 
interest projects or programs that benefit less than the majority. 
 

a. The City Manager will review professional services/consulting agreements for efficiency and effectiveness. The evaluation may include staffing options, ongoing 
knowledge of City operations, and consideration for additional services.  

 
6.  Recover cost of providing services - City operations will be run on a basis devoted to increase efficiency of service delivery or recover the cost of providing the service by a 
user fee or charge. 
 
7.  Cash reserves - The City will maintain cash reserves in order to avoid borrowing for general operating purposes. 
 
8.  Year-end accruals - Other than as required by Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, the City will not increase accruals and non-cash enhancements to revenues in 
order to influence fund balances at year end. 
 
9.  Inventories - The City will maintain accurate inventories of capital assets, their condition, life span and cost.   
 
10.  Cash management systems - The Staff will develop, maintain and constantly seek to improve cash management systems which ensure the accurate and timely 
accounting, investment, and security of all cash assets.  All cash received by the City Departments will be deposited daily. 
 
11.  Competition and the service provided - The City must review programs periodically in order to reduce needless competition with other public and private providers 
and to insure the most cost-effective and efficient provision of services.  The City will encourage competition with private providers by comparing the cost to provide 
services. 
 
12.  Resident input - An effective and comprehensive periodic Resident Service needs assessment will be conducted in order to ensure that City service priorities keep pace 
with the dynamic needs of the community.  The result of this needs assessment will be considered for approval by the City Council and may become an integral part of the 
budget and financial planning of the City. 
 
13.  Internal loans - Loans made between funds may be charged interest.  
 
14. Procurement Procedure - No order shall be placed by any City employee, contractor or representative that in any way encumbers or obligates the City until after that 
person has received an approved purchase order.  The City will not be held responsible for any order placed by any employee, contractor or representative if the vendor has 
not received an approved purchase order before delivery of services or goods.  The following policies will provide guidelines for all procurement: 



 

75 
 

 
a. Local preference - When all other factors are the same the City encourages staff to purchase locally provided the cost is within 10% of other bids on items up to 

$25,000.  Factors may include quality of product, quality of service, delivery, maintenance, and other issues which may be relevant. 
 

b. Recycle - The City encourages recycling and environmental concerns.  When all other factors are the same the City encourages staff to purchase recycled products 
provided the cost is within 10% of other bids on items up to $25,000. 
 

c. Purchase order approvals - Requests for purchase orders will be approved in accordance with the predetermined spending limits as outlined by the City Manager.     
i. Exceptions - Purchases within preapproved spending authority may be made through the City purchasing card for items approved in the budget.  The cost of 

processing purchase orders, invoices and checks for payments make it practical that small purchases be exceptions to the procurement procedure. 
ii. Purchases for a single vendor which exceed the purchasing limits on an annual basis must be approved by the City Manager and reported to the City Council. 

 
d. Purchasing Limits - The following purchasing limits are established: 
 

Professional Services 
Amount Approval 

$0 - $10,000 Department Director 
$10,000.01 - $50,000 Department Director 

City Manager 
3 written quotes 

$50,000.01 and up Department Director  
City Manager 
RFP (competitively bid)  
City Council 

 
 

e. Bids and Contracts -The City recognizes the need to use outside sources for providing Professional Services, constructing Capital Projects (vendors & contractors) 
and for providing services for day-to-day operations and maintenance.  The City requires staff to solicit bids for any purchase of goods over $100K and proposals 
for services over $50K per engagement or annually.  This requirement may be waived by the City Manager for ongoing service contracts where the past experience 
related directly to the City is a compelling reason to continue a service contract from year to year. Selection of vendors, contractors or consultants may be based on 
past experience with the City, knowledge of the City and region, philosophy of the nature of the job, availability of time, quality of product, quality of service and 
material, maintenance, warranties, price and such other criteria as deemed appropriate for a particular public project.  Once a vendor has been chosen, the City 
Council shall consider approval of the contract. Sole source purchases may be made if it has been determined that there is only one good or service that can 
reasonably meet the need and there is only one vendor who can provide the good or service. Written justification for the sole source purchase must be retained 
with support for the purchase.  

 

Supplies or Capital Projects 
Amount Approval 

$0 - $10,000 Department Director 
$10,000.01 - 
$100,000 

Department Director  
City Manager 
3 written quotes 

$100,000.01 and up  Department Director  
City Manager  
RFP (competitively bid) 
City Council 



 

76 
 

g. When an invitation for bid (goods over $100,000) or request for proposal (services over $50,000) is required, a notice will be published in a local newspaper within 
45 days and not less than 10 days from the bid deadline. The request shall include an adequate description of the scope of work to be completed, any specifics 
which may be required of the vendor, including the amount of any bid bond, all contractual terms, and conditions applicable to the public project. Bids shall be 
opened publicly at the time and place designated in the invitation for bids. The amount of each bid and such other relevant information as may be specified by 
rules, together with the name of each bidder, shall be entered on a record and open to public inspection. After the time of the award, all bids and requests for 
proposal documents shall be open to public inspection.  The City shall not be obligated to select the lowest bidder, but shall select based on the established criteria 
in the invitation to bid or request for proposal. Bidders may be disqualified for past failure to follow proper change order processes.  The City will use electronic 
means (i.e. internet, email, etc.) to inform potential vendors and may use technology to improve transparency and purchasing efficiencies for the City. All available 
means for advertising the invitation to bid shall be used to the extent possible, to encourage full and open competition.  
When advertising for proposals with federal funding, guidance will be followed in CFR200.319 to ensure proper competition of project awards is encouraged. This 
also entails, for example, taking necessary affirmative steps to assure that the minority businesses, women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are 
used when possible.  

 
f. Emergencies - In the event of natural disasters, accidents or other emergencies where the health, safety or welfare of the community is at risk, the City shall comply 

with the procurement requirements to the extent practicable, but may be waived by the City Manager.  The City Manager will notify the Council of any emergency 
immediately, identifying the nature of the emergency and any purchase which may be required. Forms required herein for the purpose of authorizing and 
acquiring goods or services necessary for the immediate preservation of life, health, safety, welfare or property during a local disaster or emergency conditions shall 
not require compliance with bidding requirements set forth in this Policy, and may be awarded on a sole-source basis. Documentation of procurement decisions in 
an emergency period is required to be retained, to support the urgency of the purchase and as justification for deviation of any City policy. Once the City is no 
longer operating in an emergency period, adherence to the approved procurement requirements is required. Careful consideration shall be given to procurement 
decisions made in an emergency period and when grant funds may be received. Federal procurement guidance currently available (at CFR200.319) indicates that 
purchases above the dollar threshold of a micro purchase, currently $3,000, must also have three written quotes to support the cost reasonableness of the purchase. 
If, at any time, a purchase may have a grant implication, purchaser shall follow the guidance.  

   
g. Travel - Consideration of the lowest cost to the City will be made when traveling for City business. When employees travel out of the County, they are required to 

use a City vehicle if available and practical.  Only if no fleet vehicles are available will the City reimburse employees for mileage at the approved IRS rate with prior 
Department Director approval.  Out-of-City per diem will be paid at the approved IRS reimbursement level.  Per Diem is reimbursement for all meals and 
incidentals, no additional reimbursements will be approved.  Lodging should be prepaid by City check or purchasing card when possible in order to avoid taxes.   
  

h. Meals in City - The City shall restrict the purchase of meals locally to the following items, unless specifically approved by the City Manager or Deputy City 
Manager: 

i. Work related meetings with outside officials with Department Director, Deputy City Manager or City Manager approval. 
ii. Preparation for City-wide events on weekends (such as July 4th or Evans Fest). 
iii. Manager and/or City Council members’ meetings with media, residents, employees, Council and outside officials.  

 
i. Education and training - The City Council has approved in the Personnel Policies the desire to hire the best and most qualified staff available.  To maintain the 

quality of the staff over time, the City will fund adequate participation in professional organizations and training.  Recognizing the need for additional training, 



 

77 
 

each Department Director will propose a budget which may include participation at the national level for Department Directors and professionals.  In addition to 
participation in national organizations, it may from time to time benefit the City to send employees to training out of the state.  The staff will attempt to identify 
regional training programs or local programs when possible.  The level of training and participation in organizations must be approved by Department Directors.  
Department Director training will be approved by the City Manager or Deputy City Manager and Deputy City Manager or City Manager training will be approved 
by the Mayor.  All training must be included and funded in the annual budget. 
 

j. Education and training for Council and commissioners - The City is committed to professional and progressive leadership.  In order to maintain the City’s 
position as leaders in the community and region, it may be beneficial to provide training for the City Council and/or City sponsored Boards & Commissions 
regarding key management and or technical issues.  Travel for these members will be included in the annual budget. 
 

k. Computers, software, & peripheral purchases - All City-wide computer, software, & peripheral related purchases must be approved by the Systems Administrator 
with final approval from the City Manager or Deputy City Manager. 

 
VI. Capital Planning & Budgeting Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) has a significant impact on the image of the City.  The following policies are designed to guarantee that current and future projects 
are maintained at a quality level and that capital projects do not restrict the City's ability to provide basic services.  The City must preserve its current physical assets and 
plan in an orderly manner for future capital investments, including the operating costs associated with these projects.  In addition to amenity improvements, the City must 
make the capital investment needed to support and enhance the delivery of basic services.  This commitment becomes even more important because the demands for basic 
services biases funding priorities toward the operating services (such as police officers and recreation programs) versus infrastructure (such as streets and buildings) which 
could be an issue in the future.  Capital expenditures for purposes of financial reporting include buildings, land, major equipment and other items which have a value of 
over $5,000 and have a life greater than one year. Capital expenditures for purposes of budgeting include buildings, land, major equipment and other items which have a 
value of over $100,000 and have a life greater than one year. 
 
 
POLICIES 
The planning, funding and maintenance of all capital projects shall be based on the following policies: 
 
1. Bond rating - The City will maintain a strong bond rating that is consistent with other City goals.  The City will maintain good communications with bond rating 
agencies about its financial condition.  The City will follow a policy of full disclosure on every financial report and bond prospectus.   
 
2. Five-year capital plans - Each Department with capital expenditures will develop and maintain five-year capital plans.  This will include sources of funding and 
maintenance.   
 
3. Resident involvement - The CIP development process will provide for the full participation of any resident and or Committee appointed by City Council. 
 



 

78 
 

4.  Details of plan - The City will prepare and update annually a City five-year CIP that identifies needs for capital replacement and additions.  The CIP lists all anticipated 
capital expenditures, total estimated cost, the year in which it will be started, the amount expected to be expended in each year, and the proposed method of financing these 
expenditures.  Methods of financing can include bonding, assessment districts, pay-as-you-go (e.g. taxes, current revenues, cash balances), or other. 
 
5.  Current capital budget - The City will prepare an annual Capital Budget which will include current year capital expenditures and sources of funds based on the current 
year of the Capital Improvement Plan.   
 
6. Include future maintenance - As part of the annual Capital Budget, the City will identify and include full costs of future maintenance needs and operating costs of new 
capital facilities and equipment prior to funding as part of the annual Capital Budget.  It is essential to recognize that many smaller projects can have a significant impact on 
the existing staff and maintenance levels when considering the total impact.  All capital projects will identify the maintenance requirements in terms of staffing (hours per 
week) and Supplies & Services. 
 
7. Identify project funding - The City staff will identify the estimated costs and funding sources for each capital project proposal before it is submitted to Council for 
consideration.  This will include capital construction as well as ongoing maintenance. 
 
8.  Asset Management Plan (AMP) - The City will develop an AMP that protects capital investment and minimizes future maintenance and replacement costs.  The City will 
maintain accurate information on the condition, life span use and replacement cost of their capital assets to assist in long term planning.  The AMP will also indicate future 
major repairs and their costs, utility costs and other operating costs. 
 

a. Equipment replacement - The City will estimate its equipment replacement (items over $5,000 with a life greater than one year). From this projection, a 
maintenance schedule will be developed and followed.   
 

b. Cash for equipment - Equipment replacement should be planned on a cash basis.  Equipment should be replaced on a useful life basis considering optimum trade-
in value and maintenance costs.   

 
9. Planned funding - The budget will provide sufficient funding for adequate maintenance and scheduled replacement and enhancement of capital plant and equipment.  
Whenever the AMP identifies there is a significant discrepancy between the need to maintain/modernize City infrastructure or facilities and the funds available for such 
improvements, the City staff will prepare and present to Council a strategy for meeting such needs.  The long range plans of the City will include all costs identified in the 
AMP. 
 
10. Major Maintenance - Although the annual operating budget should provide for adequate maintenance of capital, plant, and equipment, eventually a major expenditure 
will be required.  It is appropriate to consider these types of major expenditures when developing the capital improvement program. 
 
11. Capital priority - In general, the following guidelines will be used to identify capital priorities: safety, complete existing projects, maintenance of existing capital facilities, 
extensions of existing systems and new projects.  Maintenance should be given priority over acquisition of new facilities, unless a cost/benefit analysis indicates to the 
contrary.  State, Federal and local mandates or new service demands may require acquisition of new facilities or new construction even when maintenance needs are not 



 

79 
 

fully met.  Unique opportunities may arise which should be considered as a priority particularly if there is community support for acquisition.  Maintenance of facilities 
should take priority over operating programs if deferring maintenance will result in greater costs to restore or replace neglected facilities. 
 
12.  Consistency with City policies and impact on community - The City will identify the ongoing costs and benefits that may be associated with each capital project to 
determine its consistency with other city policies and the impact on the community as a whole. 
 
13.  Alternative funding - Assessment district financing is appropriate for those areas of the City that are retroactively installing physical plant features which are normally 
required by subdivision standards at the time of development or which have been funded by another assessment district.  Such physical plant features include but not 
limited to, curb, gutters, sidewalks, street lights and sewers.  Assessment districts are also appropriate in cases where these types of physical plant features are being upgraded 
for the benefit of property owners in the area.  Unless otherwise directed by Council, assessment districts will include all costs associated with the project, including 
overhead and indirect costs, including but not limited to financing, and administrative costs.  The City will take actions to ensure that financial risk to the City is 
minimized. 
 
14. Long-term debt - is a liability that places a future contractual or other obligation against future revenues of the City.  For example, long-term debt includes liabilities 
arising from bonds, lease purchase agreements and installment purchase contracts. 
 

a. Use for capital - The City will confine long-term borrowing to capital improvements or projects that cannot be financed from current revenues. 
 

b. Life of debt not to exceed 75% of life of the project or acquisition - When the City finances capital projects by issuing bonds; it will pay back the bonds within 
a period not to exceed 75% of the expected useful life of the project.   

 
c. Debt restrictions - The City will not use long-term debt for current or annual operations. Debt that obligates future City Councils shall be approved consistent 

with City Charter and applicable State statutes. 
 

d. Legal debt limits - The City will review its legal debt limitation established by the Charter at least annually. Debt limits will be included in the statistics sections 
of the Financial Plan and Financial Report. 

 
e. Annual review - The City of Evans will conduct an annual review of its debt taking into consideration current market rates and future cash flows. 

 
VII. Investment Policies 
 
INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this investment policy is to establish guidelines for the purchase and sale of investments for all funds of the City of Evans. 

Legality 
The investment program for the City of Evans shall operate in conformance with federal, state, and other legal requirements, including the Colorado Revised Statutes 
sections 11-10.5-101 et seq. and 24-75-601 et seq., as amended, and City of Evans, Colorado Home Rule Charter VIII.  



 

80 
 

 
POLICIES 
This Investment Policy (the Policy) applies to the investment of all City of Evans (the City) funds, excluding the investment of employees' retirement funds. Proceeds 
from certain bond issues are covered by separate agreements.  
 
Pooling of Funds 
Except for cash in certain restricted and special funds, the City will consolidate cash and reserve balances from all funds to maximize investment earnings and to 
increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing, safekeeping, and administration. Investment income will be allocated to the various funds based on their 
respective participation and in accordance with City of Evans Home Rule Charter VIII and generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). : 
 
OBJECTIVE: 
The primary objectives of investment activities, in priority order, shall be safety, liquidity, yield, and local considerations. 
 
1.  Safety - Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio. The objective will be to mitigate credit risk 
and interest rate risk. 

a.  The City will minimize credit risk, the risk of loss due to the failure of the security issuer or backer, by: 
• Limiting investments to the types of securities listed in Section 9 of this Policy. 
• Pre-qualifying the financial institutions, broker/dealers, intermediaries, and advisers with which the City will do business in accordance with Section 6. 
• Diversifying the investment portfolio to minimize the impact of potential losses from any one type of security or from any one individual issuer.  

 
b.  The City will minimize interest rate risk, the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in market interest rates, by: 

i. Structuring the investment portfolio so that securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on 
the open market prior to maturity. 

ii. Investing operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity of 
the portfolio in accordance with this policy. 

 
2.  Liquidity - The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements that may be reasonably anticipated.  This is accomplished by 
structuring the portfolio so that securities mature concurrent with cash needs to meet anticipated demands (static liquidity).  Furthermore, since all possible cash demands 
cannot be anticipated, the portfolio should consist largely of securities with active secondary or resale markets (dynamic liquidity).  Alternatively, a portion of the portfolio 
may be placed in money market mutual funds or local government investment pools which offer same-day liquidity for short-term funds. 
 
3.  Yield - The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account 
the investment risk constraints and liquidity needs.  Return on investment is of secondary importance compared to the safety and liquidity objectives described above.  The 
core of investments is limited to relatively low risk securities in anticipation of earning a fair return relative to the risk being assumed.   
 
4.  Local Considerations - Where possible, funds may be invested for the betterment of the local economy or that of local entities within the State of Colorado.  Included is 
the Local Considerations Investment Program that allows the City to accept proposals from eligible institutions in order to reward local financial institutions that can 



 

81 
 

document their commitments to private economic growth and local housing investment.  These respective institutions must be on the Public Deposit Protection Act list of 
qualified eligible financial institutions.  The Evans City Council recognizes that our Local Considerations Investment Program might diminish investment yields. 
 
5. Standards of Care   

a. Prudence -The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent person" standard and shall be applied in the context of managing the 
overall portfolio.  The "prudent person" standard states that, "Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which 
persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable 
safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be derived”. Authorized City officials and employees acting in accordance with written procedures and this 
Policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, provided deviations 
from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and the liquidity and the sale of securities are carried out in accordance with the terms of this Policy. 
 

b. Ethics and Conflicts of Interest - Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the 
proper execution and management of the investment program, or that could impair their ability to make impartial decisions.  Employees and investment officials 
shall disclose any material interests in financial institutions with which they conduct business.  They shall further disclose any personal financial/investment 
positions that could be related to the performance of the investment portfolio.  Employees and officers shall refrain from undertaking personal investment 
transactions with the same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the City. 

 
c. Delegation of Authority - Authority to manage the program is derived from the City of Evans Home Rule Charter, Chapter VIII and granted to the City Treasurer 

who shall act in accordance with established written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the investment program consistent with this Policy.  
Procedures should include references to safekeeping, delivery vs. payment, investment accounting, wire transfer agreements and collateral/depository agreements.  
No person may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this Policy and the procedures established by the City Treasurer.  The 
City Treasurer shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials.   

 
6.  Authorized Broker/Dealers - To be eligible, a firm must meet at least one of the following criteria: 

a. be recognized as a Primary Dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or have a Primary Dealer within its holding company structure; 
b. report voluntarily to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or 
c. qualify under Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15c-3 (Uniform Net Capital Rule). 

Broker/dealers will be selected by the City Treasurer on the basis of their expertise in public cash management and their ability to provide services for the City’s account. 
Approved broker/dealers and the firms they represent shall be licensed to do business in the State of Colorado and as such are subject to the provisions of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes, including but not limited to CRS 24-75-601. 
 
Each authorized broker/dealer shall be required to submit and annually update a City approved Broker/Dealer Information Request form which includes the firm's 
most recent financial statements.  The City’s Treasurer shall maintain each approved firm’s most recent Broker/Dealer Information Request form. In the event that 
an external investment advisor is not used in the process of recommending a particular transaction for the City’s portfolio, authorized broker/dealers shall attest in 
writing that they have received a copy of this policy.  
 
7.  Financial Institutions and Depositories -  



 

82 
 

As required by City of Evans Home Rule Charter Chapter VIII, Section 8.8, a list will be approved by the Evans City Council of financial institutions and 
depositories authorized to provide investment services. To be eligible, a bank shall qualify as an eligible public depository as defined in C.R.S 11-10.5-103. 
 
8.  Minority and Community Financial Institutions - From time to time, the City Treasurer may choose to invest in instruments offered by minority and community 
financial institutions. In such situations, a waiver to certain parts of the criteria under Paragraph 1 may be granted. All terms and relationships will be fully disclosed prior 
to purchase and will be reported to the appropriate entity on a consistent basis and should be consistent with state or local law. These types of investment purchases should 
be approved by the Evans City Council in advance. 
 
9.  Safekeeping & Custody - The City Council shall select one or more banks to provide safekeeping and custodial services for the City.  A City approved Safekeeping 
Agreement shall be executed with each custodian bank prior to utilizing that bank's safekeeping services.  To be eligible for designation as the City's safekeeping and 
custodian bank, a financial institution shall qualify as a depository of public funds in the State of Colorado as defined in CRS 24-75-603 et seq.  
 
Custodian banks will be selected on the basis of their ability to provide services for the City's account and the competitive pricing of their safekeeping related services. 
 
The purchase and sale of securities and repurchase agreement transactions shall be settled on a delivery versus payment basis.  It is the intent of the City that all 
securities be perfected in the name of the City.  Sufficient evidence to title shall be consistent with modern investment, banking and commercial practices. 
 
All investment securities purchased by the City will be delivered by either book entry or physical delivery and will be held in third-party safekeeping by a City 
approved custodian bank, its correspondent bank or its Depository Trust Company (DTC) participant account. 
 
All Fed wire able book entry securities owned by the City shall be evidenced by a safekeeping receipt or a customer confirmation issued to the City by the custodian 
bank stating that the securities are held in the Federal Reserve system in a CUSTOMER ACCOUNT for the custodian bank which will name the City as "customer." 
 
All DTC eligible securities shall be held in the custodian bank’s Depository Trust Company (DTC) participant account and the custodian bank shall issue a 
safekeeping receipt evidencing that the securities are held for the city as “customer.” 
 
10. Internal Controls - The City Treasurer is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the City are 
protected from loss, theft or misuse.  Details of the internal controls system shall be documented in an investment procedures manual and shall be reviewed and updated 
by the City Treasurer annually.  The internal control structure shall be designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met.  The concept of reasonable 
assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and 
judgments by management.  
  The internal controls structure shall address the following points: 

• Control of collusion 
• Separation of transaction authority from accounting and recordkeeping 
• Custodial safekeeping 
• Avoidance of physical delivery securities; 



 

83 
 

• Clear delegation of authority to subordinate staff members 
• Written confirmation of transactions for investments and wire transfers 
• Development of a wire transfer agreement with the lead bank and third-party custodian. 

  Accordingly, the City Treasurer shall establish a process for an annual independent review of compliance with the Policy and its internal control procedures by an 
external auditor. 

 
11. Suitable & Authorized Investments  
Investment Types - The following investments will be permitted by this Policy and are defined by state and local law, where applicable: 

• U.S. Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds, and Treasury STRIPS with maturities not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement 
• U.S. government agencies with a final maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement issued by the Government National Mortgage 

Association (GNMA) 
• U.S. instrumentality obligations (debentures, discount notes, callable securities, step-up securities, and stripped principal or coupons) with maturities not 

exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement issued by the following only:  Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA), Federal Farm Credit 
Banks (FFCB), Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLB), and Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC)   

• Subordinated debt shall not be purchased 
• Certificates of deposit and other evidences of deposit at financial institutions, with maturities not exceeding five years, in FDIC insured state or nationally 

chartered banks or savings banks.  Certificates of Deposit exceeding the FDIC insured amount shall be collateralized in accordance with the Colorado 
Public Deposit Protection Act 

• Repurchase agreements with maturities of 180 days or less collateralized by U.S. Treasury Obligations and Federal Instrumentality Securities listed above with 
the maturity of the collateral not exceeding ten years.  For the purpose of this section, the term collateral shall mean purchased securities under the terms of 
the City approved Master Repurchase Agreement.  The purchased securities shall have a minimum market value including accrued interest of 102 percent of 
the dollar value of the transaction.  Collateral shall be held in the City's custodian bank as safekeeping agent, and the market value of the collateral securities 
shall be marked-to-the-market daily. 
 

• Repurchase Agreements shall be entered into only with dealers who have executed a City approved Master Repurchase Agreement with the City and who 
are recognized as Primary Dealers by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or have a Primary Dealer within their holding company structure. The Chief 
Financial Officer shall maintain a copy of the City's approved Master Repurchase Agreement along with a list of the broker/dealers who have an executed 
Master Repurchase Agreement with the City. The City may utilize Tri-party Repurchase Agreements provided that the City is satisfied that it has a perfected 
interest in the securities used as collateral and that the City has a properly executed Tri-party Agreement with both the counterparty and custodian bank. 

• Corporate bonds with a maturity not exceeding three years from the date of trade settlement issued by any corporation or bank organized and operating within 
the United States.  The debt must be rated at least AA- or the equivalent by at least two Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations (NRSROs).  

• Money market mutual funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 that 1) are "no-load" (i.e. no commission or fee shall be charged on 
purchases or sales of shares, 2) have a constant net asset value per share of $1.00, 3) limit assets of the fund to securities authorized by state statute, 4) have a 
maximum stated maturity and weighted average maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, and 5) have a rating of 
AAAm or the equivalent. 

• Commercial Paper with maturities not exceeding 270 days from the date of trade settlement and rated at least A-1 or the equivalent at the time of purchase by at 



84 

least two NRSROs.  If the commercial paper issuer has senior debt outstanding, the senior debt must be rated by each service that publishes a rating on the issuer 
of at least A or the equivalent.  Furthermore, the issuer's commercial paper program's size shall exceed $200 million.  Commercial paper may not exceed 20% of 
the Portfolio and no more than 5% may be invested with a single issuer. 

• Local government investment pools, authorized under CRS 24-75- 702, that 1) are "no-load" (i.e. no commission or fee shall be charged on purchases or sales
of shares), 2) have a constant net asset value per share of $1.00, 3) limit assets of the fund to securities authorized by state statute, 4) have a maximum stated
maturity and weighted average maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940, and 5) have a rating of AAAm or the
equivalent.

12. Collateralization - Where allowed by the Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act (PDPA) Section 11-10.5-101 et seq., full collateralization will be required on all
demand deposit accounts, including checking accounts and non-negotiable certificates of deposit.

13. Investment Parameters
a. Diversification - The investments may be diversified by:

o limiting investments to avoid over concentration in securities from a specific issuer or business sector (excluding U.S. Treasury securities)
o limiting investment in securities that have higher credit risks
o investing in securities with varying maturities
o continually investing a portion of the portfolio in readily available funds such as local government investment pools (LGIPs) or money market fund to

ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations.
b. Maximum Maturities - To the extent possible, the City shall attempt to match its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements.  Unless matched to a

specific cash flow, the City will not directly invest in securities maturing more than five years from the date of trade settlement in accordance with state statutes.

Because of inherent difficulties in accurately forecasting cash flow requirements, a portion of the portfolio should be continuously invested in readily available funds 
such as local government investment pools or money market funds to ensure that appropriate liquidity is maintained to meet ongoing obligations. 

a. Competitive Bids - Each investment transaction shall be competitively transacted with authorized broker/dealers.  At least three broker/dealers shall be contacted
for each transaction and their bid and offering prices shall be recorded.

 If the City is offered a security for which there is no other readily available competitive offering, then the Treasurer will document quotations for comparable or 
alternative securities. 

14. Performance Benchmarks - The investment portfolio shall be designed to attain a market rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account
prevailing market conditions, risk constraints for eligible securities, and cash flow requirements. The performance of the investment portfolio shall be compared to the
average yield on the U.S. Treasury security that most closely corresponds to the investment portfolio’s weighted average effective maturity. When comparing the
performance of the investment portfolio, all fees involved with managing it shall be included in the computation of its rate of return net of fees.

15. Reporting - Monthly, the City Treasurer will submit to the City Council a report listing the investments held by the City, the current market value of the investments
and performance results.  The report shall include a summary of investment earnings during the period.



85 

16. Policy Considerations - Any investment currently held that does not meet the guidelines of this Policy shall be exempted from the requirements of this Policy.  At
maturity or liquidation, such monies shall be reinvested only as provided by this Policy.

17. Approval of Investment Policy - The investment policy shall be formally approved and adopted by resolution of the governing body of the City of Evans.  Any future
changes must be approved by the Evans City Council.

18. Documentation to be maintained by the City Treasurer
• Internal Controls Procedures Manual
• Listing of authorized personnel
• Relevant investment state statutes
• Listing of authorized broker/dealers and financial institutions/depositories
• Broker/Dealer Information form
• Credit studies for securities purchased and financial institutions used
• Safekeeping agreements
• Wire transfer agreements
• Sample investment reports,
• GFOA Recommended Policies.



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: October 4, 2016  

AGENDA ITEM:  8.B 

SUBJECT: Ordinance No. 656-16 – Amending Chapter 9.24 of the Evans 
Municipal Code by Adding 4th Degree Arson (First Reading) 

  

PRESENTED BY:  Ron Pristera, Fire Chief, Evans Fire Protection District  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background & History 

As a result of several recent incidents where careless or inadequately monitored fires resulted in 
damage to uninvolved owners property, the District has been researching ways to hold the 
responsible party/parties accountable, legally and financially.  

Current Situation 

The Evans Fire Protection District (EFPD) provides fire protection for the City of Evans through 
a service plan (approved by the voters) and various intergovernmental agreements (IGA’s). City 
Council has adopted the 2012 edition of the International Fire Code (IFC) with certain local 
modifications and has empowered the District to enforce the code. 

Additionally, as a Title 32 Special District, EFPD has the following responsibilities pursuant to 
CRS 32-1-1002 

The chief of the fire department in each fire protection district shall: 

(I) Enforce all laws of this state and ordinances and resolutions of the appropriate political 
subdivisions relating to the prevention of fires and the suppression of arson; 

(II) Investigate or cause to be investigated the cause, origin, and circumstance of every fire 
occurring within his jurisdiction by which property is destroyed or damaged and, so far 
as is possible, determine whether the fire was the result of carelessness or design. Such 
investigation shall begin immediately upon the occurrence of the fire, and if, after such 
investigation, the chief is of the opinion that the facts in relation to such fire indicate 
that a crime has been committed, he shall present the facts of such investigation and 
the testimony taken from any person involved, together with any other data in his 
possession, to the district attorney of the proper county, with his request that the district 



attorney institute such criminal proceedings as the investigation, testimony, or data may 
warrant. It is the duty of the district attorney upon such request to assist in such further 
investigation as may be required. 

The EFPD service plan and associated IGA’s compel a collaboration between the EFPD and the 
City of Evans Police Department (EPD) in the investigation of fires. This requirement has recently 
been further defined by a jointly signed statement of understanding that addresses the distribution 
of responsibilities for the investigation of fires.  

 

There is an existing Colorado stature that addresses the careless/reckless kindling of fires. 

Fourth Degree Arson (18-4-105) 

A person who knowingly or recklessly starts or maintains a fire or causes an explosion, on his own 
property or that of another, and by so doing places another in danger of death or serious bodily 
injury or places any building or occupied structure of another in danger of damage commits fourth 
degree arson. 

 Fourth degree arson is a class 4 felony if a person is thus endangered. 

 Fourth degree arson is a class 2 misdemeanor if only property is thus endangered and the 
value of the property is one hundred dollars or more. 

 Fourth degree arson is a class 3 misdemeanor if only property is thus endangered and the 
value of the property is less than one hundred dollars. 

Staff Analysis 

Currently, both EFPD and EPD have the authority to request the County Prosecutor pursue charges 
under this statue when the circumstance require it, however, depending on the value of the property 
destroyed by the fire, the resulting charges may only a Class 3 misdemeanor.  

Given the case load of the County Prosecutor and the Court system, misdemeanor level charges 
are not typically given high priority, and are better suited for adjudication at the Municipal Court 
level.  

Adding the 4th degree arson language to the City of Evans Municipal Code will allow either EFPD 
or EPD to request charges locally, instead of at the County level.  

Resolving these matters in the Evans Municipal Court makes it easier for EFPD and EPD to use 
the statue to discourage the reckless kindling of fire, and may also increase the potential for 
restitution to the affected property owners.  

Recommendation 



For these reasons, we recommend City Council adopt the new section as presented.  

 

Motion 

“I move to Ordinance No. 656-16 on first reading.” 

“I move to deny Ordinance No. 656-16 on first reading.” 

 

 

 



CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 

ORDINANCE NO.   656-16 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 9.24 OF THE EVANS MUNICIPAL CODE 
TO ADD THE CRIME OF ARSON 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans, Colorado, pursuant to Colorado 
statute and the Evans City Charter, is vested with the authority of administering the affairs of the 
City of Evans, Colorado; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Evans desires to protect the health, safety, 
and welfare of all its citizens in the City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds arson is harmful to the health, safety, and welfare of 
its citizens.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. Chapter 9.24 of the City of Evans Municipal code is hereby amended by adding Section 
9.24.190, providing as follows: 
 

9.24.190 - Fourth Degree Arson 
 

1.   A person who knowingly or recklessly starts or maintains a fire or causes an 
explosion, on his own property or that of another, and by doing so places another in danger of 
death or serious bodily injury or places any building or occupied structure of another in danger of 
damages commits fourth degree arson. 
 

2.   Fourth degree arson is a class 2 misdemeanor if only property is thus endangered and 
the value of the property is one hundred dollars or more. Every person convicted of a violation of 
this section shall be punished in accordance with Chapter 1.16 of the Evans Municipal Code. 
 

3.   Fourth degree arson is a class 3 misdemeanor if only property is thus endangered and 
the value of the property is less than one hundred dollars.  Every person convicted of a violation 
of this section shall be punished in accordance with Chapter 1.16 of the Evans Municipal Code. 
 

4.   Fourth degree arson is a class 4 felony if a person is thus endangered and will be 
prosecuted pursuant to the State statute, and not as a municipal offense. 
 
 
2. Severability. If any article, section, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of this 
Ordinance is held to be unconstitutional or invalid for any reason such decision shall not affect 
the validity or constitutionality of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.  The City Council 
hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each part or parts thereof 
irrespective of the fact that any one part or parts be declared unconstitutional or invalid. 



 
 

 

 
3.  Repeal.  Existing ordinances or parts of ordinances covering the same matters embraced 
in this ordinance are hereby repealed and all ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with 
the provisions of this ordinance are hereby repealed except that this repeal shall not affect or 
prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in violation 
of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the effective date of this ordinance. 
 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF EVANS ON THIS 4TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 2016. 
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
 Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED ON A SECOND READING THIS 18TH DAY OF OCTOBER, 
2016.  
 
ATTEST:   CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
__________________________________ BY: ______________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
 
 



 

 COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 

DATE: October 4, 2016  

AGENDA ITEM:  8.C 

SUBJECT: Consideration of a Variance Request from the Evans Fire Protection 
District Regarding Above Ground Fuel Storage Tanks at Hillside Rental 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Ron Pristera, Fire Chief, Evans Fire Protection District  

______________________________________________________________________________
Background & History 

The Evans Fire Protection District (EFPD) provides fire protection for the City of Evans through 
a service plan (approved by the voters) and various intergovernmental agreements (IGA’s). City 
Council has adopted the 2012 edition of the International Fire Code (IFC) with certain local 
modifications and has empowered the District to enforce the code. 

One of the local modifications was to designate the City of Evans Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
and ZBA process as the appeals process for questions arising from the IFC.  

Current Situation 

During a routine fire inspection of the Hillside Rental business (1310 40th Street) several routine 
fire code issues were discovered. While researching various solutions to the code issues, EFPD 
discovered a local modification to the IFC that prohibits above ground storage tanks, and Hillside 
Rental has two of them. 

1. IFC Sec. 5704.2.9.5.a is amended to read: "5704.2.9.5.a Location of aboveground tanks. 

"1.  General. Storage of Class I and Class II liquids in aboveground tanks outside of 
buildings is prohibited. 

"Exceptions: 

"1. Prohibited and legal nonconforming. Any such aboveground tanks legally installed 
and in use as of April 19, 1983, may be continued in use, provided that such tanks 
are located and installed in accordance with the latest edition of the National Fire 
Protection Association Pamphlet Nos. 30 & 58 and provided further, that other 
applicable provisions of latest adopted edition of the International Fire Code and 
the City of Evans Code of Ordinances are complied with. 

"2. Variance for storage of flammable or combustible liquids in C, I, and P.U.D. zones. 
Upon payment of variance fee, review and recommendation of the Board of 



Appeals, the Evans City Council may grant a variance to the prohibitions in 
Section 5704 of the International Fire Code above for permits granted under 
Chapter 16.28, Oil and Gas Exploration and Development, and/or for 
aboveground storage in C, I, and P.U.D. zoning districts as defined by the City of 
Evans, if the Evans City Council finds that: 

(a) such variance will not create an undue safety hazard and will not adversely 
affect surrounding property; and (b) good cause exists. All aboveground 
storage authorized by Evans City Council variance is subject to the 
construction, location and other applicable standards set forth in the latest 
adopted edition of the International Fire Code."

 
This was an unexpected discovery since Hillside Rental’s existing above ground tanks have been 
in place since the building was built in 2006 and they have never been directed to remove them.  

2016 Weld County Assessor Aerial View- arrow showing approximate location of both tanks. 

HSR’s request for a fire code variance was presented to the City of Evans ZBA on September 13th, 
by the applicant with the support and consent of the EFPD, including a recommendation to the 
ZBA that the variance be granted. 

The ZBA approved the request, advancing the appeal request to the final step, consideration by 
City Council. 

Staff Analysis 

Explanations and rationale for the local amendments/modifications to the IFC are difficult to find. 
We have been able to determine the prohibition against above ground storage tanks has been in 



 

 

effect for three code revisions (back to 2006- when the building was built) and the amendment is 
more restrictive than IFC was written.  

This is the first time the Fire District has inspected this business, nor do records from the Municipal 
Fire Department era show any inspections.  

Though above ground storage tanks can be a fire hazard, the authors of the IFC did not believe 
they are a significant enough hazard to bani. In fact, in situations where tanks are properly 
constructed, installed and maintained, they should be safer than the routine transfer of liquids, 
since repeated transfer (filling, moving and using smaller containers) involves numerous steps, all 
of which present the possibility of failure.ii 

EFPD has verified with the City Planning Department that Hillside Rental falls within one of the 
zoning classifications (Commercial) that is eligible to receive a variance for this code requirement.  

Recommendation: 

That the City Council confirms the Zoning Board’s Approval of the variance request for the 
following reasons: 

1. The tanks have been in place without incident since the inception of this business, to date 
the owners have received no indication their use is prohibited and to do so now constitutes 
an undue burden on the operators. 

2. The surrounding areas are commercial, with a variety of equipment and material stored in 
yards. This presents a different aesthetic expectation than a residential neighborhood.  

3. If the tanks are ordered removed and the business continues to operate, the need to fuel 
equipment remains, forcing the operators to transfer fuel in smaller containers that present 
more of a fire risk. 

4. The property qualifies for a variance based on its current zoning.  

 

Motions: 

“I move that the City Council confirms the Zoning Board’s Approval of the variance 
request.” 
 
“I move that the City Council denies the Zoning Board’s Approval of the variance request 
for the following reasons…”  

i International Fire Code Section 5704.2.9.5.  
ii Storage of Flammable and Combustible Liquids, Section 7, Chapter Two, Fire Protection Handbook, National Fire 
Protection Association, Battery Park MA. 

                                                            









 

Page 1 of 3 
 

CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
October 4th, 2016 

 
 
PROJECT: Eastwood Village MHP Appeal 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8.D 
 
PREPARED BY: Sean Wheeler, City Planner 
 
ACTION: City Council Consideration 
 
REVIEWED BY: Fred Starr, Public Works Director 
 
ZBA DATE: September 13, 2016 
 
 

 
 
 
 

SITE INFORMATION 

Location: 

Located at 200 37th Street in east Evans, on the south side.  The property 
is approximately 19.9-acres in size and has one point of access. 
(See attached Vicinity Map) 

 
 Applicant:   Eastwood Village LLC (Keith Cowan) 

Existing Land Use: 
  Unoccupied Residential Manufactured Home Park, having sustained 
  significant damage in the 2013 Flood. 

 
Proposed Land Use: 

  Renewed operation of a residential manufactured home park in it's  
  configuration prior to the flood of 2013. 

 
Surrounding 
Land 
Uses & Zoning: 

North 
  Single Family Residential (R-1) uses & Bella Vista Manufactured Home  
  Park PUD. 

South Undeveloped Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

East   Undeveloped PUD / I-2 Industrial Area 

West   Single Family Residential (R-1) 

Existing Zoning:   RMH (Residential Manufactured Home) 

Proposed Zoning / Use:   RMH (Residential Manufactured Home) 

Current Request: 
  Appeal to a determination by Staff that the application for variances is  
  incomplete, and cannot be processed without additional information. 



 

Page 2 of 3 
 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The applicant seeks approval to reopen the Eastwood Village 
Manufactured Home Park, as it operated prior to the 2013 flood.  He has submitted an application 
for several variance requests, related several standards in the Municipal Code.  Staff determined the 
application is incomplete, and therefore the variance requests cannot be processed without 
additional information.  The applicant is appealing the decision by staff.  Consideration of the merits 
of the variance applications is not under review.  This hearing is to determine if the applicant 
provided sufficient documentation and information for a review of the variance requests. 
 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (ZBA):  The ZBA considered the item at a public hearing on 
September 13, 2016.  Discussion focused on the issues listed in item 5. Completeness Determination 
of this report, as outlined in the attached minutes.  The ZBA voted 3 to 0 in favor of staff's 
recommendation, to deny the appeal by the owner of the Eastwood Village Manufactured Home 
Park.  At the ZBA Hearing, the applicant's consultant also provided copies of all communications 
between the consultant and staff, a copy of which is part of the City Council packet for this hearing. 
 
ANALYSIS & ISSUES 
 
1. Variance Requests Requirements:  The below Chapters of the Municipal Code provide 
direction and outline the process required for the City to consider a variance application. 
 

A. Title 16 (Environment) Sub-Chapter 16.04.170 - Variance Procedures 
B. Title 19 (Zoning) Sub-Chapter 19.58 - Variances 
 

2. Title 16.04.170 Variance Procedures:  This section of the Municipal Code specifically states 
that requests for variances shall be heard using the process set forth in Chapter 19.58 of the Evans 
Municipal Code, except as modified by Title 16.04.170. 
 
3. Title 19.58 - Variances:   
 
 A. The Municipal Code describes the review process for variance requests.  Sub-Chapter 

19.58.040 (A) states that a petition in the form prescribed by the City shall be filed with the City 
Clerk, and shall be accompanied by a letter explaining why the variance should be granted.  
Additional supporting evidence, such as letters of support from surrounding property owners, 
photographs and maps, may be submitted and may be required by the City. 

 
B. In addition, the Weld County District Court ordered the applicant to pursue two actions.  
First, submit a request for a variance, and second that the variance request also include a 
“proposal for rebuilding the mobile home park that will satisfy Evans’ safety concerns.” 
 

4. Eastwood Village Variance Submittal.  As part of the variance submittal the application 
included the following: 

 Project Description, Signed Application Form, Adjoining Property Owner's List 
 Exhibit A Subject Properties (Aerial Map) 
 Attachment B, being the specific variances required. 
 Attachment C, as further engineering basis by which to approve the variances required 

to allow the EWB mobile home park to re-open. 



 

Page 3 of 3 
 

 
5. Completeness Determination:  On review of the above items, and based on the provisions 

found in Title 19.58 stating the City can require additional supporting evidence, Staff 
determined the application to be incomplete for the following reasons: 

 The applicant did not provide any evidence they have contacted neighboring property 
owners. 

 The applicant did not provide site plan information other than a single aerial photograph. 
 The applicant did not specifically address the District Court's determination that a 

“proposal for rebuilding the mobile home park that will satisfy Evans’ safety concerns." 
 
 
SUMMARY: 
 
Based on the standards in the Municipal Code and those required by action of the District Court, 
Staff’s assessment is the variance application is incomplete, and that it cannot move forward 
without additional information.  The applicant believes the documentation provided is sufficient, 
and that they should be allowed consideration of their variance requests by the Zoning Board and 
the City Council, without additional information provided. 
 
DRAFT MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to deny the request by the owner of the Eastwood Village Manufactured Home Park, that 
they be allowed to apply for variances for public hearing review, without having to provide any 
additional information." 
 
“I to approve the request by the owner of the Eastwood Village Manufactured of Home Park, to 
proceed to the public hearing review for consideration of their variance requests, without the 
provision of additional information as determined by City Staff." 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Staff Report 
2. Vicinity Map 
3. Staff Correspondence dated July 21st and August 11th, 2016 
4. Application Materials 

 Project Description (Applicant letters dated May 19th and July 28th, 2016) 
 Exhibit A Subject Properties (Aerial Map) 
 Attachment B, being the specific variances required. 
 Attachment C, as further engineering basis by which to approve the variances required to 

allow the EWB mobile home park to re-open. 
5. Municipal Code Titles: 

 Title 16 (Environment) Sub-Chapter 16.04.170 - Variance Procedures 
 Title 19 (Zoning) Sub-Chapter 19.58 - Variances 



 

EASTWOOD VILLAGE MH PARK 
VICINITY MAP 

(200 37th Street in Evans.) 
 

 
 





















 

    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

 

July 28, 2016 

 

City of Evans, Community Development 

200 W. 37th Street 

Evans, Colorado  

 

 

Regarding:    Re‐Opening of Eastwood Village Mobile Home Park 

    Administrative Remedies/Variances 

 

Dear Sir/Madam: 

We are in receipt of your letter dated July 21, 2016 regarding clarification on the EWV variance 

application.  While we appreciate receiving this response, it is our opinion that the response 

a. does not address most of the of the information that the applicant has already presented in the 

submittal 

b. does not attempt to address several of the most significant questions for which the applicant 

requested specific information 

c. continues to require that the applicant submit information that has no bearing on the review 

process and/or, in some cases, is not even required by city code 

d. continues to require the applicant to meet nebulous requirements about safety without giving 

the applicant any specific direction regarding what those safety concerns are or any 

consideration to how they have already been addressed 

e. continues to delay the processing of our request in the manner that we noted in our 

correspondence of June 20, 2016.   

In order to address each of the city comments, the applicant has provided the following responses in the 

order they were presented (by line number) in your letter. 

1. As you know EWV’s variance application… I consulted with the City attorney. 

No response is required. However, because the planning department has already been speaking 

with the city attorney for several months (per other emails) and the city response letter states that 

the City Attorney will “speak to those concerns as appropriate” …, the applicant can only assume 

that the city does not feel that addressing the most significant items in our submittal is 

“appropriate”.  Most of the applicant’s substantial concerns in the application (identified throughout 

this document) are the very BASIS for the request for variance.  If the applicant cannot get the city 

to address those issues, and the city instead focuses on such topics as to whether the application 

included enough pictures of the site (when the city already has such pictures), it will continue to be 

impossible to provide a submittal that will meet any of the city’s requirements.   

 

 

 



    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

2. …it is clear that the restrictions in the ordinance do not permit EWV to rebuild the mobile home park 

in the manner EWV proposes. But what is not clear is whether EWV can find some other cost‐

effective way to rebuild that will satisfy safety concerns Evans has, such that Evans can be convinced 

to grant EWV  

No response is required. However, the applicant has been trying to find out what manner of 

rebuilding the mobile home park WOULD be acceptable to the city and has specifically requested an 

answer to this question in prior documents.  The city has so far refused to provide an answer to this 

question.  

 

While the judge in the case found it “clear” that the restrictions in the NEW ordinance (adopted 

after EWV attempted to re‐open) currently prevents EWV from re‐opening, the regulations in the 

prior ordinance (in effect at the time EWV attempted to reopen) were not in effect when the city 

prevented the applicant from re‐opening.  The applicant has not been able to get an answer to the 

question of what basis the city had to prevent the applicant from re‐opening when he requested to 

do so.  Additionally, our prior correspondence has shown that the city did not have the jurisdictional 

authority to change the floodplain, especially when they did so inconsistently and to applicant’s 

detriment to accomplish their own objectives (which occurred AFTER the applicant requested to re‐

open. 

 

Regarding the second half of the comment, it appears that the city will not accept anything other 

than complying with the NEW ordinance, which appears to have been imposed with the specific goal 

of preventing the applicant from re‐opening.  If the standard is “convincing Evans to grant EWV a 

variance”, it is reasonably certain that it will be impossible to convince the City of Evans, a 

defendant to a lawsuit on this issue, to grant much of anything.  The most recent submittal has been 

with the city for over two months and the answers that the applicant has received refuse to address 

the most relevant parts of the submittal information.  

  

3. The Court’s order was that EWV pursue two actions.  First submit a request for variance and second 

that the variance request also include a “proposal for rebuilding the mobile home park [that] will 

satisfy Evans’ safety concerns.” 

The applicant has submitted a comprehensive variance request (twice) and the City refuses to 

address any of the substantive items within the submittal.  As a result, the applicant has 

accomplished the first of the two actions.  

 

Regarding satisfying “City of Evans safety concerns”, the City has not yet identified any specific 

safety concerns.  The closest thing the city has identified regarding a “safety concern” is that the 

applicant is required to meet the criteria of the floodplain development permit.  These NEW permit 

requirements were instituted by the city AFTER the applicant attempted to re‐open; but again, the 

city will not address this point.  In a single ordinance, the city took action to redefine the floodplain 

boundary and place EWV within the floodplain (in a manner that was not applied consistently with 

adjacent properties), took action to add atypical restrictions to the floodplain development permit 

(designed to make it nearly impossible for a manufactured home park to comply), and took even 

further action to change the variance criteria to required supermajorities, etc., so that the applicant 

wouldn’t be able to get a variance.  It is ironic that the city’s Riverside Park project, which is 



    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

currently in the final design phase, will remove all potential safety concerns associated with the 

floodplain since the site won’t be in the floodplain.  This should effectively satisfy the second 

criteria that the applicant is to address Evan’s “safety concerns”.  

 

If this doesn’t address Evan’s “safety concerns”, the applicant requests that Evans identify their 

specific safety concerns.  The applicant can only assume that any potential safety concerns are 

related to the floodwater elevation (and its impacts) and/or floodwater velocity (and its impacts).  

What is most ironic is that the primary potential risk to public safety at the applicant site and the 

greatest cause of both additional velocity and elevation was caused by the berm that is owned and 

maintained by the City of Evans itself (on city property) and NOT THE APPLICANT.  The city’s 

consultant identified that the city berm caused the high flow velocities (due to the breach) and then 

subsequently prevented the water from re‐entering the river resulting in additional water to 

downgradient properties. It is the high‐flow velocities that led to the extensive damage to the EWV 

mobile home park during the flood of September 2013   It should be the applicant that should be 

asking what the city intends to do about any potential threat to public safety caused by the city, not 

the other way around.  It makes no sense for the city to ask the applicant to address City of Evans 

safety concerns when: 

  

a. the city refuses to identify specific concerns. 

b. if the assumed “safety concern” is the location of the floodplain, the applicant has 

demonstrated that there is a reasonable basis to show that the site may not even be 

inundated during a 100‐year flood event. 

c. even if there was a reasonable basis to put the site within the floodplain boundary, the city 

did not have jurisdictional authority to do so by local ordinace (not by any change in physical 

condition or requirement of the state jurisdiction).  In fact, the city changed the boundary 

without regard to the due process procedure required by the state agency that has 

jurisdictional authority, and the city chose to ignore both state and federal requirements. 

d. even if one were to assume that the site is inundated by the floodplain, it is the actions (and 

lack thereof) by the city that put the site in this condition by failing to re‐certify the berm 

and/or reconstructing the berm which prevented floodwaters from re‐entering the river.  

Re‐certifying the berm was the recommended course of action by the city’s engineer (not 

the applicant) and the city chose to ignore this recommendation, which eventually resulted 

in significant damage to the applicant’s property.  Taking this action would have benefited 

not just the applicant but the entire community. 

e. even if the city demonstrates that there was a reasonable basis not to re‐certify the berm 

because the city wants to construct Riverside Park, the Riveside Park project removes the 

applicant’s site from the floodplain, which again eliminates any “perceived safety concerns” 

associated with the floodplain.   

f. if the City is using the effects of the 1000‐year storm event from September 2013 as the 

basis for their “assumed safety concerns”, then the city is taking action against the applicant 

based on a non‐recognized design event and all properties in the city, including non‐critical 

facilities such as the applicants, should be designed to accommodate a similar design event. 

 



    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

The applicant DID specifically address safety concerns in the submittal, and the best way to 

mitigate any issues associated with the floodplain is to make sure that the applicant isn’t within 

the floodplain.  The applicant will provide appropriate safety tie downs as we noted in the 

submittal which is an approved safety measure and is consistent with the requirements of all 

mobile home parks.  The entire application covers information showing why the applicant 

shouldn’t be and won’t be in the floodplain, and yet the city refuses to address these items in 

their responses.  

When considering all of the items above, a reasonable person cannot come to the conclusion that 

denial of this application has anything to do with the applicant’s failure to address safety concerns.  

Prior city staff have already stated that “the city wants to get rid of the mobile home park” and 

directed staff to take actions that will accomplish this within the city meeting minutes (by eminent 

domain if necessary).  The applicant fully understands that cities often don’t like having mobile 

home parks within their boundaries; however, claiming denial is about safety, delaying public 

hearings, and taking actions that devalue the applicant’s property without due process is 

inappropriate.  It brings into question whether the city is acting in good faith during the review 

process.  

4. The minimum standards for manufactured housing in the 100‐year flood plain are found in Chapter 

16.04… The variance procedure is intended to allow the applicant to propose alternative measures 

which provide the same level of protection… 

As noted earlier, the city itself is proposing the best possible alternative measure, which is that the 

site will not be within the floodplain once Riverside Park is completed.  The financial grants for the 

construction of Riverside Park are based to a large degree on protecting down‐gradient properties 

from flood events and specifically the 100‐year event.  If the city fails to construct Riverside Park, 

then it should re‐certify the berm to protect down‐gradient properties, which is what the city’s 

engineering company suggested in the first place and can only be accomplished by the city, not the 

applicant.   It makes absolutely no sense for the applicant to propose something different, when the 

best possible solution is currently in process by the city itself.  For the city to ignore this fact and 

then to cite code requirements that the applicant should follow for a floodplain development permit 

makes no sense.  Because the applicant fully anticipated this course of action by the city, the 

applicant DID address each of the four criteria for variances on the very first page of the submitted 

application.  This information was the very basis of the submittal, was discussed throughout the 

submittal, and the very information that the city has chosen to either ignore or not address with 

their responses. 

  

5. The variance application you submitted is essentially a request to rebuild… and does not contain any 

measures to address the City’s safety concerns.  Please supplement your application to includes 

safety measures EWV is proposing. 

As stated earlier, the application DOES address safety even though the city has not cited any specific 

safety concerns. The city has so far refused to discuss the fact that all of the perceived safety 

concerns associated with the floodplain go away when the city constructs Riverside Park, and also 

refuses to discuss that the safety issues created during the September 2013 event were caused by 

the city berm, not the applicant.  It is the city that needs to correct safety deficiencies (if they exist), 

not the applicant. 



    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

 

6. With regard to our Code on the variance process, Sub Chapter 19.58.040 …. 

The city highlighted “additional supporting evidence … may be required by the City”.  The applicant 

has provided extensive details of “additional supporting evidence”, which the city refuses to 

address.  Instead, the bulk of the city’s response is focused on procedural aspects of the submittal, 

many of which aren’t even required.  Your summary of our “concerns” only barely touches on the 

extensive information that we provided in our application and appears to only focus on the items 

that the city of Evans is attempting to utilize as the basis for preventing the application from 

proceeding.  Further, each of the summaries that you identified in your letter by bullet points 

appear to slightly modify the actual “concern” identified by the applicant. 

 

 The applicant does not NEED support from surrounding or affected property owners. The 

applicant CAN provide letters of support if we have them (which under normal variance 

application circumstances would help), but they are not needed.  The site is already zoned for 

manufactured housing and the applicant is not trying to change anything.  You state that “the 

application is to re‐develop an entire site, which will substantially impact surrounding 

properties”.  This is incorrect as the applicant is not attempting to “re‐develop” anything.  The 

applicant has been attempting to re‐open in the same configuration that has been in use for the 

prior 44 years. Because the site is EXISTING (and not proposed), and it has been used this way 

for 44 years, the neighbors are fully aware of the impacts.  To state otherwise, as you do in your 

letter, is disingenuous.  The mobile home park has been at this location long before many of the 

surrounding houses.  If this were a new development or the applicant was attempting to 

substantially change the existing development, then neighborhood input would be appropriate.  

Unless we are mistaken, the applicant didn’t ever receive a certified letter providing the 

applicant with the opportunity to provide input on whether the residential homes to the west 

(which were also destroyed) were re‐built after the flood.   

 You state that current photography is “important to the consideration of a variance”, yet you 

don’t dispute that you already have a lot of photographs.  Rather than continue to argue about a 

non‐relevant point, we have included 5 photos of the site with his email (to speed things along) 

and you will be receiving a flash drive with approximately 50 more pictures.  I would be 

interested in what information you don’t already have that the city hopes to glean from these 

photographs, but they have been provided nonetheless. 

 The applicant is not just declining to provide a site plan “based on the fact that an aerial 

photograph should suffice [as a site plan]” [sic].  We are declining to provide a new site plan 

because: 

a. there is no need for a site plan since the applicant is not re‐developing or changing 

anything.  The applicant only intends to repair what is necessary and reopen which is 

exactly what should have been permitted in September 2013.  That work is expected to 

be minimal since the mobile homes themselves are owned by individual owners and not 

the applicant. 

b. something other than what we have already provided is not a “requirement”.  It is a 

checkbox of one of many items that an applicant can choose to provide to support their 

application.  If the applicant was proposing something different than what is already 



    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

there, or we anticipated any dimensional changes that should be reviewed by the city, 

we would have provided this information. 

c. providing a new site plan could lead someone to believe that we are proposing to do 

something different than the existing use or existing plan. 

d. we have an aerial photo of the site (which is in fact the best possible site plan) since it 

shows exactly what we are proposing without any misunderstandings. 

e. providing a new site plan takes us down a rabbit hole of whether it is an “appropriate” 

site plan that will meet new city criteria, and opens up a whole new process associated 

with a site plan review, which, again, isn’t necessary and would more than likely result in 

the city using this as a basis to further delay this application. 

f. it is an unnecessary and unproductive additional cost to the applicant. 

g. we don’t want to open up the possibility of erroneously showing something (such as a 

dimensional item of something that already exists) other than what is already there, 

which could result in future rounds of comments that unnecessarily delay things further.  

The applicant is fully aware that doing something different than the historic use could 

trigger the requirement for a review process.  

 

The city has stated that “the requirement to address safety measures would reasonably 

mandate some changes to the site”.  Please provide the basis of this statement considering 

that the site won’t be in the floodplain once Riverside Park is completed and the city won’t 

identify what safety items are “concerning”.  Please make sure to identify those concerns that 

WILL NOT be solved by removing the site from the floodplain (where the city innapropriately 

placed the site by ordinance and not by changed physical site conditions) since the site won’t be 

in the floodplain in the future (and shouldn’t be now).  You are asking the applicant to “detail 

what improvements we anticipate to be necessary to protect against a future 100‐year flood 

event” while the city is completing final design plans for Riverside Park which removes the site 

from the 100‐year floodplain anyway.  This truly exemplifies the disingenuous nature of the 

city’s actions and requests. 

 

7. Regarding the notice requirements, mailing for this can be provided on receipt of a check for the 

costs of both a regular letter… and a certified letter… 

The municipal code states that the city will bill the applicant for costs (which usually requires that 

the city provide a bill before the applicant send a payment).  Although it is rather unclear why the 

city would send both a certified letter AND a regular letter to each property owner, the applicant 

will pay this cost upfront to expedite things.   The applicant identified 63 mailings that are likely to 

occur based on the “list”.  At the proposed cost of 47 cents per letter (regular) + $3.30 (certified) this 

would result in $237.00 dollars.  The applicant did not deduct the $25.00 just in case the city wants 

to update the list and/or there are minor deviations. 

  

8. Please note that it is not the role of the city staff to supplement your application to make it 

complete… 

It is very unlikely that the city will ever deem this application “complete”.  After two formal 

submittals, many months, several letters, many responses that don’t address the actual issues, and 

an ongoing lawsuit, we would be surprised to receive a recommendation for approval. 



    PO Box 903, Niwot, CO 80544       |    303.848.4199    |    www.CardenEng.com    
 

 

Based on the fact that the city has underlined that “any specific requests for variance will not be 

considered for review if they have not been included with the application”, it is reasonable to 

conclude that the city is preparing for a future scenario where the city will identify another code 

provision that we did not explicitly include in the text of our request to use as a basis for a future 

denial.  The city is fully aware of the applicant’s intended use of the site (as the applicant has been 

using it the same way for 44 years).  The applicant requests that the city identify any other code 

provisions that the city believes have not been appropriately addressed already if the city intends to 

identify other things in the future that would prevent the applicant from re‐opening.  

 

It is unbelievable that the city would actively prevent the applicant from reopening as a mobile 

home park and then make a determination “that the mobile home park use has been abandoned 

for more than 3 consecutive months” [sic] and as a result now requires a new PUD.  Given these 

types of actions, there is no possible way that anyone could believe that the city is taking these 

actions in the interest of “safety”. 

 

Because staff has already met with city leadership on this application and it is exceptionally unlikely 

that additional information will change the staff recommendation for denial, the applicant formally 

requests to proceed to public hearing, even if it is with a recommendation for denial from staff.  The 

applicant looks forward to having this discussion in a public hearing and would like to have it 

scheduled for as soon as possible. 

 

 

Regards, 

 

 
 

Robert C. Singer PE 

Principal/ Sr. Engineer















 

 

    Page 1 

16.04.170 ‐ Variance procedures.  

A. Requests for variances from the requirements of this ordinance shall be heard and determined using 
the process set forth in Chapter 19.58 of the Evans Municipal Code, except as modified in this Section.  

B. The Floodplain Administrator shall maintain a record of all actions involving an appeal and shall report 
variances to FEMA upon request.  

C. Variances may be issued for the reconstruction, rehabilitation or restoration of structures listed on the 
National Register of Historic Places or the State Inventory of Historic Places, without regard to the 
procedures set forth in Chapter 19.58 or the procedures set forth in the remainder of this ordinance.  

D. Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements to be erected on a lot of 
one-half (½) acre or less in size contiguous to and surrounded by lots with existing structures 
constructed below the base flood level, providing the relevant factors in this ordinance have been fully 
considered.  

E. Upon consideration of the factors noted in this Section and the intent of this ordinance, the City Council 
may attach such conditions to the granting of variances as it deems necessary to further the purpose 
and objectives of this ordinance as stated in Section 16.04.030.  

F. Variances shall not be issued within any designated floodway if any increase in flood levels during the 
base flood discharge would result.  

G. Variances may be issued for the repair or rehabilitation of historic structures upon a determination that 
the proposed repair or rehabilitation will not preclude the structure's continued designation as a historic 
structure and the variance is the minimum necessary to preserve the historic character and design of 
the structure.  

H. Prerequisites for granting variances: 

i. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum necessary, 
considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.  

ii. Variances shall only be issued upon: 

a. Showing a good and sufficient cause, and 

b. A determination that failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the 
applicant, and  

c. A determination that the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights, 
additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause 
fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.  

iii. Any applicant to whom a variance is granted shall be given written notice that the structure will 
be permitted to be built with the lowest floor elevation below the base flood elevation, and that 
the cost of flood insurance will be commensurate with the increased risk resulting from the 
reduced lowest floor elevation.  

I. Variances may be issued for new construction and substantial improvements and for other 
development necessary for the conduct of a functionally dependent use provided that:  

i. The criteria outlined herein are met, and 

ii. The structure or other development is protected by methods that minimize flood damages during 
the base flood and create no additional threats to public safety.  (Ord. No. 631-15, 2015)  



 

MINUTES 
Evans Zoning Board of Appeals 

Tuesday, September 13th, 2016 - 6:00 p.m. 
Evans Community Complex – 1100 37th Street, City Council Chambers 

 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL: 
 

Present: Chairman Marty Schanwolf, Vice-Chairman Steve Bernardo, and Board  
Member John Clark 

 
Absent: Board Member Dan Usery 

 
APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

There were no changes to the agenda 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A. PUBLIC HEARING -  Consideration of a request by the Evans Fire Protection 

District regarding above ground fuel storage tanks.   
 
Chairman Schanwolf opened the public hearing at 6:01 p.m. 
 
Chief Pristera, Fire Chief, Evans Fire Protection District, discussed the need to allow 
a variance for above ground storage fuel tanks. 
 
Chairman Schanwolf asked about their ongoing construction on the site. 
 
Chief Pristera explained that all other actions taken are in compliance. 
 
Board Member Clark asked about the size of the tanks and approving similar 
variances in the future. 
 
Chief Pristera talked about compliance for the (it would be a permanent variance) 
 
Chairman Schanwolf asked to hear from the applicant. 
 
Tom Hamblin, explained that he was helping the applicant, Sam Engle with the 
process.  He explained the project and the placement of the tanks that are awaiting the 
variance before operation. 
 
Chairman Schanwolf asked for any testimony for or against the variance request—
there was no testimony. 
 



Evans Zoning Board of Appeals 
Tuesday, September 13th, 2016  
Page 2 

 
 
Chairman Schanwolf closed the public hearing at 6:07 p.m. 
 
Vice-Chir Bernardo made the motion, seconded by Board Member Clark, to approve 
the request by the Evans Fire Protection District regarding above ground fuel storage 
tanks.  The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 
Chairman Schanwolf explained that this issue will be sent to the Evans City Council. 
 
Chief Pristera thanked the ZBA and City staff. 
 

 
B. PUBLIC HEARING -  Eastwood Village Appeal.  Consideration of an appeal by the 

owner of the Eastwood Village Manufactured Home Park to a determination by City 
Staff that an application for approval of variance requests is incomplete.   

 
 
Chairman Schanwolf opened the public hearing at 6:08 p.m. 
 
Sean Wheeler, Evans City Planner, introduced the variance requests for the Eastwood 
Village Manufactured Home Park. Mr. Wheeler explained why the variance 
application is incomplete and cannot move forward without additional information.  
However, the applicant believes the documentation provided is sufficient, and that 
they should be allowed consideration of their variance requests by the Zoning Board 
and the City Council, without additional information provided. 
 
He referred the ZBA members to the staff report and the information provided by the 
applicant.  Mr. Wheeler discussed the request by staff for more information from the 
applicant, therefore, staff was requesting the Board to deny the request by the owner 
of the Eastwood Village, that they be allowed to apply for variances for public 
hearing review. 
 
 
Chairman Schanwolf asked to hear from the applicant. 
 
Mr. Ryan Sugden and Rob Singer were present representing the owners of Eastwood 
Village.  Mr. Sugden distributed supplemental materials to the ZBA members into the 
record. 
 
Mr. Sugden introduced, Mr. Singer, who was an engineer representing Eastwood 
Village.  Mr. Singer talked about the history of Eastwood Village following the Flood 
Disaster of 2013 which destroyed the modular homes in the subdivision. 
 
Mr. Singer explained that the supplement documents show that the application to re-
open Eastwood Village, Modular Home Park was complete and ready to move 
forward.  He discussed requests from City staff for additional information, that have 
been provided by the applicant. Mr. Singer referred the ZBA members to specific 
supplemental provided to the board. 



Evans Zoning Board of Appeals 
Tuesday, September 13th, 2016  
Page 3 

 
 

 
The applicant did not contact neighboring property owners.  
 
Chairman Schanwolf asked what was the criteria, was it letters of support or letter of 
notifications.   
 
Mr. Singer explained that the requirement had changed from staff about needing to 
notify neighboring property owners, then simply receiving support letters. 
 
Vice-Chairman Bernardo asked Mr. Singer to elaborate about an email with provided 
in the supplemental material between himself and Mr. Wheeler. 
 
Chairman Schanwolf closed the public hearing.   
 
 
Vice-Chir Bernardo made the motion, seconded by Board Member Clark, to deny the 
request by the owner of the Eastwood Village Manufactured Home Park, to apply for 
a variance without having to provide any additional information. 
The motion passed with all voting in favor thereof. 
 

 
AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION:   

 
STAFF UPDATE 
A. Community Development Project List 

 
Mr. Wheeler provided an update to the Board concerning other ongoing projects in the 
City. 

 
GENERAL DISCUSSION 

The Board Members discussed other matters of concern in the City. 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

The meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.  

 













































































































































































































































________________________________________________________________________ 
 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
DATE:   October 4, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM: 8. E 
 
SUBJECT: AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

TUSCANY SUBDIVISION – Filing 1, Phase II  
 
PRESENTED BY: Scott Krob, City Attorney 
   Fred Starr, Public Works Director 
________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
 
On February 15, 2000, the city of Evans approved a Public Improvements Development 
Agreement for Tuscany - First Filing.  This was a typical agreement that identified obligations to 
be met as a condition of approval of the Tuscany Filing 1, Subdivision.  Section 16, of the 
development agreement discusses the Transfer or Assignment of obligations found in the 
agreement. 
   
This proposed Amendment to the Development Agreement is intended to be the type of 
agreement contemplated by Section 16 of the Development Agreement and to delineate and 
allocate the obligations of the Developers for the improvements of the Developers’ Phase II Lots.   
 
The proposed amendment identifies specific obligations and commitments to be made by the 
various parties listed in the agreement which the City believes will allow construction and 
development of certain properties owned by the various parties. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
Section 2 of this Amendment to the Development Agreement identifies specific financial 
obligations that applicant has agreed to make to fulfill their obligations and allow further 
development with the area identified as Filing 1, Phase II. 
________________________________________________________________________ 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Amendment to the Development Agreement as presented.  
________________________________________________________________________ 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 
 
“I move to approve and authorize the Mayor to sign the Amendment to Development Agreement 
Tuscany Subdivision – Filing 1, Phase II “ 

 
“I move not to approve the Amendment to Development Agreement Tuscany Subdivision – Filing 
1, Phase II “ 

________________________________________________________________________  



 AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(TUSCANY SUBDIVISION – Filing 1, Phase II) 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this 4th day of October, 2016, by and between the CITY 
OF EVANS, COLORADO, a Colorado home rule municipality, (“the City”) and: 

RICHMARK REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, LLC; 
BAESSLER HOMES, LLLP; 
FRANCIS PROPERTIES LLC; 
HELPING HANDS SUPPORT, INC.; 
LOTTS, LLC; 
PARK PLACE HOMES, LLC; 
TRINITY ASSETS, INC.;  
J. BAESSLER PROPERTIES, LLC
JKNB, LLC

(referred to collectively to collectively as “Developers”) 

WHEREAS, certain real property (“the Development”) located within the City was previously 
subdivided and platted as specifically described in the plat approved by the City for Tuscany 
Subdivision – First Filing and recorded on March 12, 2000 with the Weld County Clerk and 
recorded at Reception No. 2756849, as subsequently modified and replatted, in part, as Tuscany 
– Second Filing, recorded on January 14, 2001 at Reception No. 2616649; and

WHEREAS, in connection with the development of the Tuscany Subdivision, the City and the 
Developer entered into a Public Improvements Developers Agreement for City of Evans 
(Tuscany – First Filing) dated on or about September 27, 2000, as amended (“the Development 
Agreement”), which Development Agreement was recorded at Reception No. 2799495 of the 
records of the Weld County Clerk and Recorder.  Pursuant to the provisions of the recorded 
Development Agreement, each successor to the lots in the Development, other than the purchaser 
of a single family residence, assumed the obligations of the Developer with regard to the 
property purchased within the Tuscany Development; and 

WHEREAS, Developers have or will acquire ownership of residentially zoned  real property 
which is a portion of the Development  described in Exhibit A (“Developers’ Phase II Lots”), 
and as the owners of Developers’ Phase II Lots are the successor in interest to the developer in 
relation to the  Developers’ Phase II Lots; and 

WHEREAS, many of the improvements the Developer is obligated to make under the 
Development Agreement, including but not limited to a non-potable water system and associated 
water rights, storm water drainage system, and traffic and street improvements  have not been 
constructed or provided; and 



2 

WHEREAS despite the lack of completion of many of the improvements by the Developer or its 
successors, Developers have requested that they be permitted to proceed with obtaining building 
permits and constructing homes on the Developers’ Phase II Lots; and 

WHEREAS, the City has an interest in stimulating the construction of homes within the 
Development; and 

WHEREAS, to encourage the construction of homes within Filing 1, Phase II of the 
Development, the Evans City Council previously adopted Resolution No. 29-2016, which 
addressed the obligations of the Developer under the Development Agreement to provide a non-
potable water system and the associated water rights; and 

WHEREAS, Section 16 of the Development Agreement, provides, in part, that in the event of a 
transfer of property within the Development other than to a bona fide residential home buyer of a 
completed owner-occupied house, the seller and purchaser are jointly liable for the performance 
of the Developer’s obligations under the Development Agreement, unless  a written agreement 
satisfactory to the City delineating and allocating the various rights and obligations for the 
improvements has been approved and executed by the City Council prior to such transfer; and 

WHEREAS, this Agreement is intended to be the type of agreement contemplated by Section 16 
of the Development Agreement and to delineate and allocate the obligations of the Developers 
for the improvements of the Developers’ Phase II Lots; and 

WHEREAS, the City hereby waives the requirement in Section 16 of the Development 
Agreement that this Agreement be entered into before the transfer of lands within the 
Development; and 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to address the remaining Developer obligations under the 
Development Agreement as it relates to the Developers’ Phase II lots. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations and covenants set forth herein, 
and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and adequacy of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Provisions of EQRs and contribution to non-potable water system for Developers’ Phase
II Lots.  The parties acknowledge and agree that the obligations of the Developers to
provide EQRs and to construct a non-potable water system as contemplated in the
Development Agreement has been fully addressed by the City Council’s adoption of
Resolution No. 29-2016.

2. Other Developer Obligations.  The parties hereby agree that with regard to each of the
Developers’ Phase II Lots, all remaining obligations of the Developers under the
Development Agreement, will be satisfied was follows:



3 

a. The Developer owning the lot shall pay a Development Fee in the amount
of One Thousand Dollars ($1,000) per lot, except for Tract E.  Tract E is a multi-family 
residential lot.  Based on the parties’ assumption that three dwelling units will be 
constructed on Tract E, the Development Fee for Tract E is $3,000.  If the actual number 
of dwelling units constructed on Tract E is increased or decreased from three, then the 
Development Fee will be adjusted at the time the building permit is issued on the basis of 
a Development Fee of $1,000 per dwelling unit. 

b. The payment of such Development Fee shall be in lieu of the Developer’s
obligation to provide any further improvements contemplated in the Development 
Agreement, including but not limited to a non-potable water system and associated water 
rights, storm drainage, traffic and street improvements. 

c. The Development Fee for a minimum of eighty lots, amounting to a
minimum payment of $80,000, shall be paid on or before November 1, 2016.  At the time 
of such payment the Developer making the payment shall designate in writing the 
specific 80 lots to which the Development Fee is to be applied.  No building permits will 
be issued for any of the Developers’ Phase II Lots until the initial minimum payment of 
$80,000 has been received by the City.  If the minimum payment of $80,000 is not 
received on or before November 1, 2016, then this Amendment shall be null and void and 
of no further force or effect. 

d. The Development Fee associated with the remaining Developers’ Phase II
Lots shall be paid at or before the time of payment for a building permit in connection 
with each such lot. 

e. Upon the City’s receipt of the Development Fee associated with one or
more of the Developers’ Phase II Lots, the Developer shall be relieved of any further 
obligations under the Development Agreement in connection with such lot, except as 
provided in Resolution No. 29-2016. 

3. Previously developed Phase II lots.  Despite the failure of the Developers’ predecessors
to provide EQRs or fulfill other obligations under the Development Agreement, the City
inadvertently issued some permits for the construction of homes and homes have been
constructed in whole or in part on reliance on those building permits.  The parties agree
that the owners of those previously developed Phase II lots for which a permit was issued
before the date of this Amendment shall be exempt from further obligations under the
Development Agreement, except as provided in Section 4, below.

4. Ability of City to provide improvements and assess property owners.  Nothing in this
Amendment is intended to nor shall it be construed in any manner to limit the ability or
authority of the City or any entity created by the City such as a special improvement
district or other entity or mechanism, to construct and/or provide financing for the
construction of any of the improvements contemplated in the Development Agreement,
including but not limited to the non-potable water system and the water rights associated
with such system, storm drainage, traffic and street improvements.



4 
 

 
5. Disclosure to prospective purchasers.  To ensure that prospective purchasers of the 

Developers’ Phase II Lots and other similarly situated Phase II lot purchasers are aware 
of the status of the non-potable water system and other improvements the Developer was 
obligated to provide under the Development Agreement, as well as possible assessments 
related to providing such improvements, Developers shall provide prospective purchasers 
with a copy of the Disclosure Notice attached as Exhibit B and shall obtain the 
prospective purchasers’ signatures on such Disclosure.  No certificate of occupancy will 
be issued by the City until the City building official receives the signed Disclosure. 

 
6. Authority and Non-Assignment.  The Parties expressly warrant to each other that they 

have authority to enter into, and perform, this Agreement, and further expressly warrant 
and represent that they have not sold, assigned, granted or transferred to any other person 
or entity, any claim, action, demand, cause of action or damages released by this 
Agreement. 

 
7. Survival of Covenants and Warranties.  All covenants and warranties contained in this 

Agreement are contractual and not mere recitals, and shall survive the closing of this 
Agreement. 

 
8. Successors and Assigns.  This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties, their heirs, 

administrators, representatives, executors, successors and assigns, and shall inure to the 
benefit of the Parties, and their agents, heirs, administrators, representatives, executors, 
successors and assigns.  The rights and obligations under this Agreement shall be 
appurtenant to and shall run with and be binding on the Development in perpetuity.   

 
9. Governing Law.  This Agreement is made and entered into within the State of Colorado 

and shall in all respects be interpreted, enforced, and governed under the laws of the State 
of Colorado.  The language of this Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a whole, 
according to its fair meaning and not strictly for or against either of the Parties. 

 
10. Severability.  Should any provision of this Agreement be declared or be determined by 

any court, to be illegal or invalid, the validity of the remaining parts, terms or provisions 
of this Agreement shall not be affected and any illegal or invalid part, term, or provision, 
should not be deemed to be a part of this Agreement. 

 
11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall be deemed one and the 
same instrument. 

 
12. Waiver.  No term or condition of this Agreement shall be deemed to have been waived, 

nor shall there be an estoppel against the enforcement of any provision of this 
Agreement, except by written instruments signed by the party charged with the waiver or 
estoppel. No written waiver shall be deemed a continuing waiver unless specifically 
stated therein, and the written waiver shall operate only as to the specific term or 



5 
 

condition waived, but not for the future or as to any act other than that specifically 
waived. 

 
13. Breach or Default.  Nothing in this Agreement will be construed so as to impair any legal 

or equitable right of either party to enforce any of the terms of this Agreement by any 
means, including, without limitation, an action for damages or a suit to obtain specific 
performance of any or all of the terms of this Agreement.  Before filing an action for 
damages or specific performance, however, the aggrieved party shall first notify the other 
party in writing of the alleged breach or default and shall give the other party a 
reasonable opportunity to correct the alleged breach or default. 

 
14. Notices.  All notices and other communications that are required or permitted under this 

Agreement shall be in writing and shall be sufficient if mailed by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, to the addresses specified below or to such other address as the City and 
Developers shall have specified by notice in writing to the other parties.  All such notices 
shall be deemed to have been received on the date of delivery thereof or the third 
business day after the mailing thereof, whichever is the earlier.    
 
CITY OF EVANS:  
 

Fred Starr 
Director of Public Works 
City of Evans 
1100 37th Street 
Evans, CO 80620 
 
Scotty P. Krob 
KROB LAW OFFICE, LLC 
8400 E. Prentice Ave. 
Penthouse 
Greenwood Village, CO 80111 
 

RICHMARK REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, LLC; 
 

Tyler Richardson 
Richmark Real Estate Partners, LLC 
5200 W. 20th Street 
Greeley, CO 80634 
 

  
  



6 
 

BAESSLER HOMES, LLLP; 
 J. BAESSLER PROPERTIES LLC (Operating Manager) 
 HELPING HANDS SUPPORT, INC. 
 TRINITY ASSETS, INC. 
 
  c/o Jamie E. Baessler 
  3780 W. 10th St., Ste. 200 
  Greeley, CO 80634 
 
 
 FRANCIS PROPERTIES LLC; 
 LOTTS, LLC; 
 PARK PLACE HOMES, LLC; 

JKNB, LLC 
 
 c/o Nicholas D. Francis 
 1707 61st Ave., Ste. 101 
 Greeley, CO 80634 

 
 

15. Expiration of Amendment.   In connection with each Developers’ Phase II Lot for which 
the Development Fee has been paid within ten years of the date of this Amendment, this 
Amendment will remain in effect and run as a covenant with the land.  In connection with each 
Developers’ Phase II Lot for which the Development Fee has not been paid within ten years of 
the date of this Amendment,  the right and ability of the Developer owning such lot to satisfy 
their obligations under the Development Agreement by the payment of such fee and by 
otherwise abiding by the terms and conditions of this Amendment will expire and thereafter 
development of the Developers’ Lots for which no Development Fee has been paid will be 
governed by the provisions of the Development Agreement.  
 

 
 
 

SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGES 
 
 
 
  



7 
 

 
 
ATTEST:     CITY OF EVANS 
 

 
________________________________ By:        
Raegan Robb, Evans City Clerk    John L. Morris, Mayor 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO SUBSTANCE: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jessica Gonifas, Interim Evans City Manager 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Scotty P. Krob, Evans City Attorney 

 
 
 

 
DEVELOPERS: 
 
RICHMARK REAL ESTATE PARTNERS, LLC 

  
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

 
BAESSLER HOMES, LLLP; 
 
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

 
FRANCIS PROPERTIES LLC; 
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       



8 
 

 
 
 
HELPING HANDS SUPPORT, INC.; 
 
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

 
LOTTS, LLC; 
 
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

 
PARK PLACE HOMES, LLC; 
 
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

 
TRINITY ASSETS, INC.;  
 
 

By:       ______ 
Name: ____________________________________ 
Title: _____________________________________       

  
J. BAESSLER PROPERTIES, LLC: 
 

By:       
Name:       
Title:       

 
JKNB, LLC: 
 
 
 

By:       
Name:       
Title:       

  



9 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Richmark Real Estate Partners, LLC by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 

 
Witness my hand and official seal. 

 
 

  
Notary Public 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Baessler Homes, LLLP by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Francis Properties by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 



10 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Helping Hands Support, Inc. by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Lotts, LLC by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Park Place Homes, LLC by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 



11 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by Trinity Assets, Inc. by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by J. Baessler Properties, LLC by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 
 
 

STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF __________________ ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of September, 
2016, by JKNB, LLC by  ___________________________, its 
____________________________. 
 

Witness my hand and official seal. 
 
 

  
Notary Public 



EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

 

Tuscany Filing 1, Phase II, City of Evans, Colorado 



EXHIBIT B 

 

DISCLOSURE NOTICE 

 

To the purchaser of the following described property: 

[Insert legal description] 

 

Also known as: 

[Insert street address] 

 

The property you are purchasing is part of the Tuscany Development.  When the City of Evans 
approved the Tuscany Development, it was contemplated that the developer would provide 
improvements including but not limited to a non-potable water system, including the necessary 
water rights to supply that system, as well as certain storm water drainage, traffic and street 
improvements.  Those improvements have not yet been constructed.  The purpose of this 
disclosure notice is to let you know that the City of Evans may install a non-potable water 
system and other improvements in connection with the Tuscany Development at some time in 
the future and assess the properties within the Tuscany development, including the property you 
are purchasing, fees or other charges for the costs of providing the system, as well as storm 
drainage, traffic and street improvements contemplated as part of the Tuscany Development.   

 

Homebuilder:_____________________________________________ ______________ 
          Date 
 
 
Purchaser: _______________________________________________ _______________ 
          Date  
 
 
Purchaser: _______________________________________________ _______________ 
          Date  
 



 
 

  

 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: October 4, 2016  
 
AGENDA ITEM:  8.F 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Contract Amendment with DOLA EIAF 7633 – 

Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery   
 
PRESENTED BY: Nancy Salazar, Flood Recovery Manager 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
 
In 2014, the City and the Department of Local Affairs (“DOLA”) entered into a Contract to 
provide funds to the City for salary and benefits to hire two full-time and one part-time staff 
positions to assist the City with flood recovery efforts. The Contract initially funded up to 2.5 
FTE (Project Manager – 1, Accountant - 1, and Emergency Manager - .5) through 12/31/16.  
 
Due to the large amount of work still left to do on the recovery projects and the inability of long 
term staff to fill the necessary roles, this summer, staff applied to DOLA requesting a grant 
extension for all three of the positions through June 30, 2018.  
 
Due to financial constraints, DOLA was only able to approve an extension on two of the 2.5 
FTE, the Project Manager and the Accountant.   
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
 
The current agreement with DOLA provided all of the funding for the 2.5 FTE. In order to make 
the City more competitive for this critical extension, staff requested 80% funding from DOLA, 
leaving a City match of 20%. Below is the breakdown of cost sharing for the City for the two 
positions.  
 

  

18 months 
Total 
Costs 

DOLA 
Grant 
Award 

Evans 20% 
Match 

Project Manager and Accountant ‐ 2 FTE 
       
$206,047  

       
$164,838  

          
$41,209  

  
 
Additionally, because the City does not budget for grant funds until they are awarded, a 
preliminary budget revision for 2017 will be necessary to appropriate adequate funds. The 
recommended funding source is excess fund balance within the General Fund which is projected 
to have an ending fund balance on 12/31/2016 of $6,371,301. 



 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
With flood recovery being a top priority for the community over the next two years and the lack 
of current staff capacity to absorb the duties of the two fulltime flood staff, staff recommends 
approval of the grant extension with DOLA.  
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve the contract amendment with DOLA for flood recovery staffing and a 
preliminary 2017 budget revision in the amount of $206,047.” 
 
“I move to deny the contract amendment with DOLA for flood recovery staffing.” 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Contract Amendment 



 

Governor John W. Hickenlooper   |    Irv Halter, Executive Director  |    Chantal Unfug, Division Director 

1313 Sherman Street, Room 521, Denver, CO 80203 P 303.864.7720 TDD/TTY 303.864.7758 www.dola.colorado.gov 

Strengthening Colorado Communities 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 26, 2016 

 

 

 

John Morris, Mayor 

City of Evans 

1100 37th St 

Evans, CO 80620 

 

RE:  EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery, Contract Amendment #1 

 

Dear Mayor Morris: 

 

Attached is Contract Amendment #1 for the above-referenced Energy Impact Assistance Fund project.  If the 

amendment is satisfactory as written, please print and sign the amendment (original signatures only; no 

photocopies, stamped or e-signatures).   

 

The second page of this letter is a Return Routing Memorandum that includes a Grantee Checklist.  Please use this 

document to facilitate the return of your contract amendment.  Using the Checklist will ensure that your 

amendment has been signed by the appropriate person, that you have enclosed the correct number of documents 

for return to the State, that you have correctly addressed your return packet, and that you have notified us that 

your documents are on their way back to us. 

 

If you would like your copy of the fully executed contract amendment to contain original signatures, please make 

sure you sign and return two (2) contract amendments to us.  If a photocopy of the originally signed fully executed 

contract amendment is acceptable to you, then you need only sign and return one (1) contract amendment to us. 

 

The State Controller requires hard copies and original signatures for contract amendment execution.  We cannot 

complete the execution of your contract amendment without these.  Until your contract amendment is fully 

executed (signed by all Parties), the changes contained in the amendment are not in effect. 

 

If you have any questions about this contract amendment or the contract amendment execution process, please 

contact your Regional Manager, Don Sandoval, (970) 679-4501, (don.sandoval@state.co.us) or me at (303) 864-

7731. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Beth Lipscomb 

Internal Services Manager 

Department of Local Affairs 

 

Enclosures 

  



 

Governor John W. Hickenlooper   |    Irv Halter, Executive Director  |    Chantal Unfug, Division Director 

1313 Sherman Street, Room 521, Denver, CO 80203 P 303.864.7720 TDD/TTY 303.864.7758 www.dola.colorado.gov 

Strengthening Colorado Communities 

 

 

 

RETURN ROUTING MEMORANDUM 

 

 

 

TO:  Hannah Cichocki 

 

THROUGH:  Warren Jones, Recovery Manager, City of Evans 

 

FROM:  Beth Lipscomb 

 

DATE:         September 26, 2016 

 

RE:  Contract Amendment Approvals 

 

 

 

 

FOR FINAL APPROVAL ROUTING: 

 

 

 RE:  EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery CA#1 

 

 

GRANTEE CHECKLIST: 

 

_____ the Contract Amendment is signed by an authorized signator (original signatures only; no 

photocopies, stamped or e-signatures) 

_____ signed by County Chief Elected Official, City/Town Mayor, or District Board 

President/Chair 

_____ signed by Other 

_____ documentation of authority to sign is enclosed 

 

_____ the correct number of originals are attached 

_____ one (1) signed original for the State (required) 

_____ one (1) signed original for return to the Grantee (optional, at your discretion) 

 

_____ documents being sent back to the State must be addressed to: 

Department of Local Affairs 

ATTENTION:  Hannah Cichocki 

1313 Sherman Street, Room 521 

Denver, CO  80203 

 

_____ you have sent an email to the State (hannah.cichocki@state.co.us) indicating the date the hard 

copy will behas been posted for return to State 

 

 

mailto:hannah.cichocki@state.co.us


EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 1 of 8 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
 

Amendment #:  1 Encumbrance #: F15S7633 

Original Contract CMS or CLIN #:  73737 Amendment CMS #:  94722 

1) PARTIES 
This Amendment to the above-referenced Original Contract (hereinafter called the Contract) is 
entered into by and between the CITY OF EVANS (hereinafter called “Grantee” or “Contractor”), and 
the STATE OF COLORADO (hereinafter called the “State”) acting by and through the Department of 
Local Affairs, Division of Local Governments, (hereinafter called the “DOLA”). 

2) EFFECTIVE DATE AND ENFORCEABILITY 
This Amendment shall not be effective or enforceable until it is approved and signed by the Colorado 
State Controller or designee (hereinafter called the “Effective Date”). The State shall not be liable to 
pay or reimburse Contractor for any performance hereunder including, but not limited to, costs or 
expenses incurred, or be bound by any provision hereof prior to the Effective Date. 

3) FACTUAL RECITALS 
The Parties entered into the Contract to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary and benefits to 
hire two full-time and one part-time staff positions to assist the City with flood recovery efforts.  The 
Contract initially funded up to 2.5 FTE through 12/31/16.  Grantee reports that the two full-time 
positions, Accountant and Project Manager, will be needed beyond 12/31/16 in order to properly 
complete the Work.  Grantee requested additional Grant Funds and was awarded $164,837 in 
September 2016.  This Amendment revises the project scope to describe the continuing positions, 
modifies the eligible expenses and project budget, and extends the time of performance as requested. 

4) CONSIDERATION - COLORADO SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
The Parties acknowledge that the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and other good 
and valuable consideration are sufficient and adequate to support this Amendment. The Parties agree 
to replacing the Colorado Special Provisions with the most recent version (if such have been updated 
since the Contract and any modification thereto were effective) as part consideration for this 
Amendment.  

5) LIMITS OF EFFECT 
This Amendment is incorporated by reference into the Contract, and the Contract and all prior 
amendments thereto, if any, remain in full force and effect except as specifically modified herein. 

6) MODIFICATIONS 
The Contract and all prior amendments thereto, if any, are modified as follows:  

 
a. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Award Amount is modified by deleting the current amount: 
 

“Award Amount: $323,162.00” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 

 

“Award Amount: $487,999.00” 

 
b. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Project Information is modified by deleting the Performance Period: 
End Date: 

 

“Performance Period:   End Date: 12/31/16” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 

 

“Performance Period:   End Date: 06/30/18” 



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 2 of 8 

 
c. Grant Agreement, Cover Page, Project Information is modified by deleting the Brief Description of 
Project/Assistance: 

 

“Brief Description of 

Project/Assistance: 

The Project is to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary 

and benefits to hire two full-time and one part-time staff 

positions to assist the City with flood recovery efforts. 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 

 

“Brief Description of 

Project/Assistance: 

The Project is to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary 

and benefits to hire term limited staff positions to assist the City 

with flood recovery efforts. 

 
 
d. Grant Agreement, Section 5, Term 
Subsection A, Initial Term-Work Commencement is modified by deleting the subsection: 
 

“Unless otherwise permitted in §2 above, the Parties’ respective performances under this Grant shall 
commence on the Effective Date. This Grant shall terminate on December 31, 2016 unless sooner 
terminated or further extended as specified elsewhere herein.” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Unless otherwise permitted in §2 above, the Parties’ respective performances under this Grant shall 
commence on the Effective Date. This Grant shall terminate on June 30, 2018 unless sooner 
terminated or further extended as specified elsewhere herein.” 

 
 
e. Grant Agreement, Section 7, Payments to Grantee 
Section 7.A, Maximum Amount is modified by deleting the current language in its entirety: 
 

“The maximum amount payable under this Grant to Grantee by the State is $323,162.00 (THREE 
HUNDRED TWENTY THREE THOUSAND ONE HUNDRED SIXTY TWO and XX/100 
DOLLARS), as determined by the State from available funds. Grantee agrees to provide any additional 
funds required for the successful completion of the Work. Payments to Grantee are limited to the 
unpaid obligated balance of the Grant as set forth in Exhibit B.” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“The maximum amount payable under this Grant to Grantee by the State is $487,999.00 (FOUR 
HUNDRED EIGHTY SEVEN THOUSAND NINE HUNDRED NINETY NINE and XX/100 
DOLLARS), as determined by the State from available funds. Grantee agrees to provide any additional 
funds required for the successful completion of the Work. Payments to Grantee are limited to the 
unpaid obligated balance of the Grant as set forth in Exhibit B.” 

 
 
f. Exhibit B, Section 2, Description of the Project(s) and Work 
Subsection 2.1, Project Description is modified by deleting the subsection in its entirety: 
 

“Project Description.  The Project is to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary and benefits to 
hire two full-time and one part-time staff positions to assist the City with flood recovery efforts.” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Project Description.  The Project is to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary and benefits to 
hire term limited staff positions to assist the City with flood recovery efforts.” 

 
  



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 3 of 8 

 
g. Exhibit B, Section 2, Description of the Project(s) and Work 
Subsection 2.2, Work Description is modified by deleting the subsection in its entirety: 
 

“Work Description.  The City of Evans (Grantee) will hire three short-term staff positions to assist the 
City with flood recovery efforts.  The positions include:  1) a full-time project manager who will 
provide management of flood recovery projects; 2) a full-time finance/administrative assistant will 
provide accounting and administrative assistance to the flood recovery manager; and 3) a half-time 
emergency planner who will develop recovery and emergency preparedness plans as well as provide 
training to assist the City in their flood recovery efforts.  All three positions will be funded for 24 
months.” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Work Description.  The City of Evans (Grantee) will hire short-term staff positions to assist the City 
with flood recovery efforts.  The initial positions and durations are:  1) a full-time project manager who 
will provide management of flood recovery projects (at least 24 months); 2) a full-time 
finance/administrative assistant will provide accounting and administrative assistance to the flood 
recovery manager (at least 24 months); and 3) a half-time emergency planner who will develop 
recovery and emergency preparedness plans as well as provide training to assist the City in their flood 
recovery efforts (maximum 24 months).” 

 
 
h. Exhibit B, Section 2, Description of the Project(s) and Work 
Subsection 2.5, Eligible Expenses is modified by deleting the subsection in its entirety: 
 

“Eligible Expenses. Eligible expenses shall include:  salary and benefits costs for the three (3) above-
mentioned positions.  The Grantee will cover the costs of supplies and any other services associated 
with the positions, if any.” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Eligible Expenses. Eligible expenses shall include:  salary and benefits costs for the term limited 
positions.  The Grantee will cover the costs of supplies and any other services associated with the 
positions, if any.” 

 
 
i. Exhibit B, Section 6, Funding 
Subsection 6.2, Budget is modified by deleting the current subsection in its entirety: 
 

“Budget Line Item(s) Total Cost Grant Funds Matching 

Funds 

Matching Funds 

Source  

Personnel Services Costs $323,162 $323,162 $0 No Match 

Total $323,162 $323,162 $0”  

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 

 

“Budget Line Item(s) Total Cost Grant Funds Matching 

Funds 

Matching Funds 

Source  

Personnel Services Costs $487,999 $487,999 $0 No Match 

Total $487,999 $487,999 $0”  

 
 
 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 

  



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 4 of 8 

 
j. Exhibit B, Section 7, Payment 
Subsection 7.1, Payment Schedule is modified by deleting the Payment Schedule Table: 
 

“Payment Amount  

Interim Payment(s) $307,004 Paid upon receipt of actual expense documentation and 

written Pay Requests from the Grantee for 

reimbursement of eligible approved expenses. 

Final Payment $16,158 Paid upon Substantial Completion of the Project (as 

determined by the State in its sole discretion), provided 

that the Grantee has submitted, and DOLA has 

accepted, all required reports. 

Total $323,162”  
 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Payment Amount  

Interim Payment(s) $463,600 Paid upon receipt of actual expense documentation and 

written Pay Requests from the Grantee for 

reimbursement of eligible approved expenses. 

Final Payment $24,399 Paid upon Substantial Completion of the Project (as 

determined by the State in its sole discretion), provided 

that the Grantee has submitted, and DOLA has 

accepted, all required reports. 

Total $487,999”  
 
 
k. Exhibit E, Description of Project is modified by deleting the subsection in its entirety: 
 

“DESCRIPTION OF 
PROJECT:   

The Project is to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary 
and benefits to hire two full-time and one part-time staff 
positions to assist the City with flood recovery efforts.” 

 

 
 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“DESCRIPTION OF 
PROJECT:   

The Project is to provide funds to the City of Evans for salary 
and benefits to hire term limited staff positions to assist the City 
with flood recovery efforts.” 

 

 
 
l. Exhibit E, Project Performance Plan is modified by deleting the Fourth Milestone: 
 

“Project Completion. 
 

December 31, 2016 Review past quarterly reports, conduct on-
site monitoring, and review final report. 

ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Project Completion. 
 

June 30, 2018 Review past quarterly reports, conduct on-
site monitoring, and review final report. 

ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 
 
 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 

  



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 5 of 8 

 
m. Exhibit E, Project Performance Plan is modified by deleting the Fifth Milestone: 
 

“Submit quarterly progress reports, which 

includes: Project Performance Plan 
accomplishments and a Financial Summary 
Report for:  
 
4

th
 Quarter 2014 

1
st
 Quarter 2015 

2
nd

 Quarter 2015 
3

rd
 Quarter 2015 

4
th

 Quarter 2015 
1

st
 Quarter 2016 

2
nd

 Quarter 2016 
3

rd
 Quarter 2016 

4
th

 Quarter 2016 
 
Progress shall be evaluated by the Grantee 
and documented and included at least upon 
submittal of Quarterly Progress Reports.  
Such evaluation shall include the results of 
question and answer sessions with the 
contractor to confirm the following 
conditions have been met: 
 
Personnel Services Costs: 
-are all position(s) funded by this Grant 
filled (fully staffed)? 
-were vacant positions filled according to 
established HR policies and procedures? 
-are/is the pay rate(s) comparable to 
market? 
-are/is the employee(s) in these Grant-
funded positions performing satisfactorily or 
better? 
-are/is the performance documented? 

(30 calendar days after 
each quarter): 
 
 
 
January 30, 2015 
April 30, 2015 
July 30, 2015 
October 30, 2015 
January 30, 2016 
April 30, 2016 
July 30, 2016 
October 30, 2016 
January 30, 2017 

Review documents and 
provide follow up 
technical assistance as 
necessary. 
 
If needed, respond to a 
request for training 
within 10 days.   

 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 
 

 
 
 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 
 

  



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 6 of 8 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Submit quarterly progress reports, which 

includes: Project Performance Plan 
accomplishments and a Financial Summary 
Report for:  
 
4

th
 Quarter 2014 

1
st
 Quarter 2015 

2
nd

 Quarter 2015 
3

rd
 Quarter 2015 

4
th

 Quarter 2015 
1

st
 Quarter 2016 

2
nd

 Quarter 2016 
3

rd
 Quarter 2016 

4
th

 Quarter 2016 
1

st
 Quarter 2017 

2
nd

 Quarter 2017 
3

rd
 Quarter 2017 

4
th

 Quarter 2017 
1

st
 Quarter 2018 

2
nd

 Quarter 2018 
 
Progress shall be evaluated by the Grantee 
and documented and included at least upon 
submittal of Quarterly Progress Reports.  
Such evaluation shall include the results of 
question and answer sessions with the 
contractor to confirm the following 
conditions have been met: 
 
Personnel Services Costs: 
-are all position(s) funded by this Grant 
filled (fully staffed)? 
-were vacant positions filled according to 
established HR policies and procedures? 
-are/is the pay rate(s) comparable to 
market? 
-are/is the employee(s) in these Grant-
funded positions performing satisfactorily or 
better? 
-are/is the performance documented? 

(30 calendar days after 
each quarter): 
 
 
 
January 30, 2015 
April 30, 2015 
July 30, 2015 
October 30, 2015 
January 30, 2016 
April 30, 2016 
July 30, 2016 
October 30, 2016 
January 30, 2017 
April 30, 2017 
July 30, 2017 
October 30, 2017 
January 30, 2018 
April 30, 2018 
July 30, 2018 
 

Review documents and 
provide follow up 
technical assistance as 
necessary. 
 
If needed, respond to a 
request for training 
within 10 days.   

 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY 
 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 
 
n. Exhibit E, Project Performance Plan is modified by deleting the Sixth Milestone: 
 

“Submit, at a minimum quarterly 
basis, pay requests and 

supporting documentation of 
expenses. 

January 30, 2015 
April 30, 2015 
July 30, 2015 
October 30, 2015 
January 30, 2016 
April 30, 2016 
July 30, 2016 
October 30, 2016 
January 30, 2017 

Review backup documentation and 
proof of payment prior to approving 
pay request.  Reimbursement should 
not exceed pro rata share. 

 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 

 
 
 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
 

  



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 7 of 8 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Submit, at a minimum quarterly 
basis, pay requests and 

supporting documentation of 
expenses. 
 

January 30, 2015 
April 30, 2015 
July 30, 2015 
October 30, 2015 
January 30, 2016 
April 30, 2016 
July 30, 2016 
October 30, 2016 
January 30, 2017 
April 30, 2017 
July 30, 2017 
October 30, 2017 
January 30, 2018 
April 30, 2018 
July 30, 2018 

Review backup documentation and 
proof of payment prior to approving 
pay request.  Reimbursement should 
not exceed pro rata share. 

 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 
 
o. Exhibit E, Project Performance Plan is modified by deleting the Seventh Milestone: 
 

“Submit the Project Final Report 

to DLG within 90 days after the 
Project Completion or expiration of 
Grant Agreement. 
 

March 31, 2017 Provide forms to Grantee within 30 
days of completion of work or end of 
the Grant Agreement.  Process the 
Final Report and deobligate any 
remaining grant funds within 30 days 
of receiving a complete Final report. 

 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 
and inserting the following in lieu thereof: 
 

“Submit the Project Final Report 

to DOLA within 90 days after the 
Project Completion or expiration of 
Grant Agreement. 
 

September 28, 2018 Provide forms to Grantee within 30 
days of completion of work or end of 
the Grant Agreement.  Process the 
Final Report and deobligate any 
remaining grant funds within 30 days 
of receiving a complete Final report. 

 
ACHIEVED:  
MM/DD/20YY” 

 

7) START DATE 
This Amendment shall take effect on the later of its Effective Date or October 15, 2016. 

8) ORDER OF PRECEDENCE 
Except for the Special Provisions, in the event of any conflict, inconsistency, variance, or contradiction 
between the provisions of this Amendment and any of the provisions of the Contract, the provisions of 
this Amendment shall in all respects supersede, govern, and control. The most recent version of the 
Special Provisions incorporated into the Contract or any amendment shall always control other 
provisions in the Contract or any amendments.  

9) AVAILABLE FUNDS 
Financial obligations of the state payable after the current fiscal year are contingent upon funds for 
that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, or otherwise made available. 
 
 
 
 

THE REST OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

 
  



EIAF 7633 - Evans Staffing Assistance – Flood Recovery 

Page 8 of 8 

 

CMS# 94722 
 

 

THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE EXECUTED THIS AMENDMENT 

 
* Persons signing for Contractor hereby swear and affirm that they are authorized to act on Contractor’s 

behalf and acknowledge that the State is relying on their representations to that effect. 
 

 

CONTRACTOR  
CITY OF EVANS 

 
 

 
By:__________________________________________ 
         Name of Authorized Individual 
 
Title:_________________________________________ 
         Official Title of Authorized Individual 
 
 
______________________________________________ 

*Signature 
 

Date:________________ 
 

STATE OF COLORADO 
John W. Hickenlooper, GOVERNOR 

 
DEPARTMENT OF LOCAL AFFAIRS 

 
 
By:___________________________________________ 

Executive Director 
 

Date:________________ 
 
 

PRE-APPROVED FORM CONTRACT REVIEWER 
 

By:__________________________________________ 
        Stacy Romero, State Grants Manager 

 
Date:________________ 

 
 

 

ALL CONTRACTS REQUIRE APPROVAL BY THE STATE CONTROLLER 
 

CRS §24-30-202 requires the State Controller to approve all State Contracts. This Contract is not valid until 
signed and dated below by the State Controller or delegate. Contractor is not authorized to begin 

performance until such time. If Contractor begins performing prior thereto, the State of Colorado is not 
obligated to pay Contractor for such performance or for any goods and/or services provided hereunder. 

 

STATE CONTROLLER 
Robert Jaros, CPA 

By:___________________________________________ 

Janet Miks, CPA, Controller Delegate  
 

Date:_____________________ 

 



 
 

  
 CITY COUNCIL COMMUNICATION 
 
 
DATE: October 4, 2016 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  8.G 
 
SUBJECT:   Riverside Park Perimeter Fencing 
 
PRESENTED BY: Gary Wilson, Project Manager 
 
 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
This report presents results of price quotes for replacement of permanent perimeter fencing for 
Riverside Park and recommends award of a contract to perform the work. Perimeter fencing around 
Riverside Park was destroyed by the 2013 flood. Three years have passed since the 2013 flood, and 
the proposed permanent fencing will provide better security for both Riverside Park and owners of 
adjacent private property. The proposed permantent fencing would be installed along the boundary 
of the park adjacent to the ballfields and along a trail adjacent to Aguilar’s Concrete yard (see 
attached diagrams).  
 
Quotes were requested from five companies for installation of fencing in these areas. Two 
companies provided complete quotes and two companies were unresponsive. A third company 
provided only a quote for the “Ballfield” fence and indicated they were not interested in bidding on 
the “Trail” fence because of the conditions in that area.  
 
The City’s purchasing policies indicate three quotes are needed, however, in this case, we were 
were not able to secure three full quotes. The response we received is sufficient to provide a 
comparison of costs and make a recommendation.  The quotes are provided below. 
 

   B&B 
Town and 

Country Fence 
Custom Fence 
and Supply 

Bonnell 
Fencing 

Fence and 
Gate Greeley 

Ballfield Fence                

    Construct  $33,150.00  $32,136.00  $38,220.00  no proposal  no proposal 

    Demo/cleanup  $3,900.00  $3,900.00  $7,700.00  no proposal  no proposal 

        subtotal  $37,050.00  $36,036.00  $45,920.00  N/A  N/A 

Trail Fence                

    Construct  $25,200.00  $24,200.00  no proposal  no proposal  no proposal 

    Demo/cleanup  $3,600.00  $3,600.00  no proposal  no proposal  no proposal 

        subtotal  $28,800.00  $27,800.00  N/A  N/A  N/A 

Grand Totals  $65,850.00  $63,836.00  N/A  N/A  N/A 

 
Scope of Work 
The scope of work includes demolition and clean-up of any remaining parts of the old fence and 
and installation of new fence to match the pre-flood fencing in the same locations. Both fences will 
be chain link.  
 
 
 



 
 

The “Ballfield” perimeter fence is approximately 1,950 linear feet and will be a seven foot high, 
green vinyle coated fence to match fencing before the flood. The “Trail” perimeter fence is 
approximately 1,800 linear feet and will be a six foot high galvanized chain link fence.   
 
The total quote of B&B Local Construction is $65,850, and $2,014 (3%) higher than Town and 
Country Fence ($63,836).  B&B is located in the City of Evans and has an established positive track 
record on a number of City projects, including the temporary fence at Riverside Park. B&B has 
proven to be reliable, responsive and very reasonable in their pricing over time. Town and Country 
Fence is located in Pierce, Colorado. The City’s purchasing policies allow for preference to be given 
to local businesses, provided the price is not significantly higher, as in this case.  
 
Given that B&B is a local business, has an established positive track record and their quote is not 
significantly higher, staff recommends award of the contract to this business.   
 
FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
Funding for this fencing will come from the City’s Parks CIP budget. This budget has sufficient 
funds available to pay for the cost of the proposed fence replacement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
  
Staff recommends that Council award the contract to B&B Local Construction.   
 
SUGGESTED MOTIONS:  
 
“I move to approve the contract for the Riverside Park permanent fence replacement to B&B 
Local Construction” 
 
“I move to deny approval of the contract for the Riverside Park permanent fence replacement to 
B&B Local Construction” 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
Diagrams of Project Improvements 
Contract Agreement  



 
 

 
 
 
  

Trail Perimeter Fence 



 
 

 

Ballfield Perimeter Fence 



City of Evans, Colorado 1              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT  

City of Evans, Colorado 
AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES BY INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 4th day of October, 2016, by and between the 
City of Evans, State of Colorado (hereinafter referred to as the "City"), and B and B Local Construction LLC 
(hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"). 

RECITALS: 

A. The City requires professional services. 

B. Consultant has held itself out to the City as having the requisite expertise and experience to 
perform the required services for the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed, for the consideration hereinafter set forth, that 
Consultant shall provide to the City professional consulting services for the Project. 

I.  SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant shall furnish all labor and materials to perform the services required for the complete and 
prompt execution and performance of all duties, obligations and responsibilities for the Project, which are 
described or reasonably implied from Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference. 

II.  THE CITY'S OBLIGATIONS/CONFIDENTIALITY 

The City shall provide Consultant with reports and such other data as may be available to the City 
and reasonably required by Consultant to perform hereunder.  No project information shall be disclosed by 
Consultant to third parties without prior written consent of the City or pursuant to a lawful court order 
directing such disclosure.  All documents provided by the City to Consultant shall be returned to the City.  
Consultant is authorized by the City to retain copies of such data and materials at Consultant's expense. 

III.  OWNERSHIP OF INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 

The City acknowledges that the Consultant’s documents are an instrument of professional service.  
Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property of the City upon 
completion of the services.  Any reuse of the Consultant's documents is at the City's own risk. 

IV.  COMPENSATION 

A. In consideration for the completion of the services specified herein by Consultant, the City 
shall pay Consultant an amount not to exceed ($65,850.00).  Payment shall be made in accordance with the 
schedule of charges in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
Invoices will be itemized and include hourly breakdown for all personnel and other charges. The maximum 
fee specified herein shall include all fees and expenses incurred by Consultant in performing all services 
hereunder. 

B. Consultant may submit monthly or periodic statements requesting payment.  Such request 
shall be based upon the amount and value of the services performed by Consultant under this Agreement, 
except as otherwise supplemented or accompanied by such supporting data as may be required by the City. 



City of Evans, Colorado 2              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

1. All invoices, including Consultant's verified payment request, shall be submitted by 
Consultant to the City no later than the twenty-fourth (24th) day of each month for 
payment, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  In the event Consultant fails to submit 
any invoice on or before the twenty-fourth (24th) day of any given month, Consultant defers 
its right to payment, pursuant to said late invoice, until the following month. 

2. Progress payments may be claimed on a monthly basis for reimbursable costs actually 
incurred to date as supported by detailed statements, including hourly breakdowns for all 
personnel and other charges.  The amounts of all such monthly payments shall be paid 
within thirty (30) days after the timely receipt of invoice, as provided by this Agreement. 

C. The City has the right to ask for clarification on any Consultant invoice after receipt of the 
invoice by the City. 

D. In the event payment for services rendered has not been made within forty-five (45) days 
from the timely receipt of the invoice for any uncontested billing, interest will accrue at the rate of twelve 
percent (12%) per annum compounded annually.  In the event payment has not been made within ninety (90) 
days from the receipt of the invoice for any uncontested billing, Consultant may, after giving seven (7) days' 
written notice and without penalty or liability of any nature, suspend all authorized services specified herein.  
In the event payment in full is not received within thirty (30) days of giving the seven (7) days' written notice, 
Consultant may terminate this Agreement.  Upon receipt of payment in full for services rendered, Consultant 
will continue with all authorized services.  

E. Final payment shall be made within sixty (60) calendar days after all data and reports (which 
are suitable for reproduction and distribution by the City) required by this Agreement have been turned over 
to and approved by the City and upon receipt by the City of Consultant's written notification that services 
required herein by Consultant have been fully completed in accordance with this Agreement and all data and 
reports for the Project. 

V.  COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF SERVICES 

Within seven (7) days of receipt from the City of a Notice to Proceed, Consultant shall commence 
services on all its obligations as set forth in the Scope of Services or that portion of such obligations as is 
specified in said Notice.  Except as may be changed in writing by the City, the Project shall be complete and 
Consultant shall furnish the City the specified deliverables, as provided in Exhibit A. 

VI.  CHANGES IN SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A change in the Scope of Services shall constitute any material change or amendment of services 
which is different from or additional to the Scope of Services specified in Section I of this Agreement.  No 
such change, including any additional compensation, shall be effective or paid, unless authorized by written 
amendment executed by the City.  If Consultant proceeds without such written authorization, then 
Consultant shall be deemed to have waived any claim for additional compensation, including a claim based on 
the theory of unjust enrichment, quantum merit or implied contract.  Except as expressly provided herein, no 
agent, employee or representative of the City shall have the authority to enter into any changes or 
modifications, either directly or implied by a course of action, relating to the terms and scope of this 
Agreement. 

 

 



City of Evans, Colorado 3              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

VII.  PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY 

A. Consultant hereby warrants that it is qualified to assume the responsibilities and render the 
services described herein and has all requisite corporate authority and professional licenses in good standing, 
as required by law. 

B. The services performed by Consultant shall be in accordance with generally accepted 
professional practices and the level of competency presently maintained by other practicing professional firms 
in the same or similar type of services in the applicable community. 

C. Consultant shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely 
completion, and the coordination of all designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services furnished 
by Consultant under this Agreement.  Consultant shall, without additional compensation, correct or resolve 
any errors or deficiencies in his designs, drawings, specifications, reports, and other services, which fall below 
the standard of professional practice, and reimburse the City for construction costs caused by errors and 
omissions which fall below the standard of professional practice. 

D. Approval by the City of drawings, designs, specifications, reports and incidental services or 
materials furnished hereunder shall not in any way relieve Consultant of responsibility for technical adequacy 
of the services.  Neither the City's review, approval or acceptance of, nor payment for, any of the services 
shall be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising 
out of the performance of this Agreement, and Consultant shall be and remain liable in accordance with 
applicable performance of any of the services furnished under this Agreement. 

E. The rights and remedies of the City provided for under this Agreement are in addition to any 
other rights and remedies provided by law. 

VIII.  COMPLIANCE WITH LAW 

The services to be performed by Consultant hereunder shall be done in compliance with applicable 
laws, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

IX.  INDEMNIFICATION 

A. INDEMNIFICATION – GENERAL:  The City cannot and by this Agreement does not 
agree to indemnify, hold harmless, exonerate or assume the defense of the Consultant or any other person or 
entity whatsoever, for any purpose whatsoever.  Provided that the claims, demands, suits, actions or 
proceedings of any kind are not the result of professional negligence, the Consultant shall defend, indemnify 
and hold harmless the City, its mayor and City council, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees 
from any and all claims, demands, suits, actions or proceedings of any kind or nature whatsoever, including 
worker's compensation claims, in any way resulting from or arising from the services rendered by Consultant, 
its employees, agents or subconsultants, or others for whom the Consultant is legally liable, under this 
Agreement; provided, however, that the Consultant need not indemnify or save harmless the City, its mayor 
and City council, its officers, agents and employees from damages to the extent caused by the negligence of 
the City's mayor and City council, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees. 

B. INDEMNIFICATION FOR PROFESSIONAL NEGLIGENCE:  The Consultant shall 
indemnify and hold harmless the City, its mayor and City council, and any of its officials, officers, directors, 
and employees from and against damages, liability, losses, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys 
fees, but only to the extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant, 
its employees, subconsultants, or others for whom the Consultant is legally liable, in the performance of 
professional services under this Agreement.  The Consultant is not obligated under this subparagraph IX.B. 



City of Evans, Colorado 4              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

to indemnify the City for the negligent acts of the City, its mayor or City council, or any of its officials, 
officers, directors, agents and employees. 

C. INDEMNIFICATION – COSTS:  Consultant agrees, to the extent provided in Paragraph 
A., above, to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for and defend against any such liability, 
claims or demands at the sole expense of Consultant, for actions caused by Consultant, or, at the option of 
the City, agrees to pay the City or reimburse the City for the defense costs incurred by the City in connection 
with any such liability, claims or demands for actions caused by Consultant.  Consultant also agrees, to the 
extent provided in Paragraph A. above, to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including court 
costs and attorney fees, whether or not any such liability, claims or demands alleged are groundless, false or 
fraudulent.  If it is determined by the final judgment of a court of any competent jurisdiction that such injury, 
loss or damage was caused in whole or in part by the act, omission or other fault of the City, its mayor and 
City council, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees, the City shall reimburse Consultant for the 
portion of the judgment attributable to such act, omission or other fault of the City, its mayor and City 
council, officials, officers, directors, agents and employees. 

X.  INSURANCE 

A. Consultant agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a policy or policies of insurance 
sufficient to insure against all liability, claims, demands and other obligations assumed by Consultant, 
pursuant to Section IX, Indemnification, above.  Such insurance shall be in addition to any other insurance 
requirements imposed by this Agreement or by law.  Consultant shall not be relieved of any liability, claims, 
demands or other obligations assumed pursuant to Section IX, Indemnification, above, by reason of its 
failure to procure or maintain insurance, or by reason of its failure to procure or maintain insurance in 
sufficient amounts, durations or types. 

B. Consultant shall procure and maintain, and shall cause any subconsultant of Consultant to 
procure and maintain, the minimum insurance coverages listed below.  Such coverages shall be procured and 
maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the City.  All coverages shall be continuously maintained to 
cover all liability, claims, demands and other obligations assumed by Consultant, pursuant to Section IX, 
Indemnification, above.  In the case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended 
reporting periods shall be procured to maintain such continuous coverage. 

1. Worker's compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable laws for any 
employee engaged in the performance of services under this Agreement, and Employer's 
Liability insurance with minimum limits of Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) each 
claim, Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) disease - policy limit, and Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000) disease - each employee.   

2. Commercial general liability insurance with minimum combined single limits of One Million 
Dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) general 
aggregate.  The policy shall be applicable to all premises and operations.  The policy shall 
include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage (including completed 
operations), personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee acts), blanket 
contractual, products and completed operations.  The policy shall contain a severability of 
interests provision. 

3. Professional liability insurance with minimum limits of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
each claim and Two Million Dollars ($2,000,000) annual aggregate, and Consultant shall 
maintain such coverage for at least three (3) years from the termination of this Agreement. 



City of Evans, Colorado 5              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

4. The policy required by Paragraph 2, above shall be endorsed to include the City and the 
City's officers, employees and consultants as additional insureds.  Every policy required 
above shall be primary insurance, with the exception of Professional Liability and Worker's 
Compensation, and any insurance carried by the City, its officers, its employees or its 
consultants shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that provided by Consultant.  
No additional insured endorsement to the policy required by Paragraph 1, above shall 
contain any exclusion for bodily injury or property damage arising from completed 
operations.  Consultant shall be solely responsible for any deductible losses under any policy 
required above. 

5. The certificate of insurance provided for the City shall be completed by Consultant's 
insurance agent as evidence that policies providing the required coverages, conditions and 
minimum limits are in full force and effect, and shall be reviewed and approved by the City 
prior to commencement of the Agreement.  No other form of certificate shall be used.  The 
certificate shall identify this Agreement and shall provide that the coverages afforded under 
the policies shall not be cancelled or terminated until at least thirty (30) days' prior written 
notice has been given to the City.  The completed certificate of insurance shall be sent to: 

City of Evans 
1100 37th Street 
Evans, Colorado  80620-2036 
Attn:  Risk Manager 

6. Failure on the part of Consultant to procure or maintain policies providing the required 
coverages, conditions and minimum limits shall constitute a material breach of agreement 
upon which the City may immediately terminate this Agreement or, at its discretion, the City 
may procure or renew any such policy or any extended reporting period thereto and may pay 
any and all premiums in connection therewith, and all monies so paid by the City shall be 
repaid by Consultant to the City upon demand, or the City may offset the cost of the 
premiums against any monies due to Consultant from the City. 

7. The City reserves the right to request and receive a certified copy of any policy and any 
endorsement thereto. 

8. The parties hereto understand and agree that the City, its officers and its employees are 
relying on, and do not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the 
monetary limitations (presently Three Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars ($350,000) per 
person and Nine Hundred Ninety Thousand Dollars ($990,000) per occurrence) or any other 
rights, immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, 
Colo. Rev. Stat. §24-10-101, et seq., as from time to time amended, or otherwise available to 
the City, its officers or its employees. 

XI.  NONASSIGNABILITY 

Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations of the parties hereto shall be assigned by 
either party without the written consent of the other. 

XII.  TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall terminate at such time as the services in Section I are completed and the 
requirements of this Agreement are satisfied, or upon the City's providing Consultant with seven (7) days' 
advance written notice, whichever occurs first.  The Consultant shall also have the ability to terminate this 



City of Evans, Colorado 6              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

agreement by providing City with forty-five (45) days’ advance written notice. In the event the Agreement is 
terminated by the City's issuance of said written notice of intent to terminate, the City shall pay Consultant 
for all services previously authorized and completed prior to the date of termination.  If, however, Consultant 
has substantially or materially breached the standards and terms of this Agreement, the City shall have any 
remedy or right of set-off available at law and equity.  If the Agreement is terminated for any reason other 
than cause prior to completion of the Project, any use of documents by the City thereafter shall be at the 
City's sole risk, unless otherwise consented to by Consultant. 

XIII.  CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

The Consultant shall disclose any personal or private interest related to property or business within 
the City.  Upon disclosure of any such personal or private interest, the City shall determine if the interest 
constitutes a conflict of interest.  If the City determines that a conflict of interest exists, the City may treat 
such conflict of interest as a default and terminate this Agreement. 

XIV.  VENUE 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Colorado, and any legal action 
concerning the provisions hereof shall be brought in the County of Weld, State of Colorado. 

XV.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

A. Consultant is an independent contractor.  Notwithstanding any provision appearing in this 
Agreement, all personnel assigned by Consultant to perform services under the terms of this Agreement shall 
be, and remain at all times, employees or agents of Consultant for all purposes.  Consultant shall make no 
representation that it is the employee of the City for any purposes. 

B. Disclosure: Consultant is not entitled to workers’ compensation benefits, unemployment 
insurance benefits unless unemployment compensation coverage is provided by the Consultant or 
some other entity, and Consultant is obligated to pay federal and state income tax on any moneys 
earned pursuant to this Agreement for Professional Services by Independent Contractor. 

XVI.  NO WAIVER 

Delays in enforcement or the waiver of any one or more defaults or breaches of this Agreement by 
the City shall not constitute a waiver of any of the other terms or obligations of this Agreement. 

XVII.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement and the attached Exhibit A is the entire Agreement between Consultant and the 
City, superseding all prior oral or written communications.  None of the provisions of this Agreement may be 
amended, modified or changed, except as specified herein. 

XVIII.  NOTICE 

Any notice or communication between Consultant and the City which may be required, or which 
may be given, under the terms of this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed to have been 
sufficiently given when directly presented or sent pre-paid, first class United States mail, addressed as follows: 

The City: City of Evans 
Attn:  Nancy Salazar, Flood Recovery Manager  
1100 37th Street 



City of Evans, Colorado 7              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

Evans, Colorado 80620-2036 
 

Contractor: B and B Construction LLC  
1007 42nd Street 
Evans, CO  80620 

 

XIX.  EFFECTIVE DATE AND EXECUTION 
 
This Agreement shall become effective following execution by both Consultant and City.  This 

Agreement may be executed in counterparts, including by facsimile or electronically, each of which shall be 
considered an original, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument.  

 

XX.  SPECIAL PROVISIONS (if applicable)  

 The "Special Provisions" attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated by this reference are made a 
part of this Agreement.  For purposes of the Special Provisions, the Consultant shall be referred to as the 
"Contractor." 

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto each herewith subscribe the same in triplicate, as of 
the date first written above. 

 
CITY OF EVANS, COLORADO 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 

John Morris, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Raegan Robb, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND SUFFICIENCY: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
APPROVED AS TO CONTENT: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Manager 
 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
Title: ___________________________________ 



City of Evans, Colorado 8              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

 
ATTEST: 
 
By: ___________________________________ 
Title: ___________________________________ 
 
OR NOTARY BLOCK: 
 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 
 )ss. 
COUNTY OF ____________ ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________, 200__, by 
________________________, as ______________ of _________________________. 

My commission expires: ______________________. 

SEAL __________________________________ 
Notary Public 

 



City of Evans, Colorado 9              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

Exhibit A 
 

B&B Local Construction LLC 
Robert Burke 
Member/Manager 
1007 42nd Street 
Evans, CO  80620___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Telephone 970-330-5346                             Cell 970-381-9061                                                    Fax 970-330-0510 
 
Scott Sandridge, City of Evans, Colorado  
1100 37th Street 
Evans CO. 80620  
970-539-6101 Mobile  
8/17/2016 
 
Dear Mr. Sandridge: 
 

 Thank you for the opportunity to participate in your Fence Remove and Replace project 
at the City of Evans Trail Fence.  This project, as we understand it, will include removing and 
replacing 1,800 linear feet of 6’ high chain link fence that was damaged in the flood of 2013.  
This bid will include cleaning up the existing fence line as per our conversation on 8/16/2016.    
 
This fence will have the following specifications:  
Sch. 20 or equivalent pipe size. 
 
1) 1 5/8" Top Rail 2) 1 7/8” Line Posts  3) 2 7/8" Termination Posts  
4) 11 Gage Fabric   
 
1,800’ of 6’ high green chain link fence installed at $14.00 per foot …………….. $ 25,200.00 
1,800’ of chain link fence removal and clean up at $ 2.00 per foot ……..………..  $   3,600.00 
 
 
Total Project Price Installed .......................................................................  $ 28,800.00 
  
 
 Terms of this agreement will be 100% upon completion of project.  All materials will be 
as specified above and there are no verbal agreements in affect. Thank you again for the 
opportunity to let our company serve your fencing needs.  
 
 Sincerely,   
 
R. K. Burke  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 



City of Evans, Colorado 10              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

Exhibit A (continued) 
 

B&B Local Construction LLC 
Robert Burke 
Member/Manager 
1007 42nd Street 
Evans, CO  80620___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Telephone 970-330-5346                             Cell 970-381-9061                                                    Fax 970-330-0510 
 
Scott Sandridge, City of Evans, Colorado  
1100 37th Street 
Evans CO. 80620  
970-539-6101 Mobile  
8/17/2016 
 
Dear Mr. Sandridge: 
 

 Thank you for the opportunity to participate in your Fence Remove and Replace project 
at the City of Evans Riverside Ballfield Perimeter.  This project, as we understand it, will 
include removing and replacing 1,950 linear feet of 7’ high green vinyl coated chain link fence 
that was damaged in the flood of 2013.  This bid will include cleaning up the existing fence line 
as per our conversation on 8/16/2016.    
 
This fence will have the following specifications:  
Sch. 20 or equivalent pipe size. 
 
1) 1 5/8" Top Rail 2) 2 3/8” Line Posts  3) 2 7/8" Termination Posts  
4) 11 Gage Green Vinyl Coated Fabric   
 
1,950’ of 7’ high green chain link fence installed at $17.00 per foot …………….. $ 33,150.00 
1,950’ of chain link fence removal and clean up at $ 2.00 per foot ……..………..  $   3,900.00 
 
 
Total Project Price Installed .......................................................................  $ 37,050.00 
  
 
 Terms of this agreement will be 100% upon completion of project.  All materials will be 
as specified above and there are no verbal agreements in affect. Thank you again for the 
opportunity to let our company serve your fencing needs.  
 
 Sincerely,   
 
R. K. Burke  
______________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 



City of Evans, Colorado 11              PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
  

 

 
Exhibit B 

 
Special Provisions Required by §§ 8-17.5-101 et seq., C.R.S. 

 

A. Certification.  By entering into this Agreement, Contractor hereby certifies that, at the time 
of this certification, it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien and that Contractor has 
participated or attempted to participate in the basic pilot program administered by the U.S. Department of 
Homeland Security in order to verify that it does not employ any illegal aliens. § 

B. Prohibited Acts.  Contractor shall not: 

1. Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under this 
Agreement; or 

2. Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to Contractor that the 
subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 
this Agreement.   

C. Verification.  

1. Contractor has verified or attempted to verify through participation in the basic 
pilot program administered by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security that Contractor does not 
employ any illegal aliens and, if Contractor is not accepted into the basic pilot program prior to 
entering into this Agreement, that Contractor shall apply to participate in the basic pilot program 
every three (3) months until Contractor is accepted or this Agreement has been completed, 
whichever is earlier.   

2. Contractor shall not use basic pilot program procedures to undertake pre-
employment screening of job applicants while this Agreement is being performed.   

3. If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work under 
this Agreement knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, Contractor shall: 

i. Notify the subcontractor and the City within three (3) days that Contractor 
has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; 
and 

ii. Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of 
receiving the notice required pursuant to subparagraph i. hereof, the subcontractor does not 
stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that Contractor shall not 
terminate the contract with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor 
provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed or 
contracted with an illegal alien.  

D. Duty to Comply with Investigations.  Contractor shall comply with any reasonable request 
by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment made in the course of an investigation conducted 
pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5)(a) to ensure that Contractor is complying with the terms of this 
Agreement.   



 

   City Manager - Monitoring Report 

October 4, 2016 
 

Below is a compellation of updates and projects that are either new  
or have changed since the last City Council meeting. 

 

 
City Manager’s 
Office 

 

Communications • Social media was used to provide an overview update three years post flood on the 
September 13 anniversary. Given the level of interest in the park reopening, the 
focus was on that aspect of recovery. 

• Recognizing CML’s Cities and Towns Week, four short videos covering 
“Community”, “Vibrancy”, “Safety” and “Home” are now on the website – all 
geared to drive the theme of how much Cities and Towns do to make quality of life 
possible for residents.   

• Final plans for the Regional CML Meeting to take place September 29, hosted by 
Evans, are coming together. The event, to be held at Riverside Library, supports the 
positioning of Evans as a regional leader.  

Customer 
Service Unit 

 

Human 
Resources/Risk 
Management 

• A safety inspection was conducted for Public Works Operations, Parks and 
Grounds, Fleet, and Wastewater which included all buildings and storages lockers 
associated with these buildings or shops. This inspection was performed in 
conjunction with the yearly fire extinguisher maintenance.  No life-safety issues 
were discovered and any minor safety issues were fixed on the spot.  

• The Employee Review Team launched a wellness challenge called Zero to Thirty.  
Zero to Thirty will challenge participants to get active with a minimum exercise 
goal of 30 minutes a day for at least 24 of the 30 challenge days. The Employee 
Review Team also sponsored a flu shot clinic this week.   

Finance Sales Tax Update 
(Final) June 
 



 
(Preliminary) July 
 
Year-to-date Actual vs. Budget, we are $182,654 short. 
 
As far as the monthly projection goes, we are $184,113 short of what we needed to 
collect this month to meet our annual budget. This does not include motor vehicle 
tax.  
 

 

 
•  

Flood & 
Recovery 

• Staff received the completed and approved PW 302 scope change for the 49th 
Street, Brantner Road, Industrial Parkway Road Repair project. 

Category 2015 YTD 2016 YTD % Change
Base 1,477,267    1,366,278        -8%
Commercial 1,117,179       1,094,008       -2%
Industrial 1,039,236    398,403          -62%
Utilities 455,064      396,500          -13%
One-Time -              180,224           
July 2016 - Preliminary
Lodging 59,221         46,727            -21%

July 2016 - Preliminary



• September 2013 through September 2, 2016 actual flood repair costs are $5,729,914 
and actual reimbursements received are $3,416,540. 

Recreation • Registration is going on now for 3rd-6th Grade winter sports. The Recreation 
Department will be offering a new program that will focus on fundamentals of 
sports to help prepare children for the upcoming season.  

Information 
Technology 

 

Building 
Department 

• Staff received 8 new Single Family permit applications from Park Place Homes. 
• Staff is working on two permits for duplex applications. 
• Staff has received many permits for re-roofing throughout the city. 
• Garney Construction will be picking up permits for Temporary Instruction 

Buildings for the Wastewater Treatment Facility Project early next week. 
Neighborhood 
Services 

• Staff created a comprehensive enforcement plan to address trash issues in the 
Lakeshore subdivision, better known as the State Farm neighborhood.  Issues in 
this area include property owner and refuse hauler obligations, right-of-way 
maintenance responsibilities, city limit boundaries and non-assessable properties. 

• Code Enforcement Staff wrote a Great Outdoors Colorado(GOCO) grant 
application to fund brush and dead tree removal along the Evans Ditch.  If GOCO 
funds the project in December, the Weld County Youth Conservation Corps will 
conduct the six-week project in early 2017. 

Planning • Staff coordinated revised landscape plan and subdivision plat for the ARB project.  
• Staff facilitated a public hearing for Eastwood Village Zoning Board of Appeals 

and coordinated with Evans FD on their presentation, packet items. 
• Staff continued work and responses to questions on the Synergy Subdivision from 

Baseline Engineering and Xcel Energy 
Engineering • Staff met with the City of Greeley for an update on the 65th Avenue Widening 

Project.  The City of Greeley has their portion out to bid. 
• Staff attended the Greeley Evans Transit (GET) steering committee for the 5-10 

year strategic plan.  The committee reviewed the draft document and will have a 
week to submit comments.  City Council will receive a presentation from Will 
Jones, Transit Manager regarding the plan at the November 1st work session. 

• Martin Marietta has started patching on 34th Street between 11th Avenue & 17th 
Avenue in preparation of the 2016 Asphalt Overlay.  Staff has given approval for 
the contractor to work this Saturday, September 18th in order to complete work 
closest to the intersection of 17th Avenue to help with traffic issues during the 
school week. 

• Kolbe Striping has completed the majority of our annual pavement marking 
contract.  They will be onsite soon to complete the remaining items: 

o Striping near Union Colony School 
o Striping of State Farm Road 
o Striping of parking spaces at Village Park 
o Installation of thermoplastic pavement symbols at various locations 

• Work has commenced on the Hwy 85 Access Control Project at 37th Street.  
• Staff participated in the scoring committee for the North Front Range Metropolitan 

Planning Organization (NFRMPO) FY 2020 – 2021 Call for Projects.  Staff also 
attended the monthly NFRMPO Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) that same 
afternoon.  The NFRMPO TAC will recommend to the MPO Council full award 
of the Evans application request for the 37th Street Overlay from 11th Avenue to 23rd 



Avenue.  The MPO Council will receive project presentations on October 6th and 
will have an action item vote at their November meeting. 

• Staff is looking at possible scope change options for the Hwy 85 Access Control 
Project at 31st Street. 

Police • The City of Denver hosted a 9/11 Remembrance Event at Civic Park on Sunday. 
The event not only honored those who lost their lives in the attack of 9/11/2001, 
but also paid tribute to Colorado first responders and the military. Chief Brandt and 
Commander Harding attended to represent the City of Evans. It was a moving 
event. 

• The Citizen’s Police Academy is quickly wrapping up with only one week 
remaining. This past week’s class covered the topics of drug investigations and 
Taser. Five brave souls volunteered to receive a Taser exposure. Greeley Tribune 
staff were in attendance and are hoping to publish a story on the CPA in the next 
week or two.  

• Former Officer Gabe Riemer was recently promoted to the rank of sergeant. 
Congrats Sergeant Riemer! 

• The EPD is hoping to get two hiring processes underway before the end of the 
year. We are aiming to finally get to our authorized strength of 37 with these two 
processes. 

Economic 
Development/ 
ERA 

 

Parks • The sand box at Ridge Park has been problematic with stray cats, staff will be 
removing it and adding safety surface in its place. This new area will allow for 
stroller and bike parking.  

PW Operations • Staff are closely monitoring irrigation pond levels so that when the irrigation 
ditches begin shutting down the ponds will be as full as possible to avoid damage 
over the winter months. 

• There has been an update to the Lead and Copper water testing rule. Staff spent 
considerable time on the implementation of the updated rule. In the past we used a 
representative sample of 60 homes. We now have to sample 60 homes built 
between 1983 & 1987, our old list only had 2 sites that qualify with the new update. 
New sample sites have been identified and staff is beginning to reach out to the 
owners and ask that help us in becoming a sample collection site. 

• Staff are returning to a 3 day a week schedule for pothole filling. 
Waste Water 
Operations 

 

Waste Water 
Treatment Plant 

• Xcel is projecting next week for installation of power to the site. 
• Dewatering is operational and functioning properly with no issues. 
• Garney is expecting the excavation subcontractor (Nelson Civil) to begin late this 

week or early next week.  Once begun, this will be a very prominent indication of 
progress being made at the site. 

 



COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM:  

SUBJECT:  

October 4, 2016 

11.A

Adjournment to Executive Session 

___________________________________________________________________________ 
AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

The City Council will adjourn into an executive session to determine positions relative to matters 
that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and instructing 
negotiators, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).   

FINANCIAL SUMMARY: 
N/A 

RECOMMENDATION: 

N/A 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS: 

“I move to go into Executive Session for the purpose of determining positions relative to 
matters that may be subject to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations, and 
instructing negotiators, pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(e).”   


	1. CALL TO ORDER
	2. PLEDGE
	3. ROLL CALL
	4. RECOGNITIONS
	5. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	6. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	7. CONSENT AGENDA
	7.A-Approval of Minutes
	09.20.2016 Draft Meeting Minutes

	7.B-2017 Holiday Schedule
	Resolution 33-2016_2017 Holidays


	8. NEW BUSINESS
	8.A Staff Report - 2017 Budget Approval
	Reso 34-2016_2017 Budget
	Ordinance No. 655-16- 2017 Budget
	2017 Budget Book 9.28.16_revised

	8.B-4th degree arson
	Ord 656-16_4th Dgree Arson to City Code

	8.C-fire code variance
	Hillside Rental ZBA submission

	8.D-EASTWOOD VILLAGE APPEAL_STAFF REPORT
	EWV VICINITY MAP
	EV APPEAL STAFF LETTER 7.21.16
	EWV 05.19.16 APPLICANT LETTER
	EWV, RESPONSE LETTER 07.28.16
	EWV EXHIBIT A SUBJECT PROPERTY
	EWV ATTACH B VARIANCES REQUIRED
	EWV APPLICANT ATTACH C ENGINEER INFO
	CITY CODE_CHAPTER 16.04
	09.13.2016 ZBA Draft Minutes
	Applicant's Supplemental Materials from ZBA hearing

	8.E-Tuscany Phase II Development Agreement Amendment
	FINAL AMENDMENT
	EXHIBIT A - Description of Phase II property for Amendment to Development Agreement
	Exhibit B - Disclosure Notice- for amendment - Developers Phase II lots - 8.8

	8.F-Flood Recovery Grant Extension Staff Report
	7633 CA#1 Email Memo BL Amendment Impact 053116
	7633 CA#1

	8.G-Riverside Park Fencing
	Agreement for Services B&B Perm Fence 2016


	9. REPORTS
	10-4-2016 Monitoring Report

	10. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION
	11. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	11.A Executive Session_10.04.16

	12. ADJOURNMENT



